
 

Page 1 of 3 

TOWN COUNCIL AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

THURSDAY                          TOWN COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
AUGUST 22, 2024 – 2:00 P.M.     4300 S. ATLANTIC AVENUE, PONCE INLET, FL 

SUNSHINE LAW NOTICE FOR BOARD MEMBERS – Notice is hereby provided that one 
or more members of the Town’s various boards may attend and speak at this meeting. 

A complete copy of the materials for this agenda is available at Town Hall. 

1. CALL TO ORDER. 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE. 

3. ROLL CALL. 

NOTE: Citizens who wish to speak during Public Participation about any subject that is not on the meeting 
agenda should fill out the Citizen Participation Request form and submit it to the Town Clerk prior to the 
start of the meeting.   

4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA. 

5. CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is an opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively on any subject that 
is not identified on the meeting agenda. The Town’s Rules for Conducting Town Council meetings are set 
forth in Resolution 2021-11 and include the following guidelines: 

• Citizens are provided with 5 minutes at each meeting to speak on one or more issues that are not 
otherwise placed on the meeting agenda. 

• Please introduce yourself with your name and address clearly for the record. 
• Share with us your thoughts, ideas, and opinions; we want to hear them. 
• Under our rules, all questions and comments are directed to the Mayor. 

While some questions may be able to be addressed at this meeting, others may require research or more 
information than we have readily available from our staff, so we may have to defer the response to you 
until we have that information. Also, depending on the type of issue, we may place the matter on a properly 
noticed subsequent meeting agenda. As a Council, we welcome the opportunity to hear from you and hope 
you will speak with us not only during Citizen Participation but outside of these meetings. We understand 
the formal nature of this meeting, but rest assured, we want to hear from you, we want to address your 
concerns, and we are appreciative of your involvement. 

6. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS:  

A.  Port Orange-South Daytona Chamber of Commerce presentation – Barbara Ann 
Heegan, President and CEO 

B. Mayor’s proclamation report.  

7.  CONSENT AGENDA - Items on the consent agenda are defined as routine in nature that do not 
warrant detailed discussion or individual action by the Council; therefore, all items remaining on the 



8/22/24 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 2 of 3 

consent agenda shall be approved and adopted by a single motion, second and vote by the Town Council. 
Items on the consent agenda are not subject to discussion. Any member of the Town Council may remove 
any item from the consent agenda simply by verbal request at the Town Council meeting. Removing an 
item from the consent agenda does not require a motion, second or a vote; it would simply be a unilateral 
request of an individual Council member and this item would then be added as the last item under New 
Business. As with all agenda items, the public will have the opportunity to comment prior to a motion being 
placed on the floor and their comment(s) may persuade the Council to remove the item from the Consent 
Agenda and place under New Business for discussion. 

A. Request for Use of Town Property for the 2024 Daytona 100 Ultramarathon Race 

B. Approval of Planning Board By-Law updates.  

C. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes. – July 18, 2024. 

D. Approval of the Town Council Budget Workshop minutes. – July 16, 2024.   

8. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 
MEETING:   

A. Request for Co-Sponsorship of the Friends of the Marine Science Center’s Ocean 
Harvest Market Event  

       
B. Request to pursue an Attorney General Opinion on pre-emption of long-term rental 

regulations.  
 
C. Discussion – Athletic Court Reservation System and Reasonable Modifications 

under the Americans with Disabilities Act.  

9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 

10.   PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS:  None. 

11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:  

A. Ordinance 2024-03 – Amendment to LUDC Section 3.17, Docks, Boathouses, Boat 
Slips, and Piers. 

B. Ordinance 2024-04 – Amendment to Code of Ordinances Ch. 2, Art. III updating 
purchasing thresholds.  

12.  OLD BUSINESS: 

A.  Harbour Village CSA cost-participation request. (tabled from June Council 
meeting) 

13. NEW BUSINESS:  



8/22/24 Regular Council Meeting 
      

  Page 3 of 3 

A. Discussion – Support for future Volusia County coastal armoring project in Wilbur-
by-the-Sea.  

B. Renewal of five-year agreement with Waste Pro for refuse collection services. 

14.    FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL: 

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 

B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 

C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 

D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 

E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 

15.  FROM THE TOWN MANAGER. 

16.  FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY. 

17.   CITIZENS’ PARTICIPATION - The Town of Ponce Inlet encourages engagement by citizens 
via a variety of means. This is another opportunity for our citizens to talk to us collectively for 2 minutes 
before closure of this meeting regarding reports provided by the Town Council, Town Manager, or Town 
Attorney in items 14-16 (only) of the meeting agenda. 

18.   ADJOURNMENT. 

Upcoming Town Council meeting(s) and Important date(s): 

• Wednesday, September 4, 2024, 6:00 PM – Special Council meeting and 1st Budget 
Hearing 

• Thursday, September 19, 2024, 6:00 PM – Regular Council Meeting and 2nd Budget 
Hearing 

If a person decides to appeal any decision made by the Town Council with respect to any matter considered at a 
meeting or hearing, he/she will need a record of the proceedings and that for such purpose, he/she may need to ensure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the 
appeal is to be based.  Persons who require accommodation to attend this meeting should contact the Ponce Inlet 
Town Hall at 236-2150 at least 48 hours prior to the meeting to request such assistance. 



Report to Town Council 

Topic:   Proclamations, Presentations, and Awards. 

Summary: 

A. Port Orange-South Daytona Chamber of Commerce
presentation.

B. Mayor’s proclamation report.

Suggested motion:   None required. 

Requested by:   Mayor Paritsky 

Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   6 



Item 6-B







 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Consent Agenda 
 

A. Request for Use of Town Property for the 2024 Daytona 100 
Ultramarathon Race. 

 
B.  Approval of Planning Board By-Law updates. 

 
C. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes. – 

July 18, 2024. 
 
D. Approval of the Town Council Budget Workshop meeting 

minutes. – July 16, 2024. 
 

Summary:   See attached staff reports. 
 
Suggested motion:  To approve the Consent agenda as presented. 
 
Requested by: Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
   Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 
    
Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   7 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community 
excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 

Date: August 12, 2024 

Subject: Request for Use of Town Property: 2024 Daytona 100 Ultramarathon Race 

MEETING DATE:  August 22, 2024 

Mr. Bob Becker of Ultra Sports, LLC has submitted his special event permit application through the 
Cultural Services Department for the Daytona 100 Ultramarathon Race. The 10th annual Daytona 
100 Ultramarathon is scheduled for the weekend of December 14-15, 2024. This is an event that 
includes individual races beginning in Jacksonville for 100 miles, and with separate starts in Flagler 
Beach for both 50-mile and 50k races. This is the third year with the requested use of Kay & Ayres 
Davies Lighthouse Park as the official finish line for all three races. Over the course of the weekend, 
runners will be spread out over many miles before they reach the finish line. The runners are expected 
to cross this finish line in Davies Park over a 20-hour period between late afternoon on Saturday, 
December 14th until the cutoff at 1:30 pm on Sunday, December 15th. Mr. Becker anticipates roughly 
300 runners, with an additional 500 support crew and staff members arriving over the finish line 
during this time. No complaints or negative feedback were received from residents or noted during 
the staff’s after-action discussion from last year’s event. 

This year’s request again includes the use of Kay & Ayres Davies Lighthouse Park as the official 
finish line. The Town updated its Special Event regulations on August 17, 2023, which includes new 
criteria for co-sponsorship approval, below.  

Sec. 51-2. – Definitions: Town-sponsored event 
Town-sponsored event means that the town, solely or as a co-sponsor of the event, produces 

and/or coordinates the event, or contributes town services, funds, staff, or aid of any kind as a co-
sponsor, after determining that the event:  

(a) Is planned, organized, and conducted by the Ponce Inlet Community Center Board, Inc.,
or any established not-for-profit organizations and clubs based in Ponce Inlet, such as the
Ponce Inlet Veterans Association, Ponce Inlet Lions Club, Ponce Inlet Garden Club, Ponce
Inlet Women’s Club, and the Ponce Inlet Art Guild, that annually provide a copy of their
currently valid IRS tax exemption certificate as an established 501(c)3 organization;
and/or

(b) Has been traditionally co-sponsored by the Town as provided in Sec. 51-8(a).

Item 7-A



 

  

Sec. 51-8(a). – Co-sponsorship or co-sponsored event criteria and standards:  
(a)  Based on the Town’s long tradition of co-sponsoring certain annual events based on 

repeated findings that they provide a local commemoration of a national holiday or 
provide historical, educational, cultural enrichment or recreational experiences to the 
public and town residents, the town council, in its sole discretion, may grant full co-
sponsorship to those long-standing events identified and approved via resolution. 

 
Pursuant to Sec. 51-2. and Sec. 51-8(a), the Daytona 100 Ultramarathon Race does not meet the 
criteria for event co-sponsorship. Although hosted and planned by the non-profit Ultra Sports LLC, 
this organization is not based in Ponce Inlet. For this event, staff must refer to Sec. 51-8(d) below,  
 

(d) For events that do not meet the definition of Town-sponsored event under Sec. 51-2 
described above, a written request shall be delivered to the town’s cultural services 
department at least 60 days prior to the event by an applicant if use of town facilities, 
parking on town property, and/or street closures are found to be required for the event 
based on the findings of the town’s special event review committee. Town staff may 
provide a report and recommendation to the town council for review. 

 
Acknowledging that the Daytona 100 Ultramarathon Race does not meet the current criteria for co-
sponsorship request, the applicant has submitted his request for the use of Town property during the 
event along with the special event permit application packet (Attachment 1). 
 
Runners will enter Ponce Inlet on S. Atlantic Avenue, then proceed west along Lighthouse Drive to 
S. Peninsula Drive to the finish line at the south entrance of Kay & Ayres Davies Lighthouse Park. 
Provided that runners arrive over a 20-hour period, no road closures will be required.  
 
The off-site parking facilities that are requested from the Town for this event include 8 spaces within 
the boat ramp trailer parking lot. Additional off-site parking permission has been obtained from Ponce 
Inlet Community Center, Critter Fleet, and the Ponce Inlet Lighthouse. There will not be a boat ramp 
closure for this event. The applicant is also requesting placement of temporary signs on Town 
property. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Request is for use of town property for the Daytona 100 Ultramarathon Race scheduled for December 
14 and 15, 2023; the request is for the placement of temporary signs on Town property, use of Davies 
Park, and use of 8 parking spaces within the boat ramp trailer parking lot.  
 
Staff recommends approval of the request for use of town property as the criteria have been met. 
 
 
 
                 August 12, 2024      
Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager                     Date 
 
Attachments:  

1. Application Packet_2024 Daytona 100 





































MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence 

while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager  

From: Patty Rippey, AICP, Principal Planner 

Through: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 

Date: August 5, 2024 

Re: Planning Board By-Laws Amendment 

Meeting date:  August 22, 2024 

INTRODUCTION 

Members of the Planning Board and Town Council met for a Special Joint meeting on June 4, 

2024. Agenda Item 7 was a discussion of amending the Planning Board By-laws to change the 

regular meeting time. 

AUTHORITY AND PROCESS 

Pursuant to LUDC Section 6.2.2.C., the Planning Board shall meet at regular intervals and other 

times as it may deem necessary. It shall adopt written by-laws and procedures necessary for the 

administration of its responsibilities, as consistent with the Code of Ordinances, and the LUDC. 

By-laws and procedures shall be approved by the Town Council. Amendments or modifications 

to the by-laws shall be submitted to the Town Council for final approval. 

On July 23, 2024, at its regularly scheduled meeting, the Planning Board unanimously 

recommended approval of the amendment to the regular meeting time for Town Council 

consideration at the August 22, 2024 Town Council meeting. 

AMENDMENT TO BY-LAWS 

The draft version of the revised Planning Board By-Laws, Rules and Procedures is attached to this 

report. Additions are underlined, deletions are struck-through. Specifically, under Article III 

Meetings, the regular meeting time is proposed to be amended from 10:00 AM to 2:00 PM. The 

scheduled meeting time for quasi-judicial meetings will remain at 5:30 PM. No other changes are 

being initiated. 

Attachment: 

Planning Board By-Laws, Rules and Procedures 

Item 7-B



Planning Board By-Laws /Revised 8/22/2024 

Page 1 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET 

PLANNING BOARD 
BY-LAWS, RULES AND PROCEDURES 

 
 

THESE BY-LAWS are adopted in accordance with Section 6.2.2 of the Town of Ponce Inlet Land 

Use and Development Code. They shall be considered supplemental to any Ordinance or 

Resolution adopted by the Town Council which affects the Town of Ponce Inlet Planning Board 

(hereinafter, referred to as the “Planning Board”). Should there be a conflict between these Bylaws 

and any Town Ordinance or Resolution, in effect, at any time, then the Ordinance or Resolution 

shall control. 

 

The Planning Board of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida shall be governed by the Charter and Code 

of the Town of Ponce Inlet and the rules of procedures set forth herein and adopted by the Planning 

Board. 

 

CREATION 

 

A Planning Board is hereby created which shall have the power and duties of a Planning 

Commission and a Board of Adjustment, consistent with Section 7.01 of the Charter. It shall also 

have the power and duties of the local planning agency in accordance with the Community 

Planning Act (2011), F.S. Ch. 163.3161 et. seq. It shall be referred to in the Articles as the Planning 

Board. It shall have the following membership, duties, responsibilities, and limitations: 

 

ARTICLE I 

OFFICERS, MEMBERS AND DUTIES 

 

1. MEMBERSHIP, TERMS OF OFFICE. The Planning Board shall consist of five (5) 

regular members and two (2) alternates, who are appointed by the Town Council. Each regular 

member shall be appointed for a three-year term, in staggered sequence. Alternate members shall 

be appointed for a term of one (1) year. No official or employee of Town government shall serve 

on the Planning Board. Each member of the Planning Board shall be a qualified elector of the 

Town of Ponce Inlet. Preference will be given to full-time residents. 

 

2. REMOVAL FROM OFFICE, VACANCIES. All members of the Planning Board shall 

serve at the sole pleasure of the Town Council and may be removed at any time without cause and 

without a hearing. If a Board member has either three consecutive absences from regular meetings 

or five absences within one rolling year from regular meetings, that member shall be automatically 

removed from the Board. The Town shall not attempt to differentiate between what one might 

consider an excused absence vs. an unexcused absence. However, a Board member may appeal to 

the Town Council for reinstatement if the situation was temporary in nature and he/she is able to 

resume their responsibilities to the Board. In addition, as a preemptive measure, a Board member 

may request in writing a leave of absence from the Town Council for illness, family emergencies, 

etc. A granted leave of absence will not be counted towards the absences of that member for that 

rolling year. Any vacancy occurring during an unexpired term shall be filled with an alternate 

member or if no available alternates, by advertising the vacancy until filled. 



Planning Board By-Laws /Revised 8/22/2024 

Page 2 

3. CHAIRPERSON. A Chairperson shall be elected by the Planning Board from among its 

members. The Chairpersonship shall be for (1) one year beginning on the first regularly scheduled 

meeting. The Chairperson shall decide upon all points of order and procedure, subject to these 

rules, unless directed otherwise by a majority of the Planning Board in session at the time. The 

Chairperson shall appoint from the Planning Board membership any committee found necessary 

to investigate matters not quasi-judicial in nature before the Planning Board. The Chairperson shall 

sign all Orders of the Planning Board. 

 

4. VICE-CHAIRPERSON. A Vice-Chairperson shall be elected by the Planning Board 

from among its members at its first regularly scheduled meeting or whenever the position becomes 

vacant. The Vice-Chairperson shall serve as Chairperson in the absence of the Chairperson. Upon 

vacancy of the Chair, the Vice-Chairperson will serve as Chairperson until a new Chairperson is 

elected at the next regular meeting. 

 

5. SECRETARY. Town staff shall assign a Board Secretary. The Board Secretary shall be 

an employee of the Town of Ponce Inlet. The Board Secretary shall keep all records, conduct all 

correspondence of the Planning Board, cause to be given the required legal notice of each public 

meeting, and shall generally take charge of the clerical work of the Planning Board. The Board 

Secretary shall open the meeting in the absence of the Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson. 

 

The Board Secretary shall take, or cause to be taken, the minutes of every meeting of the Planning 

Board. These shall show the record of all important facts pertaining to each meeting and hearing, 

every resolution acted upon by the Planning Board and all votes of members of the Planning Board 

upon any resolution or upon the final determination of any question, indicating the names of 

members absent or failing to vote. The Secretary shall present the draft copy of the minutes to the 

Planning Board for approval at the next regular meeting. The Secretary shall keep as a permanent 

record the minutes of every meeting of the Planning Board. The Secretary shall keep all records 

open to the public during normal business hours but, in no event, shall relinquish the original of 

any record to any person except as provided by law. 

 

6. COMPENSATION. Planning Board members shall serve as volunteers without 

compensation, but may be reimbursed for such travel, mileage, and per diem expenses as may be 

authorized by the Town Council, or as otherwise provided by law. 

 

7. POWERS AND DUTIES. The Planning Board shall have powers and duties as stated 

in section 163.3174, Florida Statutes, (as may be amended from time to time), section 6.2.2.D of 

the Town’s Land Use and Development Code (as may be amended from time to time), and the 

following: 

 

A. To hear, review, and make recommendations to approve, approve with conditions, 

or disapprove applications for quasi-judicial land use decisions, including but not 

necessarily limited to: quasi-judicial rezonings, site plan reviews, final 

development plans, subdivision plats, special exceptions, conditional uses, street 

vacations, sign permits, variances when tied to a land use application, changes in 

structures and uses, and scenic roadway variances. Such recommendations shall 

include whether a proposal is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan. 

 



Planning Board By-Laws /Revised 8/22/2024 

Page 3 

B. To hear, review, and make recommendations regarding proposals for legislative 

decisions to amend the official zoning map or sections of the land use and 

development code, if the town council determines, in its discretion, to refer a 

proposed legislative change to the board for recommendation. 

 

C. To hear and decide appeals and variances as provided for in the land use and 

development code and the code of ordinances. Further appeals may be taken to the 

town council. 

 

D. To perform such other planning duties and functions not inconsistent with the 

comprehensive plan, code of ordinances, or the land use and development code, or 

as directed by the town council. 

 

E. To hear and decide appeals of orders, decisions, or determinations of the planning 

and development department director in the enforcement and interpretation of this 

code. The board may, upon appeal, reverse, affirm, or modify any order, 

requirement, decision or determination of the planning and development 

department director. Further appeals may be taken to the Town Council. 

 

ARTICLE II 

APPOINTMENT PROCEDURES 

The procedure for appointment of individuals to the Town’s Boards shall be as follows: 

1. Whenever a vacancy occurs on any Town Board, the Town Council shall be notified 

promptly by the Board Secretary. 

2. The Board Secretary will advertise the vacancy on the Town’s website and on the Town 

bulletin board and in any other locations which are deemed economically appropriate to fill the 

vacancy. 

3. The Board Secretary will provide the interested candidate(s), the appropriate information 

about the board. 

4. The Board Secretary will create and maintain an application for Boards which has been 

approved by the Town Council. This application must be completed by any potential applicant for 

initial appointment. The applications will be accepted by the Board Secretary, who will verify 

residency through voter registration before forwarding them to the Town Council for 

consideration. 

5. Though all board members serve at the pleasure of Council, preference for re-appointment 

shall be given to the current seat holder. Board members seeking re-appointment shall submit in 

writing to the Town their interest in re-appointment at least 30 days prior to the expiration of their 

term. The board secretary will re-confirm their residency and will provide the Town Council 

information regarding the appointee’s attendance and training.   

6. New applicants are strongly encouraged to attend the Town Council meeting for 



Planning Board By-Laws /Revised 8/22/2024 

Page 4 

consideration of their application. 

7. Any member appointed as Alternate #1 to the board shall automatically progress to the first 

available vacant regular seat on that board, without having to go back to the Town Council for 

promotional appointment. Alternate #2 shall then automatically progress to the Alternate #1 seat. 

8. Members of Boards which are required pursuant to state regulations to complete an 

affidavit of financial disclosure (Form 1) must submit this to the Supervisor of Elections office 

within thirty (30) days of initial appointment. 

ARTICLE III 

MEETINGS 

 

1. REGULAR MEETING. Regular meetings of the Planning Board shall be held once each 

month, on the 4th Tuesday of the month. Board meetings shall generally begin at 10:00 AM 2:00 

PM, however, meetings shall begin at 5:30 PM if the meeting agenda includes one or more quasi-

judicial hearings, the Planning and Development Director directs as such, or if a simple majority 

of all members determines that a 5:30 PM meeting time better suits the public interest due to 

anticipated agenda item(s). All regular meetings shall be held at the Council Chambers. The time 

and place of the regular monthly meeting may be changed by affirmative vote of a simple majority 

of all members. At least twenty-four (24) hours’ notice of the time and place of the regular 

meetings shall be given by the Secretary to each member of the Planning Board. 

 

2. SPECIAL MEETINGS. Special meetings of the Planning Board may be called at any 

time by the Chairperson, Town staff, or by affirmative vote of a simple majority of all members. 

At least forty-eight (48) hours’ notice of the time and place of special meetings shall be given by 

the Secretary to each member of the Planning Board. 

 

3. CANCELLATION OF MEETINGS. Whenever there are no applications, appeals or 

other business for the Planning Board, or whenever so many members notify the Secretary of 

inability to attend that a quorum will not be available, the Chairperson may dispense with the 

regular meeting and the Board Secretary shall provide a written or oral notice to all members as 

soon as possible prior to the time set for the meeting. 

 

4. QUORUM. A quorum shall consist of three members of the Planning Board for the 

transaction of business. 

 

5. CONDUCT OF MEETINGS. All meetings shall be open to the public. The order of 

business at regular meetings shall be as follows: 

 

1. Call to order and Pledge of Allegiance 

2. Roll Call and Determination of Quorum 

3. Adoption of Agenda 

4. Approval of Minutes 

5. Report of Staff 

6. Correspondence and Disclosure of Ex-Parte Communication 

7. Hearing of Cases 



Planning Board By-Laws /Revised 8/22/2024 

Page 5 

8. Business Items 

9. Public Comment 

10. Board Discussion 

11. Adjournment 

 

6. ADJOURNED MEETINGS. The Planning Board may adjourn a regular meeting or 

special meeting if all business cannot be disposed of on the day set, and no further public notice 

shall be necessary for resuming such a meeting if the time and place of its resumption is stated at 

the time of adjournment and is not changed after adjournment. 

 

7. EX-PARTE COMMUNICATIONS. In accordance with Section 286.0115, Florida 

Statutes, Town Council has passed Resolution 2007-18. Disclosure of ex-parte communications 

made pursuant to the Resolution and this paragraph should, if possible, be made at the beginning 

of the public hearing at which a vote is taken so that persons who have opinions contrary to those 

expressed in the ex-parte communication are given a reasonable opportunity to explain or respond 

to the communication. Adherence to the following guidelines, as set forth in Resolution 2007-18, 

shall remove the presumption of prejudice from ex-parte communications with Planning Board 

members. 

 

a. Communications between staff and public. Oral and written communications between staff 

and members of the public shall be permitted and encouraged. 

 

b. Communication between the Planning Board and the public. Members of the Planning 

Board of the Town shall not be prohibited from receiving and participating in oral or written ex-

parte communications regarding quasi-judicial matters before the Planning Board, if all 

requirements of Resolution 2007-18 are followed as to any ex-parte communication, and any 

presumption of prejudice arising out of such ex-parte communications is hereby removed and 

declared non-existent. 

  

1. Any oral ex-parte communication with a Planning Board member relating to 

pending quasi-judicial action shall not be presumed prejudicial to the outcome of the matter 

if the subject matter of the communication and the identity of the person, group or entity 

with whom the communication took place is disclosed and made a part of the record in the 

quasi-judicial proceeding before final action on the matter. 

 

2. Any written communication to a Planning Board member from any source 

regarding a pending quasi-judicial matter shall not be deemed prejudicial to the outcome 

of the matter, if the written communication is made part of the record in the quasi-judicial 

proceeding before final action on the matter. 

 

3. Planning Board members shall not be prohibited from conducting site visits or 

receiving expert opinions regarding quasi-judicial matters pending before them, and such 

activities shall not be presumed prejudicial to the outcome of the matter if the existence of 

the investigation, site visit, or expert opinion is disclosed and made a part of the record in 

the quasi-judicial proceeding before final action on the matter. 

 



Planning Board By-Laws /Revised 8/22/2024 

Page 6 

4. Resolution 2007-18 does not subject Planning Board members to Part III of Chapter 

112, Florida Statutes, for not complying with the Resolution. 

 

c. Communication between Planning Board members and staff. Written and oral 

communications between Planning Board members and staff shall be limited to the facts of the 

application or case. Ex-parte discussions of the positions or arguments of the applicant or any 

opposing party are discouraged. All such communications shall be disclosed and made a part of 

the record in the quasi-judicial proceeding before final action on the matter. 

 

d. Communication between Planning Board members and Town Attorney(s). Attorneys for 

the Planning Board may render legal opinions when requested but shall not engage in factual 

determinations or advocate one party's position over another, except to the extent necessary to 

respond fully to a purely legal question. 

 

ARTICLE IV 

VOTING 

 

1. VOTE. A simple majority of members present shall be necessary to render a decision. The 

Chairperson shall have one (1) vote in all issues voted upon by the Board. 

 

2. REPRESENTATION, PERSONAL INTEREST.  Pursuant to Section 112.3143, Florida 

Statutes, no Board member may vote on a matter in which (s)he shall be personally or financially 

interested. An Alternate member will be required to sit in as a voting member for that matter. If a 

Board member has a voting conflict, (s)he must orally declare the conflict in the meeting and 

abstain from voting. The member may participate in discussions, but only if (s)he first orally 

declares his/her conflict of interest. Board members claiming a conflict must complete the 

memorandum of voting conflict (Form 8B) within 15 days after the vote occurs, for inclusion in 

the meeting minutes. 

 

ARTICLE V 

APPEALS  

 

1. APPEALS. The Planning Board shall hear and decide appeals from any interpretation, 

order, requirement, decision, or determination of the Planning and Development Director in the 

administration and enforcement of the Land Use and Development Code. Appeals may be taken 

by any person aggrieved or by any officer, board, department or agency of Town government 

adversely affected by any decision of the Planning and Development Director. Aggrieved parties 

must file a notice of appeal specifying the grounds with the Planning and Development Director 

and the Town Clerk within thirty (30) days after rendition of the order, requirement, decision or 

determination. The notice of appeal shall be on a form prescribed by the Planning and 

Development Director.  

 

2. PROCEDURE FOR FILING APPEALS. Upon receipt of the Notice of Appeal and 

payment of any appeal fee established by resolution of the Town Council, and after due public 

notice and notice to all owners of contiguous property, the Planning and Development Director 

shall transmit to the Planning Board all documents, plans, papers or other materials relating to the 

appealed decision. 



Planning Board By-Laws /Revised 8/22/2024 

Page 7 

3. WITHDRAWAL OF APPEALS. If appeal is withdrawn before public notice is given, 

the appeal fee shall be returned to the applicant, minus the application processing fees. In such 

event, the fact of withdrawal shall be noted on the original and both copies of the application with 

the signature of the applicant attesting withdrawal. The original shall be retained by the Secretary 

for the files of the Planning Board and one (1) copy shall be returned to the applicant. 

 

ARTICLE VI 

HEARINGS 

 

Witnesses may be called, sworn and cross-examined at hearings. Factual evidence may be 

submitted. The Planning Board shall not be limited to consideration of such testimony and 

evidence as would be admissible in a Court of Law. However, the Planning Board shall only 

consider the sort of evidence on which reasonable, prudent persons would be accustomed to rely 

on in the conduct of their affairs. Hearsay evidence may be used to supplement or explain other 

evidence, but shall not be sufficient in itself to support a finding unless it would be admissible over 

objection in civil actions. The rules of privilege shall be effective to the same extent that they are 

now or hereafter may be recognized in civil actions. Irrelevant and unduly repetitious evidence 

shall be excluded. The Chairperson may establish appropriate time limits for arguments but such 

time limits shall be equal for the Planning and Development Director and the applicant. The 

Chairperson may request that only a representative or representatives speak on behalf of an entire 

group or portions of a group presenting arguments to the Planning Board. The applicant, agent or 

attorney shall direct all presentation, questions and arguments to the Planning Board only. 

Arguments between the parties shall not be permitted. The Planning Board reserves the right to 

ask questions at any time. Only where alternative documentary evidence, such as drawings or 

photographs, cannot adequately portray the issues under consideration may the applicant, Planning 

and Development Director, or any Planning Board member request a view of the site. If a majority 

of the Planning Board determines that a view of the site is necessary, then the matter shall be 

continued until the Secretary coordinates a convenient time for all parties and members of the 

Planning Board to reconvene. 

 

ARTICLE VII 

DECISIONS 

 

Pursuant to Section 10.2.6 of the Land Use and Development Code, if a variance does not begin 

to serve the purpose for which it was granted within 12 months from the date of rendition of the 

written order, or if its use is thereafter abandoned for 12 consecutive months, it shall expire. A 

shorter or longer period of time may be set by the Planning Board so long as the applicant applies 

for an extension prior to the expiration.  

 

ARTICLE VIII 

REHEARING  

 

1. If it is alleged that the Planning Board has overlooked or misunderstood certain facts or 

points of law, a rehearing of any decision of the Planning Board may be granted to rehear its prior 

decision. The rehearing may be proposed either on the motion of any member voting on the 

prevailing side, or on the motion of any person aggrieved by its decision. The motion shall be in 

writing, filed with the Planning and Development Director within ten (10) working days after the 



Planning Board By-Laws /Revised 8/22/2024 

Page 8 

rendition of the decision, and shall state its grounds. The person requesting the rehearing shall send 

a notice by Certified Mail to all interested persons, stating the date, time and place the motion for 

rehearing will be heard by the Planning Board.  

 

2. If the Planning Board grants such a motion, it shall state its reason for doing so and set a 

time, date and place for another public hearing upon due public notice pursuant to the Land Use 

and Development Code.  

 

3. The Planning Board shall not otherwise hear any matter based upon the same facts or issues 

as were previously decided by the Planning Board until at least one (1) year has elapsed from the 

date of rendition. 

 

ARTICLE IX 

AMENDMENTS 

 

Amendments or modifications shall be submitted to the Town Council for final approval. 
 

 

Reviewed and approved as amended for exclusive use by the Town of Ponce Inlet, FL this ___  

day of August 2024. 

        

Town of Ponce Inlet     

 

 

             

       Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 

Attest: 

 

 

       

Kim C. Cherbano, 

Town Clerk 



Town Council  July 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes Page 1 of 8 

Town of Ponce Inlet 1 

Town Council 2 

Regular Meeting Minutes 3 

July 18, 2024 4 
5 

1. CALL TO ORDER:  Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to 6 
order at 2:00 p.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 7 

8 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Mayor Paritsky led the Pledge of Allegiance. 9 

10 
3. ROLL CALL: 11 

Town Council: 12 
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 13 
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 14 
Councilmember White, Seat #3 15 
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 16 
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5  17 

18 
Staff Members Present: 19 
Mr. Baker, Building Official 20 
Ms. Cherbano, Town Clerk 21 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 22 
Mr. Dunlap, Acting Public Works Director 23 
Chief Glazier, Police Chief 24 
Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager 25 
Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager 26 
Deputy Chief Landreville, Deputy Fire Chief 27 
Ms. McColl, Finance Director 28 
Mr. Okum, IT Director 29 
Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 30 
Attorney Shepard, Town Attorney 31 
Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 32 

33 
Other representatives present: 34 
Mr. Jeff Brower, Volusia County Chair 35 

36 
4. ADDITIONS, CORRECTIONS, OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA: Item 13-D 37 
was withdrawn. Item 12-A, renewal of the governmental affairs consultant contract was added. 38 

39 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the agenda as amended; seconded by Councilmember Milano; 40 
The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 41 

42 
5. CITIZENS PARTICIPATION: Mayor Paritsky opened citizens participation – Cathy 43 
Harvey, 41 Loggerhead Court, said she attended the Candidate Forum last night, and she suggests 44 
having each candidate stand at a podium or be seated on stage for uniformity. Mayor Paritsky 45 

Item 7-C



 

   
Town Council   July 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 2 of 8 

stated her ideas will be shared with C4PI because they are the ones responsible for hosting the 46 
event.  47 
 48 

At the last Council meeting, Ms. Harvey made a reference to the $14,000 given to the First 49 
Step Shelter and asked if an explanation could be given for that expense.  50 

 51 
 Mr. Disher explained the town is required by law to provide its own shelter for the homeless 52 
unless we contribute to another shelter. The annual donation meets that requirement. 53 
Councilmember Milano stated he is passionate about the shelter and that each time he has 54 
campaigned for office, he has donated any leftover campaign funds to the shelter. The amount the 55 
town donates to the shelter is .0004% of the operating budget; he noted that Volusia County and 56 
Daytona Beach both contribute $400,000 each.  57 
 58 
 Mark Oebbecke, 4758 South Peninsula Drive, announced new improvements and repairs 59 
to the community center. He referred to the publication “The Island Telegraph” and noted that 60 
Ponce Inlet is featured on the back as the “Sleeping Beauty in Ponce Inlet”. He also announced 61 
that this Veteran’s Day is going to be special as the nine founding members of the Ponce Inlet 62 
Veteran’s Association will be acknowledged for their efforts in building the existing memorial. He 63 
asked if the town could create a proclamation honoring those men as we are one of the few 64 
regionally recognized memorials in the country and they deserve that recognition. He announced 65 
the Town Hall meeting is August 8, 2024 at the community center. He referred to the budget and 66 
stated he reviewed other municipalities in Volusia County for comparison, noting the differences. 67 
Mr. Oebbecke stated he is tired of people not appreciating the level of service the town offers, 68 
noting his involvement with staff and stating they are overworked. Mayor Paritsky agreed on the 69 
proclamation for the veteran’s acknowledgement.  70 
 71 
6. PROCLAMATIONS, PRESENTATIONS, AND AWARDS 72 
 Mayor Paritsky explained that Volusia County Council Member Matt Reinhart is not in 73 
attendance as normal due to Sunshine Law concerns, because another member of the Volusia 74 
County Council is present. Council Member Reinhart has advised her that he is attentive to the 75 
issues being raised and will participate in a future discussion before the Volusia County Council. 76 
She introduced Volusia County Council Chair, Jeff Brower.  77 
 78 
 A.  Coastal armoring – Volusia County Chair Jeff Brower explained he is here today 79 
on an issue that is important to the health and safety of every resident of Ponce Inlet and Wilbur-80 
by-the-Sea. He introduced Tom Rutledge to give the presentation. Tom Rutledge, 4112 Oriole 81 
Avenue, Wilbur-by-the-Sea, thanked the Council for recognizing the Volusia County Council 82 
Chair on an issue that could negatively impact both communities. He initiated this because South 83 
Atlantic Avenue, the main artery serving our communities, is under threat. Recent changes on the 84 
4100 block of South Atlantic Avenue in Wilbur-by-the-Sea have led him to believe that a more 85 
robust strategy is needed to mitigate the threat to the road. The issues are: 1) inaction by the 86 
abutting beachfront property owners to armor the dunes; he noted six of the eight lots are 87 
unarmored; 2) demolition of the homes have left bare sand exposed to the wind; and 3) the county-88 
installed trap bags have been breached. All but two houses on the block were lost during the 2022 89 
hurricanes, and those two were damaged. He contacted Chair Brower, and they agreed from a 90 
layman’s perspective there was a potential threat to the road and a credentialed opinion was 91 



 

   
Town Council   July 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 3 of 8 

needed. They received that opinion from Robert Bullard, who is familiar with the issues on this 92 
block. Volusia County has installed trap bags on these lots for erosion mitigation. The trap bags 93 
have failed in several places due to the interaction with higher magnitude tides that occur several 94 
times per year. The county has a plan to refresh the damaged trap bags which is helpful but of little 95 
use during a storm event with a high-magnitude surge similar to Hurricane Ian. He said the distance 96 
from the eroded dune to the road is approximately 80 to 90 feet, while on one lot it is only 60 feet. 97 
Unarmored sections between armored sections are the issue. Should this road be lost, it would be 98 
a major repair and have significant impacts on the lives of the nearby residents. It is shown from 99 
empirical data that trap bags deteriorate under repeated high tide events; if damaged they tend to 100 
fail rapidly; a storm surge high enough to submerge the trap bags will destroy them. It will take 101 
engineering solutions to add mass, likely coquina, to save our road in the event of a storm with a 102 
three- to five-foot wind-driven surge.   103 
 104 

Mr. Rutledge provided a presentation, with graphs from Hurricanes Ian and Nicole, and 105 
photographs of the road in discussion. He explained the county is cleaning the storm drains at ten 106 
times the frequency than normal due to the sand being blown into the road and washing into the 107 
storm drains. Now that these homes are gone there is nothing stopping the wind. Chair Brower 108 
stated this is about prevention and the cost of prevention versus repair; he stressed he is here 109 
seeking support. The county has decided to lift those trap bags and add mass in front of this 110 
property; however, this is about protecting the road and the assets of Wilbur-by-the-Sea and Ponce 111 
Inlet. Adding mass to the armor beyond the trap bags may require the approval of the state and 112 
possibly the federal government. Policy makers and staff at all levels of government are going to 113 
be dealing with these issues for the foreseeable future. Volusia County will carry the workload in 114 
the interactions with the state and federal governments; Ponce Inlet, as an affected party, could 115 
help with influencing the outcome at all levels. He said this Council, with its due diligence, will 116 
come to its own conclusions and determine what role it can play. He would ask a credentialed 117 
engineer what the minimum characteristics of a storm are as far as height and surge, above high 118 
tide, wind speed, and duration that would threaten South Atlantic Avenue and the 4100 block in 119 
Wilbur-by-the-Sea. He is asking the Council to discuss this issue, and if it is determined to have 120 
merit, pass a resolution encouraging the county and state governments to come up with a plan to 121 
temporarily armor the dune for the purpose of mitigating the threat. 122 
 123 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – Sharone Lemieux, 4590 South Atlantic Avenue, 124 
provided Council with a personal account of the process to repair damage from the hurricanes; she 125 
agreed there needs to be a change in policy. Public participation was closed. 126 
 127 
7. CONSENT AGENDA: Mayor Paritsky asked if there was any item Council would like to 128 
remove from the consent agenda; there were no requests. Mayor Paritsky asked if there were any 129 
requests from the public – there were none. 130 
 131 
 A. Approval of the Town Council Regular meeting minutes – June 20, 2024. 132 
 133 

B. Approval of the Town Council Preliminary Budget Workshop minutes – June 134 
26, 2024. 135 

 136 
C. Declaration of police vehicle as surplus property. 137 

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:f:/g/personal/dstewart_ponce-inlet_org/EkKkKaMiCZpFqy72GsMRhzkB15hvQZS9ESCP5a4-9uYF0Q?e=NwEoXQ


 

   
Town Council   July 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 4 of 8 

 138 
Mayor Paritsky moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented; seconded by Councilmember 139 
Milano; The motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 140 
 141 
8. OLD/NEW BUSINESS ITEMS PREFERRED AT THE BEGINNING OF THE 142 
MEETING: None. 143 
 144 
9. PUBLIC HEARINGS / QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 145 
 146 
10. PUBLIC HEARINGS / NON-QUASI-JUDICIAL MATTERS: None. 147 
 148 
11. ORDINANCES (FIRST READING) AND RESOLUTIONS:  149 
 150 

A.  Resolution 2024-13. Attorney Shepard read Resolution 2024-13 by title only. A 151 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA, AUTHORIZING THE 152 
CREATION OF A DISASTER RECOVERY FUND; AUTHORIZING A TRANSFER OF 153 
APPROPRIATIONS WITHIN THE TOWN’S BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 2023-2024; 154 
AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. – Chief Scales explained that the Disaster 155 
Recovery Fund is to ensure the town is prepared for any unforeseen emergencies. By creating this 156 
account, it provides a dedicated funding source for emergencies, it guarantees funds have been 157 
allocated for such emergencies, and when it comes time for reimbursements, this will make the 158 
process much more efficient. Vice-Mayor Smith asked if there is a minimum or maximum amount 159 
to be maintained in this account; Chief Scales stated there is not. Councilmember White asked if 160 
this would be a restricted fund; Chief Scales stated yes. 161 
 162 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – Steve Field, 6 Mar Azul, asked if it was difficult to 163 
retrieve the money from the general fund; Mr. Disher explained the process noting that ordinarily 164 
any transfer of funds requires Council approval. A brief discussion ensued regarding the need to 165 
create a new fund versus keeping the policy as is. Public participation was closed.  166 
 167 
Councilmember White moved to approve Resolution 2024-13 authorizing the creation of a 168 
Disaster Recovery Fund and a transfer of appropriations within the Town’s budget for FY 23/24; 169 
seconded by Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the following vote: 170 
Councilmember White – yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; Councilmember 171 
Villanella – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 172 
 173 

B. Resolution 2024-14. Attorney Shepard read Resolution 2024-14 by title only. A 174 
RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, VOLUSIA COUNTY, FLORIDA 175 
ADOPTING A PROPOSED MILLAGE RATE FOR THE LEVYING OF AD VALOREM 176 
PROPERTY TAXES FOR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES ON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY 177 
WITHIN THE TOWN FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING OCTOBER 1, 2024 AND 178 
ENDING SEPTEMBER 30, 2025; ESTABLISHING THE PUBLIC HEARING DATES 179 
AND TIMES; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTING 180 
RESOLUTIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. – Mr. Disher explained 181 
this resolution is to adopt the proposed millage rate on the budget reviewed by Council. The 182 
proposed millage rate is 6.6250 which would produce $8,403,446 in ad valorem revenue at a 95% 183 



 

   
Town Council   July 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 5 of 8 

collection rate. The proposed millage rate is 14.15% above the rolled-back rate. Mr. Disher stated 184 
the information presented can be found on the town’s website. He further explained the millage 185 
rate set in this meeting is the maximum rate, so once approved it cannot go up, however it can be 186 
lowered before final adoption. The first budget hearing will be September 4th at 6:00 PM, and the 187 
final adoption will be at the regularly scheduled Town Council meeting, September 19th at 6:00 188 
PM. Mayor Paritsky provided a brief synopsis on how the budget has come to this point and the 189 
steps involved. Councilmember Villanella clarified the 6.7473 rate can currently be considered; 190 
he recommended setting it at this rate, providing Council can lower it in the future. Councilmember 191 
Milano provided more information referring to previous years’ budgets and concluded that he too 192 
is looking at the 6.7473 rate. Councilmember White explained the steps he has taken in reviewing 193 
the budget and concluded he is most comfortable accepting 6.6250 as the threshold. There was 194 
further discussion in an effort for a unanimous decision.   195 
 196 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – Steve Field, 6 Mar Azul, requested the total of the 197 
tax base increase in dollar amounts; Mr. Disher stated it increased by 9%. Discussion ensued 198 
regarding the effects of potentially raising the millage rate, and an explanation on how this rate is 199 
set. Mr. Fields commented on the potential for Las Olas subdivision’s newly refurbished walkover 200 
to be considered for cost-participation from the town. Mark Oebbecke, 4758 South Peninsula 201 
Drive, stated an investment needs to be made to the town and the services it provides by adopting 202 
a budget that extends beyond just the essentials. Barbara Davis, 4871 Sailfish Drive, encouraged 203 
everyone to remember the Essential Services Advisory Board is made up of people who have 204 
specialized in their respective fields, so their recommendations should be considered. She 205 
elaborated on services provided by the town and how it makes the increase in millage worth it. 206 
Rick Fuess, 46 Ashley Court, reiterated what Mr. Oebbecke and Ms. Davis stated, and requested 207 
clarification on the process of hiring of personnel mid-year. Charles Burge, 4670 Links Village 208 
Drive, agreed with Councilmember White and detailed the items he is in favor and opposed to in 209 
the budget. Mr. Disher clarified the Town Hall payment comes from the Land Acquisition Fund 210 
and therefore does not impact the millage rate. Public participation was closed. 211 
 212 
Councilmember White proposed the millage be set at 6.7473 and to re-evaluate after further 213 
research from staff.   214 
 215 
Councilmember White moved the budget for FY 24/25 be based on a proposed millage rate of 216 
6.7473 or lower; seconded by Councilmember Milano. The motion PASSED, 5-0 with the 217 
following vote: Councilmember White – yes; Councilmember Milano – yes; Mayor Paritsky – yes; 218 
Councilmember Villanella – yes; Vice-Mayor Smith – yes. 219 
 220 
12. OLD BUSINESS:  221 
 222 

A.  Request to approve the piggyback contract with Sunrise Consulting Group. – 223 
Mr. Disher explained this item comes from last month’s meeting where Council expressed the 224 
desire to renew the town’s current governmental affairs consultant contract for a 12-month period 225 
starting immediately. The town received permission to utilize a piggy-back contract with the City 226 
of Palm Bay and received confirmation from Sunrise Consulting Group to use the rate previously 227 
quoted.   228 
 229 



 

   
Town Council   July 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 6 of 8 

Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – hearing none, public participation was closed.   230 
 231 
Councilmember Milano moved to approve the piggy-back contract with Sunrise Consulting Group 232 
at the $3,000 monthly rate, effective immediately; seconded by Councilmember Villanella. The 233 
motion PASSED 5-0, consensus. 234 
 235 
13. NEW BUSINESS: 236 
 237 

A.  Discussion – Ponce Inlet Business Hours and Vision Statement. – Mr. Disher 238 
stated an email was received prior to last month’s Council meeting by a resident who questioned 239 
whether the current business hour restrictions supported  the town’s vision statement, or if a new 240 
vision state were needed. The Council had directed staff to research and bring back additional 241 
information on this topic for the next meeting. Mr. Disher explained the Council could decide to 242 
revisit the restrictions or could revisit the entire vision statement, noting that no funds for such an 243 
endeavor are currently available or proposed. Mayor Paritsky questioned if some of the ordinances 244 
presented are consistent with the values and needs of residents. She stated it may be time to look 245 
further into updating these outdated ordinances. Vice-Mayor Smith said it is always good to review 246 
periodically, unless this is a response to a specific concern. The rest of Council concurred it would 247 
be good to review.  248 
 249 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – Jair Kessler, 81 Buschman Drive, reviewed her own 250 
history with the business hours restrictions concerning the Farmers Market; she asked Council to 251 
consider the opportunity to host a market in the morning and evening when reviewing this 252 
ordinance. Public participation was closed.  253 
 254 
Council directed staff and the Planning Board to review the Town’s regulations for business 255 
operating hours, activities, and noise levels for consistency with the adopted Vision Statement. 256 
 257 

B.  Discussion – Code enforcement hearing process through a Special Magistrate.  258 
Mr. Hooker, Code Compliance Manager, presented this item. He provided a history of the Local 259 
Code Enforcement Board Act as well as the use of Special Magistrates in Volusia County and 260 
around the state. He detailed a Special Magistrate’s duty and how it compares to the Code 261 
Enforcement Board. After a survey conducted in October 2019, it was determined that out of 214 262 
municipalities statewide, 62.1% used a Special Magistrate exclusively and 23.8% used a Code 263 
Enforcement Board. In June 2024, a survey of agencies in Volusia County was conducted - of the 264 
respondents, the Town of Ponce Inlet was the only municipality to use a Code Enforcement Board 265 
exclusively. Mayor Paritsky extended her gratitude to all volunteers that sit on a board, 266 
emphasizing the Council’s gratitude for the Code Enforcement Board. Attorney Shepard explained 267 
that while the duty of Special Magistrates and Code Enforcement Board are similar, the difference 268 
lies in the execution and the efficiency of the execution.  269 

 270 
Mayor Paritsky opened public comment – Karen Rij, Ponce Inlet resident, explained that as a 271 
member of the Code Enforcement Board, she would like to know what was wrong with the current 272 
process and what the cost would be to the town. Mayor Paritsky clarified that nothing was wrong, 273 
but it would be a more elevated process for the town. Attorney Shepard explained how the cost 274 
could be negotiated, e.g. hourly as needed or flat monthly rate. Sharone Lemieux, 4590 South 275 



 

   
Town Council   July 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 7 of 8 

Atlantic Avenue, questioned whether the process would remain the same for code complaints and 276 
if the process would be expedited. Attorney Shepard addressed her questions while emphasizing 277 
that with the Special Magistrate, there should be no concern for anything less than an efficient 278 
process. Rick Fuess, 46 Ashley, stated that as a member of the Code Enforcement Board, he sees 279 
the merit in transitioning to a Special Magistrate. Barbara Davis, 4871 Sailfish Drive, explained 280 
how she supports a Special Magistrate to provide more efficiency in the code enforcement process. 281 
Pete Finch, 106 Rains Drive, explained his history with being appointed to the Code Enforcement 282 
Board and voiced his support to transition to a Special Magistrate.  283 
 284 
Council directed staff to draft an ordinance to transition from the Code Board to a Special 285 
Magistrate. 286 
 287 

C. Discussion – Purchasing thresholds – Mr. Disher explained this item is a 288 
continuation from a discussion presented at last month’s Town Council meeting and proceeded to 289 
explain the Town’s current purchasing thresholds. He stated the threshold for purchases by the 290 
Town Manager has been $25,000 since 2006, other than between 2009 to 2018 when it was reduced 291 
to $10,000 due to the “Great Recession.” From staff’s research of cities around Volusia County, 292 
he stated there did not seem to be much correlation between purchasing thresholds and population 293 
size. Council discussed the amounts they would be comfortable raising the purchasing threshold 294 
to. There was a consensus that $50,000 would be appropriate.  295 
 296 
Mayor Paritsky opened public participation – hearing none, public participation was closed.   297 
 298 
Council directed staff to amend the purchasing threshold regulations to allow the Town Manager 299 
to make purchases up to $50,000. 300 
 301 

D. Request to change the December 2024 Regular Town Council meeting date. – 302 
(item 13-D withdrawn by request) 303 
 304 
14. FROM THE TOWN COUNCIL: 305 
 306 

A. Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 – Vice-Mayor Smith stated this meeting is a great 307 
example of how meetings should run with public participation and decorum.    308 
 309 

B. Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 – Councilmember Villanella agreed with 310 
Vice-Mayor Smith’s comments stating the dialogue between all was outstanding.   311 

 312 
C. Councilmember White, Seat #3 – Councilmember White echoed the previous 313 

comments and thanked the public for their discussion regarding the budget. Councilmember White 314 
requested an update to the Jeff Miller memorial and Mr. Disher explained the town is currently 315 
waiting for the bench to be delivered. He also requested an update to when the Ponce Preserve 316 
boardwalk would reopen. Chief Scales explained they are looking at quotes and that contractors 317 
have advised it may take up to four weeks to gather the materials needed for the project; however, 318 
it should only take roughly 30 days to complete the work. Chief Scales explained the figures that 319 
came with the request for the new fire truck in the upcoming budget cycle and provided updates 320 
to those figures.  321 



 

   
Town Council   July 18, 2024 
Regular Meeting Minutes   Page 8 of 8 

 322 
D. Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 – Councilmember Milano shared a story 323 

regarding a homeless veteran that was helped by the First Step Shelter. In August this person will 324 
be placed in housing for the first time in 24 years.  325 
 326 

E. Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 – Mayor Paritsky explained she represented the town as 327 
a speaker at the Florida Bar Association meeting where she described how the town has prioritized 328 
animal welfare. She then spoke on the recent board training session provided by her and the Clerk’s 329 
office, and explained the information presented. She re-iterated her appreciation for all board 330 
members, volunteers, and those who attended. Mayor Paritsky stated she is honored to be 331 
representing Ponce Inlet at the upcoming Florida League of Mayors Mental Health and Veterans 332 
Seminar.   333 

 334 
15. FROM THE TOWN MANAGER – Mr. Disher stated the County has requested a 335 
consensus from the Town Council to allow staging of the annual Christmas Parade at Lighthouse 336 
Point Park as part of the organizers’ application.  337 
 338 
Council by consensus indicated support for Christmas Parade staging at Lighthouse Point Park. 339 
 340 
Mr. Disher stated the police department would be conducting another crosswalk detail at 341 
Winterhaven Park on July 30, 2024. The fire department will be hosting a water rescue training at 342 
the County dog beach. He reminded everyone that the Volusia County Coastal Division will be 343 
hosting a meeting at the Ponce Inlet Community Center on July 30, 2024 regarding easements for 344 
sand and dune restoration. 345 
 346 
16. FROM THE TOWN ATTORNEY – Attorney Shepard provided an analogy regarding 347 
setting preliminary millage rates for future consideration. 348 
 349 
17. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION (on items 14 – 16 only) – Mayor Paritsky opened public 350 
participation – Mark Oebbecke, 4758 South Peninsula Drive, thanked Council for their consensus 351 
regarding the Christmas parade. Public participation was closed.   352 
 353 
18. ADJOURNMENT – Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at 5:01 P.M. 354 
 355 
Respectfully submitted by: 356 
 357 
 DRAFT               358 
Kim Cherbano, CMC, Town Clerk 359 
Prepared by: Stephanie Gjessing, Assistant Deputy Clerk 360 
 361 
Attachment(s): Presentation from Mr. Rutledge 362 



S:UiPM Tw.M16 

FIGURES 

..... - - - fl'IP - .... - -

....... .. 
�-�•Cid"" 

I
---
-- .. 
--
---
--

---

)
__ ..., 

u::...-:::;:.... 
... IM: ..... � 
--- "" 

... l ,..,, 

,..,. • 

Figu<e 1. 

S.-46PM T'lit.M18-

.... - -

Bal lr&t poailxlm !or HumcMW Ian. 23--10 September 2022. Track& cbirV lhe •� 1119.,.. palliMly bued on 
snalyNII Imm 1h11 NOAA Welllher Pnidiction Germ. 

•w:.tlMil.llH 

Humcanetan 

NHC Storm Surge M./llysis (AGL) 





















Town Council Budget Workshop Minutes 
7/16/2024 Page 1 of 5 

Town of Ponce Inlet 1 

Town Council  2 

Budget Workshop Minutes 3 
July 16, 2024 4 

5 
1. CALL TO ORDER:  Pursuant to proper notice, Mayor Paritsky called the meeting to 6 
order at 10:00 a.m. in the Council Chambers at 4300 South Atlantic Avenue, Ponce Inlet, Florida. 7 

8 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  Led by Mayor Paritsky. 9 

10 
3. ROLL CALL: 11 

Town Council: 12 
Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1  13 
Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 14 
Councilmember White, Seat #3  15 
Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 16 
Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5 17 

18 
Staff Members Present: 19 
Mr. Disher, Town Manager 20 
Ms. Dowling, HR Coordinator 21 
Mr. Dunlap, Acting Public Works Director 22 
Ms. Gatrost, Public Works Office Manager 23 
Chief Glazier, Police Chief 24 
Ms. Hugler, Fire Department Office Manager 25 
Ms. Manchester, Police Department Office Manager 26 
Ms. McColl, Finance Director 27 
Mr. Okum, IT Director 28 
Ms. Pierce, Planning & Development Office Manager 29 
Ms. Rippey, Principal Planner 30 
Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 31 
Ms. Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 32 

33 
4. Proposed Budget for FY 2024/25 – Mr. Disher provided a presentation and a summary 34 
of the assumed expenses and priorities. He noted that property values have increased by 9.07%, 35 
with the proportion of homesteaded properties remaining the same as last year at 47%. The capital 36 
purchases were outlined in the budget memo and discussed at the last budget workshop and include 37 
items such as the new fire truck, etc. Capital projects include the septic-to-sewer project. He 38 
provided an overview of key services, and what each department provides regarding public safety, 39 
infrastructure, information technology, planning and development, administration, and cultural 40 
services. Mr. Disher reviewed the tax base and noted it is used to calculate the projected revenue 41 
when compiling the budget. The 2024 gross taxable value is $1.3 million, and each .10 mills is 42 
expected to generate $126,844. The current millage rate is 6.2779 and would yield $7.9 million if 43 
it remains the same; this is $601,496 more than the rolled-back rate. The proposed millage rate of 44 
6.6250 would generate $8.4 million and would be $440,277 above the current millage rate and 45 
$1.04 million above the rolled-back rate. He explained the projected general fund revenue by 46 
source, noting that 79% comes from ad valorem taxes. He reviewed a 2023 comparison of general 47 

Item 7-D

https://ponceinlet-my.sharepoint.com/:b:/g/personal/dstewart_ponce-inlet_org/EYzRyEiDO6JMpNtxcIxIzToB281lmKGKZAnPvCq__S39fQ?e=qwFXaK


 

Town Council  Budget Workshop Minutes 
7/16/2024  Page 2 of 5 

fund ad valorem revenue to other Volusia County jurisdictions; Ponce Inlet was significantly above 48 
the other jurisdictions with 62% of its revenue coming from ad valorem taxes. He reviewed the 49 
proposed FY 2024/25 budget summary including the projected revenue, sources, and expenditures. 50 
The Town’s budget also includes special funds outside of the general fund; he explained some are 51 
restrictive and can only be used for specific things; others are created for funds that are received 52 
such as the gas tax. Other special funds are for special projects like the septic-to-sewer project, 53 
and some are related to specific operations. He went over the general fund expenditures by 54 
department, noting that 47% of expenses are related to the Police and Fire Departments. Mr. Disher 55 
explained that Ponce Inlet’s tax bill to residents is only one-third of their complete tax bill. He 56 
reviewed the historic millage rates for the last ten years and the proposed millage rate estimates, 57 
explaining how much revenue each would be expected to generate, including the roll-back rate. 58 
The maximum millage rate for a simple majority vote is 5.69%; the budget has been balanced at 59 
6.625% and requires a super majority vote; anything above 6.7473% would require a unanimous 60 
vote.  61 

Mr. Disher explained the priorities were developed with the Essential Services Advisory Board 62 
(ESAB); they are required by ordinance to make budget recommendations on items relating to 63 
Public Works, Fire and Police. He explained the process staff and the ESAB goes through to 64 
provide a priority list. He reviewed the priority list as it stood as of March; in June, they reviewed 65 
the request for the Public Works Building “B” replacement as it had been identified as unusable 66 
due to deterioration. It is important to remember that not all projects are funded with ad valorem 67 
taxes which include the Public Works Building “B” project (Land Acquisition fund) and the septic-68 
to-sewer project among other projects. The proposed budget has been balanced based on the higher 69 
level of service; it includes a list of projects, equipment, maintenance, and professional services, 70 
which totals $939,500. The impact of the 6.625 millage rate was provided in the budget memo 71 
along with a lower level of service millage rate of 6.2779 for comparison. He reviewed the 72 
unfunded requests which include a Public Works maintenance technician; the Ponce Preserve 73 
gazebo roof replacement (3 of 6); Fire Department replacement cascade system and bunker gear 74 
dryer; and Police Department golf cart. The Council will be asked to set a millage rate at July’s 75 
regularly scheduled Town Council meeting, which is typically set at the higher level. He explained 76 
that once it is set, you cannot go higher, but you can lower it if needed before the budget is 77 
approved in September. He asked for the Council’s input.  78 

Mayor Paritsky thanked Mr. Disher for a comprehensive, detailed, and understandable 79 
presentation. She reiterated that this is a workshop, and that a final millage rate is not being set 80 
today. She noted that any or all the items that may have a benefit or an impact on some but not all 81 
residents or sections of the community are something that must be looked at; this Council is 82 
responsible for the entire, incorporated municipality of Ponce Inlet. Since it was first incorporated 83 
in 1963, there have been and will always be resources allocated to individual sections of the 84 
community. For example, one of the items in the proposed budget is a new ladder truck for the 85 
Fire Department; at a cost of $1.8 million, it offers practically no benefit to the hundreds of single-86 
story homes in our town but will primarily service those who live in high-rise condominiums. The 87 
town recently completed a sewer and sidewalk project on Ponce de Leon Circle, and she stated 88 
that unless you live on that street, it does not benefit everyone. Several years ago, the Town assisted 89 
the residents at Old Carriage Road and Anchor Drive by supplementing the cost of engineering, 90 
surveying, and legal research for their dredging project. The comprehensive septic-to-sewer 91 



 

Town Council  Budget Workshop Minutes 
7/16/2024  Page 3 of 5 

projects are another example. Other examples include resurfacing tennis and pickleball courts, 92 
kayak landings, and the Veteran’s Memorial. Mayor Paritsky explained the point is we should not 93 
apply the test of whether a particular item benefits the entire town; rather, we must consider the 94 
entire town as a single incorporated municipality. She opened the discussion to the Council. 95 

Councilmember White stated the two most important tasks a sitting councilmember undertakes 96 
each year are policy making and the Town budget process. These tasks are never taken lightly as 97 
it is their sworn duty to make the critical tasks open and available to everyone. One aspect he hopes 98 
to accomplish today is, as a Town Council and staff, to not only look at the FY 2024/25 budget 99 
but also understand how important budget items impact Ponce Inlet’s financial future for years to 100 
come. We must not only look at one year’s budget as citizens and Councilmembers but look at the 101 
next ten years; can we afford what we are asking, requesting, and approving to do. 102 

Councilmember Villanella complimented staff on the enormous detail provided in the proposed 103 
budget. He does not have any concerns; he has reviewed the budget line-by-line and although there 104 
are a few line items that may raise a question mark, once investigated it is determined it is 105 
something needed, such as the fire truck. He stated Mayor Paritsky provided a great example of 106 
single-family homes versus condos; it is the whole town. We must make the best decisions for the 107 
whole town. 108 

Councilmember Milano referred to the ten-year historic millage rate graph, and stated he has been 109 
on the Council for all those years. In 2014/15, the operating budget was approximately $5.2 110 
million; if you take that $5.2 million and calculate the inflation rate into it, that amount would be 111 
almost $7 million today. In 2014/15, there were only three firefighters per shift; now there are 112 
seven additional firefighters. There were eight total police officers and there are now fifteen. 113 
Services and protection have been increased for everyone. He made a mistake one year and voted 114 
for lowering the millage to the roll-back rate; doing that took the Town’s reserves from eight 115 
months to four months. It is required by law to have between four and nine months. He will not 116 
make that mistake again. He will do everything in his power as a Councilmember to ask for a super 117 
majority millage so it can be adjusted down as we have previously done. People talk about how 118 
the town is spending more money, but the residents get wonderful services. We are correcting 119 
things like the stormwater project, the fire hydrants are up to date, the fire truck is up to date, and 120 
making sure we are providing proper equipment, so the employees are not injured on the job. 121 
Mayor Paritsky added  there is also an increase in our property values, so residents are getting a 122 
return on their investment there as well. Councilmember Milano referred to the recent article 123 
announcing Ponce Inlet as the safest small town in Florida; he congratulated the staff for that 124 
designation.  125 

Vice Mayor Smith agreed; the Council has always discussed safety and it has been paid back by 126 
receiving that designation. It is an honor to say we are the safest small town in the state of Florida. 127 
Mayor Paritsky asked if there was anything specific Councilmembers wanted to add or delete from 128 
the proposed budget. Councilmember Milano noted he is comfortable with a super majority 129 
millage because of the unfunded priorities since they are safety items. He recounted a memory of 130 
a firefighter trying to get a resident from a second story unit out, and he did not have the power 131 
load stretcher when it was needed; that was not the only time it was needed. He referred to the 132 
gazebo roof replacement and noted that it is also a safety issue; we need to be proactive not 133 



 

Town Council  Budget Workshop Minutes 
7/16/2024  Page 4 of 5 

reactive. He stated let the Council have the super majority vote millage, and have staff come back 134 
with what they need and a straight millage rate. 135 

Councilmember White stated he is not in favor of the 6.625 millage rate; he reviewed the proposed 136 
budget and met with staff last week to go over it. He was happy to see some of what was discussed 137 
then included in Mr. Disher’s presentation; he does not want anyone to think he is not in favor of 138 
supporting the Town. However, he needs to think about the future – he stated we would be in a 139 
difficult situation with no way of getting out based on this budget if we did not have 9% increase 140 
in our property values. He is not saying that we do not need the things proposed in the budget; 141 
however, sometimes we need to take a step back and digest what has been done. Discussion ensued 142 
regarding the proposed budget, service levels, impact of millage rates, and unfunded needs. It was 143 
explained that the fire truck is a lease/purchase; in March, the $80,000 was a down-payment on a 144 
new fire truck to be ordered with a three-year wait time; since then, an opportunity has arisen to 145 
purchase a demo fire truck, which is available immediately, and is less money; there has been a 146 
price increase to build a new one.   147 

Councilmember White referred to Public Works Building “B”; it is $275,000 and is not affecting 148 
the millage rate for FY 2024/25, but it is important to tell the citizens what they are getting for that 149 
$275,000. The amount started at $150,000 and has increased to the $275,000. Chief Scales 150 
explained the initial numbers were best guess numbers; however, after reviewing it and comparing 151 
to other projects completed in the past, it was not accurate; $50,000 is design, architectural, and 152 
engineering; the remaining amount would be for demolition, relocation of the generator, and 153 
construction of a new building. Mr. Disher added the numbers have fluctuated over time; the locker 154 
rooms, and other items that had been proposed with a parking lot expansion have been combined 155 
with the new building except for the parking lot. Councilmember White asked for confirmation 156 
that these funds are from the land acquisition fund, which is restricted. Mr. Disher explained yes; 157 
for a public building which can include any component of that building. Councilmember White 158 
asked if any unused funds from that $275,000 would have to be returned to the land acquisition 159 
fund. Chief Scales confirmed that they would. Discussion continued regarding the budget line 160 
items. Mayor Paritsky asked if Vice-Mayor Smith had any questions or concerns with what is 161 
presented. Vice-Mayor Smith stated he is comfortable with the proposed millage rate; staff has 162 
justified that rate, there is a reason for everything in the budget, and he is comfortable with it as 163 
presented. Mayor Paritsky agreed that she is also comfortable with it as presented. Councilmember 164 
Villanella stated he is satisfied with the way it is presented, he likes the items included, and 165 
appreciates the detail. He understands that things will fluctuate during any budget year; this is a 166 
minimal moving target. Councilmember Milano stated that some of the unfunded items are 167 
significant; the chosen millage needs to be considered and it needs not to be a number where we 168 
cannot fit those unfunded items in. We did that once before and it took months of our reserves to 169 
balance the budget the following year. The number can always start higher and then be lowered; 170 
this needs a super majority vote.  171 

Mayor Paritsky asked what millage rate the Council would be comfortable with. Discussion 172 
continued regarding the proposed millage rate, projected revenue, proposed budget line items and 173 
the reserves.  Mayor Paritsky reiterated that property values have increased, people have an 174 
investment in this town and their real estate, and they are getting a return. People move to the 175 
Town of Ponce Inlet for a reason; there is an expectation for the services that Ponce Inlet provides. 176 
Councilmember White disagreed and stated that he is being told by residents to hold the millage 177 



 

Town Council  Budget Workshop Minutes 
7/16/2024  Page 5 of 5 

rate where it is. Mayor Paritsky asked Councilmember White how many residents reached out; 178 
Councilmember White responded six this morning on the beach. Discussion continued. 179 
Councilmember Villanella noted that the difference they are discussing is an average of an 180 
additional $31 per month, or $440 per year. 181 

Mayor Paritsky opened public comment. Charles Burge, 4670 Links Village Drive, stated he 182 
agrees with Councilmember White and disagrees with Mayor Paritsky regarding Anchor Drive 183 
and Ponce de Leon Circle; insurance companies base rates on the crime statistics, fire department 184 
rates, and our flood plain. When you try to rectify a flood plain situation or put in infrastructure, it 185 
affects resident’s insurance rates and the town. He feels comments were directed at him regarding 186 
funding a private equity concern; and a 6.747 millage rate to fund fire department equipment and 187 
stretchers, he agrees with; but he does not agree to fund a private equity concern. Therefore, he 188 
agrees with Councilmember White; but when a cap is set, he asked how many times in history has 189 
it been lowered. Councilmember Milano stated he does not remember a time it has not been 190 
lowered from the higher rate. Vice-Mayor Smith agreed and explained this discussion is had every 191 
year; it has always started high and then decreased because they will have had time to review 192 
everything and sharpen their pencils. They want the flexibility; every year this discussion is had 193 
and every year the rate starts high and then is reduced selectively by what can be taken out of the 194 
budget. This is why he always starts with the rate staff asks for. Mr. Burge stated that if the Council 195 
has line-item veto, there are items he would like stricken that he feels very adamant about. 196 
Discussion ensued regarding the proposed beach walkover request for Harbour Village and 197 
alternative suggestions. Mr. Burge stated he feels everything on the list is more important than that 198 
walkover and that there should be more for disabled people and veterans. Mayor Paritsky added 199 
that the request for the beach walkover was made by the elected board members of Harbour Village 200 
on behalf of 670 people that are residents in our town.   201 
 202 
Mr. Disher stated it is always the goal of staff to make the budget as tight as possible while 203 
providing the level of service the residents expect; it is ultimately the Council’s budget that staff 204 
prepares. Staff received the input needed and will prepare it for Council, who will vote on Thursday 205 
for a maximum millage rate, and then work down from there. The first reading of the budget and 206 
tentative millage rate will be in the beginning of September and the final reading will be at the 207 
September Council meeting.  208 
 209 
6.  ADJOURNMENT.  Mayor Paritsky adjourned the meeting at 11:37 a.m. 210 
 211 
Respectfully submitted by: 212 
 213 
 DRAFT       214 
Kim Cherbano, Town Clerk 215 
 216 
Prepared by: Debbie Stewart, Assistant Deputy Clerk 217 
 218 
Attachment(s): July Budget Workshop Presentation 219 



7/19/2024

1

PONCE INLET
BUDGET
WORKSHOP

July 16, 2024

RECAP

Assumptions
• General Fund Operating Reserves – currently at 6 months 

• Hurricane Expenses – All but $58,250 out of $655,947 reimbursed

• Rising Costs – 8 new staff positions added last year; but less increase in 
insurance, wages, and benefits this year

• Obligations - $1.7 million in loan payments and grant matches, not including 
septic-to-sewer loan

• Revenue – Increasing property values, up 9.07%

• Tax Base – Proportion of homesteaded properties same as last year at 47%

• Utility Fees –

• Water and sewer rates raised last year per rate sufficiency study. 

• Port Orange is raising sewer rates again, which Ponce Inlet must match.

• Stormwater utility fee – data collection in progress. Must be adopted by 
ordinance after rate study.

27/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

1

2



7/19/2024

2

RECAP

Priorities
• Capital Purchases (equipment) - $444,000 in Police, Fire, and Public Works

• Capital Projects (construction) - $5,780,000, including septic-to-sewer Ph. 1

• Maintenance Activities - $75,000, including Harbour Village boardwalk 
contribution

• Professional Services - $28,500 salary survey

• New Personnel – $0

• Other - $362,589

• TOTAL – $6,690,089

37/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

OVERVIEW

Key Services
• Public Safety

• Infrastructure

• Planning & 
Development 

• Administration

• Cultural Services

Budget and Tax Environment
• Tax Base
• Projected Revenue
• Revenue Sources 
• Local Government Ad 

Valorem %
• Budget Summary
• Reserve Analysis
• Breakdown by Department
• Historic Millage Rates
• Complete Tax Bill
• Millage Rate Estimates

Service Levels
• ESAB Priorities
• Not funded by Ad 

Valorem
• High
• Low
• Impacts
• Unfunded Requests
• Summary

Millage Rate? Next Steps

47/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

3

4



7/19/2024

3

KEY SERVICES – PUBLIC SAFETY

57/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

KEY SERVICES – PUBLIC SAFETY

67/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

5

6



7/19/2024

4

KEY SERVICES – INFRASTRUCTURE

77/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

KEY SERVICES – INFRASTRUCTURE

87/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

7

8



7/19/2024

5

KEY SERVICES – PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT

97/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

KEY SERVICES – ADMINISTRATION

107/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

9

10



7/19/2024

6

KEY SERVICES – CULTURAL SERVICES

117/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

TAX BASE (+/-) = CHANGE FROM LAST YEAR

Total number of households in Ponce Inlet
Single Family = 1,210 (+11)
Condominiums = 1,990
Total = 3,200 (+11)

Number of homesteaded households In Ponce Inlet – 47% of total
Single Family = 832 (+8)
Condominiums = 665 (-13)
Total = 1,497 (-5)

Number of non-homesteaded households in Ponce Inlet – 53% of total
Single Family = 378 (+3)
Condominiums = 1,325 (+13)
Total = 1,703 (+16)

Median taxable value of a home in Ponce Inlet
Single Family = $362,890 (+$34,817)
Condominiums = $338,800 (+$28,356)
Overall = $343,558 (+$27,046)

127/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

11

12



7/19/2024

7

PROJECTED REVENUE

Property Values

• 2024 gross taxable value is $1,335,204,947.

• 9.07% increase over current year’s revenues. 

• Each 0.10 mills is expected to generate $126,844. 

• If millage remains at current rate of 6.2779, would yield $7,963,169 (at 95% 
collection rate).

• This is $601,496 more than from the rolled-back rate of 5.8037 mills.

• The proposed millage rate of 6.6250 would generate $8,403,446 (at 95% collection 
rate).

• This is $440,277 above the current FY 23-24 millage rate and $1,041,773 above the 
rolled-back rate. 

137/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

PROJECTED GENERAL FUND REVENUE BY SOURCE

147/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

13

14



7/19/2024

8

COMPARISON OF GENERAL FUND AD VALOREM REVENUE

62%

45%

42%

42%

41%

39%

39%

37%

36%

35%

33%

32%

30%

30%

26%

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70%

Ponce Inlet

Volusia County

D.B. Shores

South Daytona

Holly Hill

Edgewater

Orange City

Ormond Beach

DeLand

Port Orange

Deltona

Daytona Beach

DeBary

Lake Helen

Pierson

2023 Volusia County Cities Ad Valorem % of General Fund Revenue

157/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

FY 24/25 BUDGET SUMMARY
FY 23/24 BUDGET SUMMARY

RevenuesGeneral Fund:

78.75%$      8,493,446 Ad Valorem

3.66%$         394,480 Sales & Use Taxes

3.18%$         343,436 Charges for Services

1.10%$         118,200 Intergovernmental Revenue

0.20%$           21,700 Fines & Forfeitures

7.74%$         834,620 Licenses, Permits, & Fees

2.40%$         259,000 Interest Earnings

1.84%$         198,493 Misc: Grants & Reimbursements

0.64%$           68,752 Reserves

0.49%$           52,751 Transfers In

100.00%$   10,784,878 Total Revenue

Expenditures

4.46%$         481,285 
Legislative (includes $160,880 transfers out & $60,000 
contingency)

11.14%$      1,201,399 Administration (includes $39,584 transfer out)

1.90%$         205,000 Legal

5.80%$         625,957 
Planning & Zoning (includes $170,000 to S. Peninsula Sidewalk 
Fund transfer out)

7.13%$         769,020 Information Technology

21.59%$      2,328,745 Police

24.94%$      2,689,801 Fire 

9.54%$      1,028,962 Building & Code

8.46%$         911,935 Public Works

5.03%$         542,775 Parks & Recreation

100.00%$   10,784,878 Total Expenditures

167/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

15

16



7/19/2024

9

FY 24/25 BUDGET SUMMARY

Special Funds:
$           85,000 Old Gas Tax
$           46,200 New Gas Tax

$             2,700 Donations
$                      -Hurricane Ian
$           25,000 Disaster Recovery
$           12,000 Tree Bank
$           15,000 Sidewalk
$             3,000 Parks & Recreation

$           49,180 Community Center
$         115,500 Historical Museum
$             2,000 Police Education
$         156,586 Stormwater Improvements Loan Repayment
$         327,947 Town Hall Loan Repayment
$         643,557 Land Acquisition Fund
$         210,000 Capital Fire Equipment 

$                      -Capital Facility Maintenance 
$                      -Ponce de Leon Sewer Project
$         156,550 Economic Impact Fund
$      1,091,837 South Peninsula Drive Sidewalk Project
$      5,200,000 Septic-to-Sewer Phase 1 & 2
$      1,964,877 Water Operating & Maintenance

$         195,900 Water Renewal & Replacement
$         486,300 Refuse
$      1,178,460 Sewer
$           27,950 Water Expansion
$           62,000 Water System Improvements Loan Repayment
$   12,057,544 Total Special Funds

177/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

RESERVE ANALYSIS

187/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

17

18



7/19/2024

10

GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES BY DEPARTMENT

197/18/23BUDGET WORKSHOP

HISTORIC MILLAGE RATES

6.5

6.1536
5.7922 5.79

5.65

5.9 5.9 5.9 5.9

5.3

6.2779

6.625

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

FY 13/14 FY 14/15 FY 15/16 FY 16/17 FY 17/18 FY 18/19 FY 19/20 FY 20/21 FY 21/22 FY 22/23 FY 23/24 FY 24/25

M
ill

s

Fiscal Year

Historic Millage Rates FY 13/14 to FY 24/25

207/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

19

20



7/19/2024

11

COMPLETE TAX BILL

County Operating

28.34%

County Debt Service

2.15%

Volusia County Schools

29.08%

St. Johns River WMD

0.96%

FL Inland Navigation District

0.15%

Hospital

4.24%

Mosquito Control District

0.96%

Ponce de Leon Inlet & Port 

Authority

0.37%

Ponce Inlet

33.75%

FY 2023 Ponce Inlet Tax Bill % of Total Millage Rate

County Operating

County Debt Service

Volusia County Schools

St. Johns River WMD

FL Inland Navigation District

Hospital

Mosquito Control District

Ponce de Leon Inlet & Port

Authority

217/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

MILLAGE RATE ESTIMATES

5.8037Current year estimated rolled back-rate

Proposed millage scenarios based on preliminary estimates:
% Increase over 

RBR95% Proceeds
Ad Valorem 

ProceedsProposed Millage Rate

20.61%8,879,1139,346,4357.0000
19.75%8,815,6919,279,6746.9500

19.32%8,783,9809,246,2946.9250
18.89%8,752,2689,212,9146.9000
17.17%8,625,4249,079,3946.8000

Max for super majority vote16.26%8,558,5779,009,0286.7473
15.44%8,498,5798,945,8736.7000
14.58%8,435,1578,879,1136.6500

Proposed FY 24/25 millage rate14.15%8,403,4468,845,7336.6250
13.72%8,371,7358,812,3536.6000

13.55%8,359,0518,799,0016.5900
12.00%8,244,8918,678,8326.5000
10.27%8,118,0468,545,3126.4000

8.55%7,991,2028,411,7916.3000
Adopted FY 23/24 millage rate8.17%7,963,1698,382,2836.2779

6.83%7,864,3578,278,2716.2000

Max for simple majority vote5.69%7,780,5138,190,0146.1339
5.10%7,737,5138,144,7506.1000
3.38%7,610,6688,011,2306.0000

1.66%7,483,8247,877,7095.9000
-0.06%7,356,9797,744,1895.8000

Roll-back rate0.00%7,361,6737,749,1295.8037
-0.17%7,349,4957,736,3115.7941
-1.79%7,230,1357,610,6685.7000

-2.65%7,166,7137,543,9085.6500
-3.51%7,103,2907,477,1485.6000

227/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

21

22



7/19/2024

12

PRIORITIES – ESAB RECOMMENDATION
AS OF MARCH 7, 2024

Previous

Priority

CommentCostFiscal YearDept.RequestPriority

--Completion of project started in FY 23/24 (not on last year’s list, added 

by Town Council)

$180,00024-25PWStormwater one-way valve 

installation, Phase 2

1

23/24

#5

Needed to restore 1 crew to previous size (4). Split 50% with Water 

Enterprise Fund

$30,00024-25 

(mid-year)

PW1 Water system personnel2

--Initial down payment. 2-3 year build time from order date. Lease to 

own, w/ annual payments

$80,00024-25FDReplacement fire truck/ 

apparatus

3

--Town council goal. Previously recommended by ESAB in 2022. Not 

included last year. 

$80,00024-25PDPublic safety vessel4

23/24

#6

$52,00024-25 FD2nd set of fire-fighting gear5

--Safety issue. Deferred from past two budgets, $25,000 in FY 22/23, 

$45,000 in FY 23/24. 

$65,00024-25PWMuseum boardwalk 

replacement

6

--Needed to optimize service delivery for 2nd patient transport vehicle$50,00024-25FDBack-up power load stretcher7

24/25

#1

$60,00024-25FDReplacement cascade system8

237/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

NOT FUNDED BY FY 24/25 AD VALOREM

To be funded FY 23/24 ($41,500)
• Replacement plotter/scanner $11,000
• Portable message board (1) $19,000
• Public Works gate motors $11,000

Funded from other revenue sources ($5,604,000)
• Automatic water line flushers (3) - Water R&R fund $45,000
• Replacement fire hydrants, valves, and meters – Water R&R fund $68,000
• Public Works Building “B” – Land Acquisition fund $275,000
• Septic-to-Sewer project, Phase 1 – FDEP SRF Loan $5,200,000
• Tree replenishment plan – Tree Mitigation Bank $8,000
• Hazardous waste pick-up and paper shredding – Refuse fund $8,000

To be deferred to future year ($49,302)
• Hosting Volusia League of Cities dinner (FY 25/26) $8,900
• CivicPlus agenda management software $14,300
• Additional leased vehicles (2 of 3) $26,102

TOTAL $5,694,802
Total without septic-to-sewer $494,802

247/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

23

24



7/19/2024

13

HIGHER SERVICE LEVEL – 6.6250 MILLS

Equipment ($374,000)

• Quint 75’ ladder truck $210,000 (1st year of 10)

• Replacement fire hose $29,000

• Back-up power load stretcher $45,000

• Public safety vessel $40,000 (+$40,000 grant)

• Fire Department generator $35,000 (+$35,000 grant)

• Additional security cameras at parks (6) $15,000

Projects ($314,000)

• Museum boardwalk replacement $35,000

• S. Peninsula sidewalk project (transfer to 311 fund) $170,000

• Storm drain one-way valves, Phase 2 $100,000

• Utility box art wrap $9,000

Maintenance/Repair ($143,000)

• Stormwater pond excavation $50,000

• Harbour Village public access boardwalk contribution $25,000 (final $ TBD)

• Museum fence repair and painting $35,000

• Repair and resurface tennis court $15,000

• Landscaping and gutters at Community Center $18,000

Professional Services ($108,500)

• Salary Survey $28,500

• Government Affairs consultant and financial auditors $80,000

TOTAL $939,500

257/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

IMPACT OF 6.6250 MILLAGE RATE
General Maximum Impact of Millage Rate - FY 24/25

6.625Proposed Rate

6.2779Prior year tax rate

Homesteaded Properties currently assessed below market value

Proposed 2024- Ponce Inlet Taxes2023 - Ponce Inlet Taxes

Difference
Taxes Paid 
to Ponce

Minus 
$50,000 

Homestead
3% Assessed 

Increase
Taxes Paid 
to Ponce

Minus 
Homestead

Assessed Taxable 
Value

$528 $6,493 $980,000 $1,030,000 $5,964 $950,000 $1,000,000 

$392 $4,787 $722,500 $772,500 $4,395 $700,000 $750,000 

$256 $3,081 $465,000 $515,000 $2,825 $450,000 $500,000 

$187 $2,228 $336,250 $386,250 $2,040 $325,000 $375,000 

$119 $1,375 $207,500 $257,500 $1,256 $200,000 $250,000 

Non-Homesteaded Properties currently assessed at prior year market rate

Proposed 2024 - Ponce Inlet Taxes2023 - Ponce Inlet Taxes

Difference
Taxes Paid 
to Ponce

10% Increase 
(Average 

Townwide)
Taxes Paid 
to Ponce

Assessed Taxable 
Value

$1,010 $7,288 $1,100,000 $6,278 $1,000,000 

$757 $5,466 $825,000 $4,708 $750,000 

$505 $3,644 $550,000 $3,139 $500,000 

$379 $2,733 $412,500 $2,354 $375,000 

$252 $1,822 $275,000 $1,569 $250,000 

267/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

25

26



7/19/2024

14

LOWER SERVICE LEVEL – 6.2779 MILLS

Equipment ($223,000)

• Quint 75’ ladder truck $159,000 (1st year of 10, no downpayment)

• Replacement fire hose $29,000

• Fire Department generator $35,000 (+$35,000 grant)

Projects ($170,000)

• S. Peninsula sidewalk project (transfer to 311 fund) $170,000

Maintenance/Repair ($73,000)

• Stormwater pond excavation $50,000

• Repair and resurface tennis court $15,000

• Gutters at Community Center $8,000

Professional Services ($108,500)

• Salary Survey $28,500

• Government Affairs consultant and financial auditors $80,000

TOTAL $574,500

277/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

IMPACT OF 6.2779 MILLAGE RATE

General Maximum Impact of Millage Rate - FY 24/25

6.2779Proposed Rate

6.2779Prior year tax rate

Homesteaded Properties currently assessed below market value

Proposed 2024- Ponce Inlet Taxes2023 - Ponce Inlet Taxes

Difference
Taxes Paid 
to Ponce

Minus 
$50,000 

Homestead
3% Assessed 

Increase
Taxes Paid 
to Ponce

Minus 
Homestead

Assessed Taxable 
Value

$188 $6,152 $980,000 $1,030,000 $5,964 $950,000 $1,000,000 

$141 $4,536 $722,500 $772,500 $4,395 $700,000 $750,000 

$94 $2,919 $465,000 $515,000 $2,825 $450,000 $500,000 

$71 $2,111 $336,250 $386,250 $2,040 $325,000 $375,000 

$47 $1,303 $207,500 $257,500 $1,256 $200,000 $250,000 

Non-Homesteaded Properties currently assessed at prior year market rate

Proposed 2024 - Ponce Inlet Taxes2023 - Ponce Inlet Taxes

Difference
Taxes Paid 
to Ponce

10% Increase 
(Average 

Townwide)
Taxes Paid 
to Ponce

Assessed Taxable 
Value

$628 $6,906 $1,100,000 $6,278 $1,000,000 

$471 $5,179 $825,000 $4,708 $750,000 

$314 $3,453 $550,000 $3,139 $500,000 

$235 $2,590 $412,500 $2,354 $375,000 

$157 $1,726 $275,000 $1,569 $250,000 

287/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

27

28



7/19/2024

15

UNFUNDED REQUESTS

• Public Works maintenance technician (mid-year) $30,000

• Ponce Preserve gazebo roof replacement (3 of 6) $35,000

• Fire Dept. replacement cascade system $60,000

• Fire Dept. bunker gear dryer $15,000

• Police Dept. low-speed vehicle (“golf cart”) $20,000

TOTAL $160,000

297/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

SUMMARY OF SERVICE LEVELS
LOWHIGH

6.27796.6250Cost

Equipment

$210,000 (1st year of 10)Quint 75’ ladder truck 

$29,000Replacement fire hose

$45,000Back-up power load stretcher

$40,000 (+$40,000 grant)Public safety vessel

$35,000 (+$35,000 grant)Fire Department generator

$15,000Additional security cameras at parks (6)

Projects

$35,000Museum boardwalk replacement 

$170,000 S. Peninsula sidewalk project (transfer to 311 fund)

$100,000Storm drain one-way valves, Phase 2

$9,000Utility box art wrap

Maintenance/Repair

$50,000 Stormwater pond excavation

$25,000Harbour Village public access boardwalk contribution 

$35,000Museum fence repair and painting

$15,000Repair and resurface tennis court

$18,000Landscaping and gutters at Community Center

Professional Services

$28,500 Salary Survey

$80,000Government Affairs consultant and financial auditors

$574,500$939,500TOTALS

307/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

29

30



7/19/2024

16

PROPOSED MILLAGE RATE?

317/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

1. What level of service and millage rate do you prefer?

2. Are there any specific items you wish to include or 
defer?

NEXT STEPS

July 18th

Town Council 
mtg – Proposed 
(Max) Millage 

Rate

Sept. 4th

1st Hearing –
Tentative Millage 
Rate and Budget 

Ord.

Sept. 19th

2nd Hearing – Final 
Millage Rate and 

Budget Ord. 
Adoption

Oct. 1st

New Fiscal Year 
Begins

327/16/24BUDGET WORKSHOP

7/16/24

31

32



7/19/2024

17

QUESTIONS?

33



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Request for Co-Sponsorship of the Friends of the Marine 

Science Center’s Ocean Harvest Market Event. 
 
Summary: Pursuant to Sec. 51-2 and Sec. 51-8(a)(1) & (2) of the 

Ponce Inlet Code of Ordinances, the applicant meets 
criteria for event co-sponsorship. The total cost absorbed 
by the Town would be $150 for waiving the Special Event 
permit application fee. 

 
Suggested motion:     Staff recommends approval of the co-sponsorship 

request as the criteria have been met. 
 
Requested by:       Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
 
Approved by:        Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   8-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community 
excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 

Date: August 12, 2024 

Subject: Request for Co-Sponsorship of the Friend’s of the Marine Science Center’s Ocean 
Harvest Market Event –September 28, 2024 

MEETING DATE:  August 22, 2024 

The Friends of the Marine Science Center will be hosting the Ocean Harvest Market as a fundraiser 
for the Marine Science Center on Saturday, September 28, 2024, from 10:00am until 5:00pm. This 
event will be held at the Ponce Inlet Community Center, with vendors inside selling coastal-themed 
items and poinsettias. Because it will also include food trucks, the event requires a Special Event 
permit from the Town. This is the first year for this event, and the organizers anticipate 500 people 
throughout the seven-hour timeframe. The Community Center holds its own liability insurance policy, 
of which the Town has a copy. The Friends group is requesting co-sponsorship of this event for waiver 
of the special event permit fee ($150).   

The Town updated its Special Event regulations on August 17, 2023, which includes new criteria for 
co-sponsorship approval, below.  

Sec. 51-2. – Definitions: Town-sponsored event 
Town-sponsored event means that the town, solely or as a co-sponsor of the event, produces 

and/or coordinates the event, or contributes town services, funds, staff, or aid of any kind as a co-
sponsor, after determining that the event:  

(a) Is planned, organized, and conducted by the Ponce Inlet Community Center Board, Inc.,
or any established not-for-profit organizations and clubs based in Ponce Inlet, such as
the Ponce Inlet Veterans Association, Ponce Inlet Lions Club, Ponce Inlet Garden Club,
Ponce Inlet Women’s Club, and the Ponce Inlet Art Guild, that annually provide a copy
of their currently valid IRS tax exemption certificate as an established 501(c)3
organization; and/or

(b) Has been traditionally co-sponsored by the Town as provided in Sec. 51-8(a).

Sec. 51-8(a)(1) & (2). – Co-sponsorship or co-sponsored event criteria and standards: 
(1) In addition to those long-standing events established by resolution, other events meeting the

definition of Town-sponsored event under Sec. 51-2 may be approved by the town council in
its sole discretion.

Item 8-A



 

  

(2) Full co-sponsorship for these events may include contributions of town services, funds, staff 
or aid of any kind as co-sponsor. 

 
Pursuant to Sec. 51-2. and Sec. 51-8(a)(1) & (2), the Ocean Harvest Market does meet the criteria for 
event co-sponsorship as the Friends of the Marine Science Center are an established not-for-profit 
organization based in Ponce Inlet. 
 
The applicant has submitted her request for co-sponsorship along with the special event permit 
application packet (Attachment 1). 
 
If the Town Council co-sponsors this event on the terms that the organizer is requesting, the total cost 
absorbed by the Town would be $150 for the Special Event permit application fee. 
 
SUMMARY: 
Request for co-sponsorship of the Friends of the Marine Science Center’s Ocean Harvest Market 
event scheduled for September 28, 2024; the request is for waiver of the special event permit fee 
($150).  
 
Staff recommends approval of the co-sponsorship request as the criteria have been met. 
 
 
                 August 12, 2024      
Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager                     Date 
 
Attachments:  

1. Application Packet_2024 Ocean Harvest Market 























 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Request for Council consensus to pursue an Attorney General 

Opinion on pre-emption of long-term rental regulations. 
 
Summary: See attached memorandum.  
 
Suggested motion:     At Council’s discretion. 
 
Requested by:       Drew Smith, Town Attorney’s office 
 
Approved by:        Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   8-B 



Item 8-B







 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Athletic Court Reservation System and Reasonable 

Modifications under the Americans with Disabilities Act. 
 
Summary: The purpose of this report is to provide suggested options 

for requested reasonable modifications made by 
individuals with disabilities regarding the Town’s court 
reservation system. Please see attached staff report and 
supporting documents for more information. 

 
Suggested motion:     As directed by the Town Council. 
 
Requested by:       Ms. Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
 
Approved by:        Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   8-C 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, CULTURAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence 
while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
From: Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager 
Date: August 14, 2024 
Subject: Discussion - Athletic Court Reservation System and Reasonable Modifications 

under the Americans with Disabilities Act 

MEETING DATE:  August 22, 2024 

Introduction: 1 
The purpose of this report is to provide suggested options for requested reasonable modifications 2 
made by individuals with disabilities regarding the Town’s court reservation system. This report 3 
discusses the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA); the potential liability of 10 suggested 4 
options provided by the public, Board members, and staff; the recommendation provided by the 5 
Cultural Services Board; and the legal and ADA analysis of the Board’s recommendation to Town 6 
Council. In providing this information, Staff is requesting direction from the Town Council on the 7 
appropriate path forward, balancing the appropriate level of modifications to ensure compliance 8 
with the ADA along with the acceptable level of risk. 9 

10 
Background: 11 
On March 18, 2024, a group of residents requested to meet with the Mayor and staff to discuss 12 
their concerns regarding the Town's online reservation system. These concerns were triggered by 13 
the temporary closure of the pickleball courts in Daytona Beach Shores for maintenance, and the 14 
subsequent influx of players from that city utilizing the Town’s courts and online reservation 15 
system. At the conclusion of that meeting, one of the residents submitted a written request for 16 
accommodation under the Americans with Disabilities Act for special access to the online 17 
reservation system. The request specifically was for staff to create outstanding reservations for this 18 
resident for specific time slots each week for an unstated length of time beyond when court 19 
reservations are ordinarily opened to the public. The request further suggested Town staff speak 20 
with the Town Attorney to verify the legality of this claim. 21 

22 
Through consultation with our Town Attorney, the subject request for advanced reservations 23 
beyond one week was found not to meet the legal requirements of a “reasonable modification” and 24 
would impose a “fundamental alteration,” as it does not provide the same opportunity to those 25 
without disabilities (see 4-22-24 email from Town Attorney Holli New, Attachment 1). However, 26 
even if a reasonable modification poses a fundamental alteration or undue burden on the Town, 27 
the Town must still take whatever reasonable action it can to ensure that the individuals with 28 

Item 8-C



Athletic Court Reservation System 
 
 

Page 2 of 5 
 

disabilities receive the same benefits (see 5-24-24 legal analysis by Town Attorney Holli New, 29 
Attachment 2). The Cultural Services Board met on May 6, 2024, and June 3, 2024, to discuss 30 
and obtain public input on this topic (Attachments 3 & 4). The requirements of the ADA are 31 
explained further below. 32 
 33 
Overview: 34 
Under Title II of the ADA, governmental entities have an obligation to provide full and equal 35 
enjoyment of its “benefits, services, programs and activities” to individuals with disabilities. The 36 
benefit in question is the Town’s on-line court reservation system. The system, run through a third-37 
party website known as “HoldMyCourt.com,” is accessed from the Town’s website. According to 38 
the Town Attorney, the Town must provide equal opportunity to all members of the public, “…to 39 
reserve a particular athletic court on a particular day at a particular time.” The Town’s 40 
responsibility under the ADA law is to offer alternative reservation methods upon request to those 41 
who cannot utilize the standard on-line method due to a disability. Governments that willfully 42 
ignore such requests or fail to address known compliance deficiencies can be subject to legal 43 
action. The Town Attorney states, “If a government fails to fulfill its obligations, an individual 44 
may seek enforcement by filing an administrative complaint with an appropriate Federal agency 45 
or commencing a private lawsuit” (Attachment 2). 46 
 47 
There are two separate requirements the Town must abide by with respect to ADA compliance:  48 

1. By April 2027, all content provided on the Town’s website, including reservation systems, 49 
must meet new federal technical standards, known as WCAG 2.1 Level AA. 50 

2. As of now, the Town must provide a reasonable modification to any public service it offers 51 
when a request for an accommodation is made.  52 

 53 
These requirements are not mutually exclusive. The Town Attorney has previously stated that 54 
complying with the new web site technical standards does not relieve it from its other obligations 55 
under the ADA.  56 
 57 
Therefore, even if staff finds an online reservation system that is fully compliant with the new 58 
technical standards, the Town’s standing legal obligation remains; upon request, staff must provide 59 
an individual with a disability a reasonable modification to access the online reservation system if 60 
that individual still cannot access it. 61 
 62 
Discussion:  63 
Since the distribution of the first staff report on this topic to the Cultural Services Board in May 64 
2024, there have been both public and internal discussions on 10 suggested options (summarized 65 
on Attachment 5) to provide reasonable modifications for the Town’s court reservation system. 66 
The 10 options were all assessed by staff and the Town Attorney, while option Nos.  3, 8, and 10 67 
were also reviewed by an ADA specialist. 68 
 69 
The Town employs two staff members to ensure ADA compliance is met. The Town’s ADA 70 
Coordinator is the staff liaison who reviews and directs ADA accommodation requests to the 71 
appropriate department. The Town’s website administrator ensures the Town’s website and posted 72 



Athletic Court Reservation System 
 
 

Page 3 of 5 
 

content, including documents and links, meets current accessibility requirements1. These Staff 73 
members are not experts on ADA law but do reference and uphold the standards stated in 74 
Resolution 2019-11 (Attachment 6). Staff members also consult with the Town Attorney’s office 75 
on questions of legal compliance and liability. 76 
 77 
The Town Attorney’s role in this topic to date has been to advise staff, the Cultural Services Board, 78 
and the public about the legal risks involved with each suggested option. To provide additional 79 
feedback from an ADA perspective, Staff also contacted a subject-matter expert from the 80 
Southeast ADA Center.  81 
 82 
Although this research began in response to an ADA complaint, the request for accommodation 83 
has since been withdrawn by the submitter on public record. There are currently no outstanding 84 
ADA complaints or reasonable modification requests pertaining to the Town’s online court 85 
reservation system. Nonetheless, the research conducted so far has brought to light a potential 86 
liability that needs to be addressed. 87 
 88 
As part of its research on this topic, Staff has investigated multiple on-line court reservation 89 
vendors. Staff has received several suggestions from the public as well. However, to date Staff has 90 
only found one online court reservation systems that is in full compliance now with the new 91 
WCAG 2.1 Level AA technical standards. This system, known as “Recreation Management,” is 92 
provided by the same vendor as the Town’s current website vendor, Civic Plus. The other systems 93 
reviewed were either not compliant or only partially compliant with the new requirements. 94 
Although the new federal rules grant the Town until April 2027 to come into compliance, the 95 
Recreation Management software is already compliant now. Compliant online court reservation 96 
systems are paid services, and to add this feature to our website would be approximately $12,500 97 
for the first year and $8,500 for each subsequent year. Civic Plus’s Recreation Management 98 
software allows staff to take online reservations for athletic courts as well as for town programs 99 
and pavilion rentals.  100 
 101 
Recommendations:  102 
Over the course of this work, recommendations have been provided from multiple sources, as 103 
follows: 104 
Cultural Services Board - At its June 3, 2024, meeting, the Board voted to recommend that the 105 
Town retain the current online athletic court reservation system; classify one court as open play 106 
only; provide a staffed phone line during Town business hours; and change the operating hours of 107 
the online reservation system to match the Town’s business hours. This recommendation combines 108 
aspects of Options #10, #3, and #8.  109 
 110 
Town Attorney - In Attachment 2, the Town Attorney provided her legal analysis for each of the 111 
10 suggested options for reasonable modifications, while her analysis of the Board’s 112 
recommendation is provided on Attachment 7. In both, she states that, “…each of the suggestions 113 
presented carries a different level of inherent risk.” The key takeaway in the Town Attorney’s 114 
analysis is the importance of, “…providing alternative reservation methods that offer features and 115 
functionality comparable to the immediacy and convenience of online reservations. The more 116 

 
1 The Town’s website contains accessibility features and guidance for anyone who has difficulty accessing the site. 



Athletic Court Reservation System 
 
 

Page 4 of 5 
 

comparable the experience, the less likely the Town will face legal challenges regarding 117 
accessibility under the ADA.” Based on the legal analysis, Option #1 for open play represents the 118 
lowest level of liability, since eliminating the on-line system altogether is the only way to 119 
completely eliminate the risk. However, based on the public comments, it is also the least popular 120 
option for the active regular players. 121 
 122 
ADA specialist - In Attachment 8, an ADA specialist also provided an analysis2 of the Board’s 123 
recommendation. She states that it would provide an equitable reasonable modification, “…in that 124 
people with and without disabilities have the same opportunity for access to reservations and get 125 
specific or desired time slots. If a person with a disability doesn’t get the desired time slot this is 126 
not relative to reasonable modification as people with and without disabilities have the same 127 
opportunity.” In this explanation, the ADA specialist states that the benefit in question is equal 128 
opportunity for access to a reservation, not to a specific or desired time3. Additionally, the ADA 129 
specialist confirms that if choosing to leave the current reservation system as-is, the Town must 130 
review the system for accessibility under the new technical standards by the federal rule deadline 131 
of April 2027.   132 
 133 
She concludes that “reasonable modifications must always be related to the individual’s 134 
specific limitation caused by the disability.” Such individuals are not required to provide 135 
medical documentation but must explain how their disability is related to their requested 136 
modification.  137 
 138 
Staff - The 10 suggested options provided by staff, residents, and Board members exemplify the 139 
Town’s commitment to adapting practices to provide equal opportunity to all that use our services. 140 
However, both the Town Attorney and the ADA specialist state that reasonable modifications 141 
should be requested by the individual with a disability to address his or her specific needs. With 142 
no outstanding ADA compliance requests for a reasonable modification, staff is reluctant to 143 
implement any of the suggested options at this time.  144 
 145 
Over the course of the past five months, staff has researched and consulted various experts on this 146 
topic. These findings have provided staff a better understanding on ADA compliance not just for 147 
the current online court reservation system, but future town-wide applications. Staff now has more 148 
resources to address requests for reasonable modifications to the online court reservation system.   149 
 150 
Recognizing that “reasonable modifications must always be related to the individual’s specific 151 
limitations caused by the disability,” staff’s recommendation is to update the current online 152 
reservation system to fully meet the new WCAG 2.1 Level AA technical standards, continue to 153 
refer those requesting special accommodation to the Town’s ADA coordinator and/or website 154 
administrator, and upon request, implement a reasonable modification based on an individual’s 155 
specific limitation caused by a disability. From a customer service standpoint separate from ADA 156 

 
2 Ms. Schwanke qualifies her analysis as informal guidance that is neither legal advice nor binding on enforcement. 
3 This may appear to conflict with the Town Attorney’s analysis referenced in line 40 of this staff report and 
Attachment 2. This conflict between two subject experts exemplifies the complex nature of ADA reasonable 
modification requests that staff has experienced throughout its research. An individual with a disability could 
perceive either expert’s analysis correct as to what the Town must provide regarding the online court reservation 
system. However, if brought to court, our Town Attorney would litigate the case.  



Athletic Court Reservation System 
 
 

Page 5 of 5 
 

compliance, staff will schedule the opening of online reservations during business hours, which 157 
may benefit future ADA requests for reasonable modifications. 158 
 159 
Request for Direction: 160 
Staff is requesting direction from Town Council on the path forward for the future of the online 161 
court reservation system, balancing the appropriate level of modifications to ensure compliance 162 
with the ADA along with the acceptable level of risk. Three recommended options are presented 163 
for consideration:  164 

(1) The Cultural Services Board’s recommendation of combining Options #10, #3, and #8 165 
(2) The Town Attorney’s analysis of Option #1 representing the lowest liability risk 166 
(3) Staff’s recommendation implementing a fully compliant online reservation system, 167 

schedule the opening of online reservations during business hours, and execute requested 168 
reasonable modifications based on an individual’s specific limitation caused by a disability. 169 

 170 
 171 
 172 
         August 14, 2024 173 
Jackie Alex, Cultural Services Manager    Date 174 
 175 
 176 
Attachments:  177 

1. Email from Town Attorney Holli New regarding ADA compliance on court reservation systems, 178 
April 22, 2024 179 

2. “ADA Website Compliance & Accessibility Requirements for the Pollard Park Athletic Court 180 
Reservation System,” provided by Town Attorney Holli New, May 24, 2024 181 

3. Cultural Services Board Staff report and meeting minutes- May 6, 2024 182 
4. Cultural Services Board Staff report and meeting minutes- June 3, 2024 183 
5. Summary of 10 Options to provide reasonable modifications to the Town’s online court reservation 184 

system 185 
6. Resolution 2019-11 186 
7. “ADA Website Compliance Follow Up,” provided by Town Attorney Holli New 187 
8. Email from ADA specialists Marsha Schwanke and Barry Whaley representing the Southeast ADA 188 

Center, Syracuse University 189 





























































































































































































































































 
 

 
 

Report to Town Council 
 
Topic:   First reading of Ordinance 2024-03, Amendments to LUDC 

Section 3.17, Docks, Boathouses, Boat Slips, and Piers.  
 
Summary:  

The Planning & Development Department is proposing 
amendments to the LUDC Section 3.17, Docks, Boathouses, 
Boat Slips, and Piers. The proposed changes were drafted in 
response to concerns that the present requirements for the 
calculation of maximum dock square footage are too 
challenging for certain properties to meet.  
 

Suggested motion: 
Staff recommends approval of proposed Ordinance 2024-03, 
amending Section 3.17, Docks, Boathouses, Boat Slips, and 
Piers of the LUDC to be consistent with the comprehensive 
plan. 
 

Requested by:   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
 

 Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager. 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   11-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring, and fair in delivering community excellence 

while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 

From: Patty Rippey, AICP, Senior Planner 

Through: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director 

Date: August 13, 2024 

Subject: Ord. No. 2024-03 – Docks, Boathouses, Boat Slips, and Piers 

MEETING DATE: August 22, 2024 

INTRODUCTION 1 

This proposed ordinance has been drafted in response to concerns that the present requirements 2 

for the calculation of maximum dock square footage are too challenging for certain property 3 

owners to meet.  4 

5 

AUTHORITY AND PROCESS 6 

Pursuant to the Land Use Development Code (LUDC) Section 6.2.2.A, the Planning Board, 7 

“…serves as the local planning agency in accordance with the Community Planning Act (2011) 8 

F.S. § 163.3161 et. Seq.” Pursuant to LUDC Section 6.2.2.D. “As the local planning agency, [the 9 

Board shall] … review proposed land development regulations, determine their consistency with 10 

the comprehensive plan, and make recommendations to the town council as to whether the 11 

regulations should be adopted.”  12 

13 

The Planning Board reviewed the proposed amendments at its April 23, 2024 meeting and 14 

requested Staff to revise the ordinance to include certain changes. The Planning Board reviewed 15 

the revised amendment on July 23, 2024 and unanimously recommended approval by the Town 16 

Council at its next regularly scheduled meeting.  17 

18 

Following the Board’s recommendation, the Town Council will review the ordinance at the August 19 

22, 2024 meeting. If approved on 1st reading at a public hearing, the amendment will then be 20 

scheduled for a 2nd reading at a public hearing for adoption. 21 

22 

23 

24 

Item 11-A



LUDC Amend. - Docks, Boathouses, Boat Slips, and Piers      Page 2 

Ord. 2024-03 

 

 

BACKGROUND 25 

The impetus for the proposed ordinance stems from a 2023 variance case (No. 14-2023) in which 26 

the applicant sought relief from the maximum dock size requirements in the LUDC. In that case, 27 

the length of access walkway to the terminal platform caused the proposed dock to exceed the 28 

maximum dock size. It should be noted that before 2012, access walkways were not included in 29 

dock size calculations. Ordinance 2012-14 amended the dock size calculation language, stating 30 

that the area of a dock shall include all existing and proposed docks and related structures 31 

beginning at the mean high water line (MHWL) and extending water ward. 32 

 33 

In the 2023 variance case, the applicant requested to construct a 525 square-foot dock together 34 

with a 2,000 square-foot walkway, for a total of 2,525 square feet. The long access walkway was 35 

necessary to cross through 500 feet of wetlands to reach open water from the upland portion of the 36 

property. However, per code, the maximum total square footage allowed for the subject dock and 37 

walkway was 700 square feet, based on the 70-foot lot width at the MHWL.  38 

 39 

During the March 28, 2023 variance hearing, the Board questioned compliance with certain 40 

variance criteria. The Board asked how the conditions and circumstances were peculiar to the land 41 

and not typical of other lands in the same zoning if the properties to the south had similar 42 

conditions. Staff responded that no other lot has the same exact lot configuration and the distance 43 

between the MHWL and navigable waters is not the same as other properties. Staff continued that 44 

the lots to the south were able to construct their docks without a variance, as they were not subject 45 

to the size limitation enacted in 2012 that is now limiting the current owners from constructing a 46 

dock without first obtaining a variance. It was suggested later after the hearing concluded, during 47 

Board discussion, that an amendment to the LUDC could make similar variances for properties in 48 

similar circumstances unnecessary.  49 

 50 

DISCUSSION 51 

The 2012 LUDC amendment regarding the dock square footage calculation has proven to be 52 

problematic for certain property owners with MHWLs that are a substantial distance from the 53 

navigable waterway. Based on an aerial assessment of the riverfront, there are seven properties on 54 

the Daggett Creek branch of the Halifax River and approximately six additional homes near the 55 

south end of S. Peninsula Drive that are in a similar situation. 56 

 57 

The most significant part of the code amendment is to remove access walkways from the dock size 58 

measurement. The entire list of proposed amendments includes:  59 

• In Section 3.17.1.A, adding definitions for “access walkway” and “terminal platform” 60 

• In Section 3.17.2.A, adding, “the main pier or walkway shall not exceed six feet (6’) in 61 

width”  62 

• In Section 3.17.2.G,  63 

o Removing references to state and/or federal approval   64 

o Clarifying that access walkways shall not be included in the maximum dock size 65 

calculation  66 

• In Section 3.17.2.H.4, adding requirement to meet all other dimensional standards  67 

• In Section 3.17.2.M, adding “access walkway” to the types of structures that shall not have 68 

enclosed sides.  69 



LUDC Amend. - Docks, Boathouses, Boat Slips, and Piers Page 3 

Ord. 2024-03 

70 

Comprehensive Plan 71 

Staff reviewed the policies of the Comprehensive Plan and found the Ordinance will maintain 72 

consistency with the Town’s desired vision and direction. In particular, the proposed ordinance 73 

will ensure that Coastal Management Element Policy 1.6.3 is implemented fairly for all single-74 

family riverfront lots. 75 

76 
Policy 1.6.3: Single-Family Boat Slip Allowance. Single-family residential riverfront lots will not 77 
be denied their riparian rights to construct one dock per lot. If single-family residential riverfront 78 
lots are subdivided subsequent to the approval of the MPP, each additional single-family residential 79 
riverfront lot shall represent one powerboat slip that is part of the total number of powerboat slips 80 
allocated to the Town of Ponce Inlet. 81 

82 

Recommendation 83 

The Planning Board recommends approval of the amendment to the Town Council. Staff 84 

recommends the Town Council approve Ordinance No. 2024-03, amending Section 3.17 – Docks, 85 

Boathouses, Boat Slips, and Piers of the LUDC to be consistent with the comprehensive plan.  86 

87 



Ordinance 2024-03 

Page 1 of 7 

ORDINANCE NO. 2024-03 1 

2 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET, 3 

F L O R I D A , AMENDING THE LAND USE AND 4 

DEVELOPMENT CODE, ARTICLE 3 USE REGULATIONS, 5 

SECTION 3.17 DOCKS, BOATHOUSES, BOAT SLIPS, AND 6 

PIERS; PROVIDING DEFINITIONS AND STANDARDS; 7 

PROVIDING FOR CODIFICATION; PROVIDING FOR 8 

SEVERABILITY; PROVIDING FOR CONFLICTS; AND 9 

PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 10 

11 

WHEREAS, Article 3 of the Ponce Inlet Land Use and Development Code (LUDC) 12 

establishes regulations for particular uses that are permitted in the LUDC; and 13 

14 

WHEREAS, Section 3.17 of the LUDC regulates docks, boathouses, boat slips and piers; 15 

and 16 

17 

WHEREAS, concerns have been raised that the present requirements for the calculation 18 

of maximum dock square footage are too challenging for certain property owners to meet, and that 19 

amendments to the LUDC are necessary to address these concerns; and  20 

21 

WHEREAS, the Planning Board, in its capacity as the Local Planning Agency, has 22 

determined that this Ordinance is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and has recommended 23 

approval of this Ordinance to the Town Council; and  24 

25 

WHEREAS, the Town Council affirms that this Ordinance is consistent with the 26 

Comprehensive Plan and is in the best interest of the public welfare of the Town; and  27 

28 

WHEREAS, the Town has complied with all requirements and procedures of the LUDC 29 

and Florida law in processing, noticing, and advertising this Ordinance; and  30 

31 

WHEREAS, this ordinance is enacted under the general home rule and police powers of 32 

the Town of Ponce Inlet. 33 

34 

NOTE:  Underlined words constitute additions to the Town of Ponce Inlet Land Use 35 

Development Code (LUDC) as amended by Ordinance 2024-03, strikethrough constitutes 36 

deletions, and asterisks (***) indicate an omission from the existing text of said LUDC as 37 

amended which is intended to remain unchanged. 38 

39 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ENACTED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE 40 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA: 41 

42 

SECTION 1. Recitals. The foregoing recitals are hereby ratified and confirmed as being 43 

true and correct and are hereby made a part of this Ordinance.  44 

45 

Attachment 1



Ordinance 2024-03 

Page 2 of 7 

SECTION 2. Incorporation of Amendments. The proposed amendments to Article 3, 46 

Section 3.17 of the Land Use and Development Code are attached to this Ordinance as Exhibit 47 

"A" and are hereby incorporated into the text of this Ordinance as though fully set forth herein 48 

verbatim as amendments to the Land Use and Development Code. 49 

50 

SECTION 3. Codification. It is the intent of the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet 51 

that the provisions of this Ordinance shall be codified. The codifier is granted broad and liberal 52 

authority in codifying the provisions of this Ordinance.  53 

54 

SECTION 4. Severability. If any section, subsection, sentence, clause, phrase, word, or 55 

provision of this Ordinance is for any reason held invalid or unconstitutional by any court of 56 

competent jurisdiction, whether for substantive, procedural, or any other reason, such portion shall 57 

be deemed a separate, distinct, and independent provision, and such holding shall not affect the 58 

validity of the remaining portions of this Ordinance. 59 

60 

SECTION 5. Conflicts. In any case where a provision of this Ordinance is found to be in 61 

conflict with a provision of any other ordinance of this Town, this Ordinance shall prevail. 62 

63 

SECTION 6. Effective date. This Ordinance shall become effective immediately upon 64 

adoption by the Town Council of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida. 65 

66 

It was moved by                                and seconded by                                that said Ordinance 67 

be passed on first reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as follows: 68 

69 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 70 

Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 71 

Councilmember White, Seat #3 72 

Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 73 

Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5  74 

75 

Approved on first reading this ___ day of ________ 2024. 76 

77 

It was moved by _______________ and seconded by ______________ that said Ordinance 78 

be passed on second reading. A roll call vote of the Town Council on said motion resulted as 79 

follows: 80 

81 

Mayor Paritsky, Seat #1 82 

Councilmember Milano, Seat #2 83 

Councilmember White, Seat #3 84 

Councilmember Villanella, Seat #4 85 

Vice-Mayor Smith, Seat #5  86 



Ordinance 2024-03 

Page 3 of 7 

87 

Approved and adopted on second reading this ____day of  2024. 88 

89 

Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida: 90 

91 

92 

________________________ 93 

Lois A. Paritsky, Mayor 94 

ATTEST: 95 

96 

97 

_____________________________________ 98 

Kim Cherbano, CMC 99 

Town Clerk 100 



Ordinance 2024-03 

Page 4 of 7 

EXHIBIT “A” 1 

2 

ARTICLE 3 – USE REGULATIONS 3 

4 

*** 5 

6 

SECTION 3.17. DOCKS, BOATHOUSES, BOAT SLIPS, AND PIERS 7 

3.17.1 Applicability. 8 

This section applies to boathouses, boat slips, piers, docks, and marginal docks in any zoning 9 

district along the Halifax River or any of its arms, canals or tributaries.  10 

A. Definitions.11 

Access Walkway. The part of a dock that connects a riparian owner’s property to a terminal12 

platform. The main access pier or catwalk shall be considered a walkway. 13 

Boathouse. An accessory use to a residence adjacent to a waterway, providing covered space 14 

for the housing of a boat and its customary accessories. A boathouse may not be used for human 15 

habitation.  16 

Boat slip. See definitions, section 3.9. 17 

Dock. A fixed or floating structure, including access walkways, terminal platforms, catwalks, 18 

mooring pilings, lifts, davits and other associated water-dependent structures, used for mooring 19 

and accessing vessels, pursuant to Chapter 18-21 F.A.C.  20 

Marginal dock. A dock placed immediately adjacent and parallel to the shoreline or seawall, 21 

bulkhead or revetment, pursuant to Chapter 18-21 F.A.C.  22 

Mooring piling. A post, pillar, piling, or stake used for the purpose of berthing buoyant vessels 23 

either temporarily or indefinitely, whether or not it is used in conjunction with a dock.  24 

Pier. A fixed or floating structure used primarily for fishing or swimming and not designed 25 

or used for mooring or accessing vessels.  26 

Terminal Platform. The part of a dock or pier that is connected to the access walkway, located 27 

at the terminus of the structure, and is designed to secure and load/unload a vessel or conduct other 28 

water-dependent activities. The terminal platform is considered the activity area of the dock. Such 29 

a platform is typically wider than the pier leading to it and shall be located at the end of the access 30 

walkway. 31 

B. How permitted. See section 2.40, Table 2-5 (Table of Permitted Uses).32 

3.17.2 Standards. 33 

A. No boathouse, boat slip, pier, or similar structure shall be erected or constructed to exceed a34 

height of 15 feet above mean high water. An additional 42 inches is allowed for guardrails on35 

sundeck roofs only. The main pier or walkway shall not exceed six feet (6') in width.36 

B. Docks, marginal docks, boathouses, boat slips, piers, and/or similar structures may be37 

constructed waterward of the mean high water line if:38 

1. All local, state and federal requirements are met, and39 



Ordinance 2024-03 

Page 5 of 7 

2. The structure will not materially impair navigation, cause scouring and erosion of the40 

shoreline or river bottom, or otherwise adversely affect the public health, safety and41 

welfare.42 

C. No artificial lighting is allowed higher than 15 feet above mean high water.43 

D. No more than two boat slips are allowed for each single-family dock.44 

E. Boathouses shall not be used for dwelling purposes or contain any sleeping or living quarters.45 

F. No boathouse shall exceed 20 feet in width and 40 feet in length.46 

G. Docks, marginal docks, boathouses, boat slips, piers, and/or similar structures, singly or47 

collectively, shall not occupy an area more than ten times the lot width expressed in feet at48 

the mean high water line (i.e. 70 feet of lot width equates to a maximum of 700 s.f. of dock49 

area). For lot widths of 100 feet or more, Aa maximum of 1,000 square feet of dock area may50 

be allowed for single-family residential homes along the Halifax River and in all artificially51 

created waterways (i.e. canals) without state and/or federal approval. For lot widths of 10052 

feet or more, Along the Halifax River, a maximum of 1,000 square feet of dock area may be53 

allowed without state and/or federal approval, unless required by state or federal law in certain54 

instances when state-owned submerged lands are involved. The area of a dock shall be55 

calculated by measuring all existing and proposed docks and related structures beginning at56 

the mean high water line and extending waterward, except that the maximum area shall not57 

include the access walkway to the dock terminal platform.58 

1. Subject to local, state, and/or federal approvals, an additional ten square feet above the59 

maximum 1,000 square feet of dock and/or related structures may be added for each60 

additional ten linear feet greater than 100 linear feet of waterfront frontage along the61 

Halifax River measured at the mean high water line (i.e. 110 linear feet of shoreline62 

frontage allows up to 1,010 square feet of dock and/or related structures). All state and63 

federal permit approvals shall be submitted to the town prior to the commencement of64 

any construction.65 

2. All commercial and multi-family docks and related structures are subject to section 3.9,66 

Boat slip regulations and other applicable local, county, state and/or federal67 

requirements.68 

H. A dock and/or related structure is allowed if it:69 

1. Is not used for living or the storage of materials other than those associated with70 

recreational use; and71 

2. Is constructed or held in place by pilings, including floating docks, so as not to involve72 

filling or dredging other than that necessary to install the pilings; and73 

3. Will not violate water quality standards, impede the flow of water, adversely affect flood74 

control, or create a navigational hazard; and75 

4. Is accessory to a developed lot with a minimum waterfront frontage of 65 feet measured76 

at the mean high water line. Lots with a waterfront frontage of less than 65 feet may be77 

allowed a dock or similar structures on a case-by-case basis, provided that navigation is78 

not impeded, the ability to dock boats on adjacent properties is not impaired, all other79 

dimensional standards of this section can be met, and a variance has been granted.80 



Ordinance 2024-03 

Page 6 of 7 

I. Docks in artificially created waterways (i.e., canals) shall not impede navigation and protrude81 

into the waterway more than 25 percent of the width of the waterway measured from the mean82 

high water line.83 

J. Subject to federal and state regulation, the replacement or repair of non-conforming docks84 

and mooring piles shall be allowed in accordance with sections 7.4 and 7.5, if:85 

1. No fill material other than the piles is used.86 

2. The replacement dock or mooring pile is in the same location, configuration and87 

dimensions as the existing or original dock or mooring pile.88 

K. Docks and related structures (including access walkways, boathouses, boat slips, piers,89 

mooring piles, or other similar structures) shall not be constructed or erected closer than 2590 

feet from any side lot line or side lot line extended into a waterway (Figure 3-3). Marginal91 

docks shall not be constructed or erected closer than ten feet from any side lot line or a side92 

lot line extended into a waterway (Figure 3-4) No newly constructed dock shall impede the93 

navigation or docking ability to existing docks on adjacent properties.94 

95 

L. No more than one boathouse may be erected or constructed on an individual waterfront lot.96 

M. No boathouse. covered dock, or access walkway shall have enclosed sides. No screening or97 

other visually blocking materials shall be attached or otherwise added to any required98 

guardrails.99 

N. A boathouse or covered dock without a sundeck shall have a pitched roof with a slope ratio100 

between 2.5:12 and 4:12.101 

O. Construction standards.102 



Ordinance 2024-03 

Page 7 of 7 

1. Construction materials and methods shall be employed in compliance with the Florida103 

Building Code, Chapter 16: Structural Design. Compliance with this standard shall be104 

certified on a plan sealed by a Florida-registered architect or structural engineer.105 

2. All wood members must be pressure treated or have an equivalent strength that meets or106 

exceeds the durability of pressure-treated wood.107 

3. All fastening devices, nails, screws, bolts, and similar devices shall be highly corrosive108 

resistant.109 

a. All light-gauge fastening devices such as nails and screws shall be stainless steel110 

and all bolts shall be stainless steel or hot-dipped galvanized.111 

b. All hurricane anchoring devices shall be hot-dipped galvanized or stainless steel.112 

"Hot-dipped galvanized" means at least two ounces of zinc coating per square foot113 

after fabrication.114 

4. Boathouse roofs acting as a sun deck shall be designed to provide for 60 pounds per115 

square foot deck loading for occupants. If the boathouse provides for boat suspension,116 

the maximum lift capacity of the hoisting device shall be considered in the design and117 

still provide a minimum 60 pounds per square foot for occupants of the sun deck. Stairs118 

and guardrails must be provided for all sun decks consistent with standard building code119 

requirements. No baluster shall exceed 1.5 inches in diameter. No lighting may be120 

affixed to a sun deck.121 

P. This section does not preempt any federal or state regulation or prohibit any federal or state122 

enforcement action.123 

*** 124 

125 



 
 

 
 

Report to Town Council 
 
Topic:   First reading of Ordinance 2024-04, Amendments to Code of 

Ordinances Ch. 2, Art. III updating purchasing thresholds.  
 
Summary:  

Proposed ordinance and supporting documentation 
will be distributed separately. 
 

Suggested motion: 
Staff recommends approval of proposed Ordinance 2024-04, 
amending Chapter 2, Article III of the Code of Ordinances 
updating purchasing thresholds. 
 

Requested by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 
 

 Approved by: Mr. Disher, Town Manager. 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   11-B 



Report to Town Council 

Topic:    Update on Harbour Village CSA cost-participation request. 

Summary:   This is a request from the Harbour Village Golf & Yacht 
Club Community Service Association (CSA) to participate 
in the cost of reconstructing its dune walkover. This item 
was originally considered at the May 7, 2024 regular Town 
Council meeting and again at the June 20, 2024 regular 
Town Council meeting, where it was tabled pending the 
adoption of a tentative millage rate.  

Suggested motion:   At Council’s discretion. 

Requested by:   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 

Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   12-A 



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Town Council 

From: Michael, E. Disher AICP, Town Manager 
Date: August 15, 2024, 2024 

Subject: Update on Harbor Village CSA cost-participation request 

MEETING DATE:  August 22, 2024

At its June 20, 2024 meeting, the Town Council considered a request from the Harbor Village Golf 
& Yacht Club Community Service Association (CSA) Harbor Village Beach Club to share in the 
cost of reconstructing its dune walkover. The dune walkover, which suffered considerable damage 
during the 2022 hurricane season, is privately owned but is open to the public, pursuant to the 
Third Amendment to the Development Agreement for the Harbor Village Golf and Yacht Club 
PUD. The Council discussed whether the Town’s contribution could be reimbursed by FEMA if 
the structure is damaged by a hurricane and whether the contribution of public funds would require 
it to be made ADA-accessible.  

After discussion, the Town Council tabled the item pending the outcome of the July 16, 2024 
budget workshop and July 18, 2024 adoption of a tentative millage rate. The millage rate set at 
that time was 6.7473, which would be able to accommodate the previously suggested amount of 
$22,987.50, equal to 25% of the estimated construction costs of $91,950. 

The staff reports from May and June 2024 are attached for reference. 

Attachments 
• May 7, 2024 staff report
• June 20, 2024 staff report

Item 12-A



Report to Town Council 

Topic:    Request for cost participation from Harbour Village CSA. 

Summary:   Harbour Village Golf & Yacht Club Community Service 
Association Inc. requests cost participation from the Town 
for repairs to its dune walkover.  

Suggested motion:   At Council’s discretion. 

Requested by:   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
Rick Gray, President, on behalf of Harbour Village Golf 
& Yacht Club Community Service Association Inc., 
owner 

Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 5/7/2024 

Agenda Item:   13-A 

ATTACHMENT 1



MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 

ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael, E. Disher AICP, Town Manager 

From: Darren Lear, AICP, Planning & Development Director

Date: April 30, 2024 

Subject: Harbor Village cost participation request 

REQUEST: Harbor Village Golf & Yacht Club Community Service Association 
Inc. requests cost participation from the Town for repairs to its dune 
walkover 

LOCATION: 4679 S. Atlantic Avenue 

APPLICANT: Rick Gray, President, on behalf of Harbor Village Golf & Yacht Club 
Community Service Association, Inc., owner  

MEETING DATE:  May 7, 2024

1 
The Harbor Village Beach Club was constructed in the mid- to late-2000s and includes a club hall, 2 
parking area, swimming pool and the dune walkover (Attachment 1). Pursuant to the Third 3 
Amendment to the Development Agreement for the Harbor Village Golf and Yacht Club PUD, 4 
dated July 25, 1986 and as amended December 13, 1993 and March 20, 1996, “The dune easement 5 
and walk-over shall be constructed at the expense of the Developer and shall be for the use of 6 
Ponce Inlet residents only.” 7 

8 
During the 2022 hurricane season, many properties were heavily damaged within Volusia County 9 
including the Harbor Village Beach Club. The dune walkover suffered considerable damage during 10 
that season’s storms. Given that the dune walkover is open to the public and not just Harbor Village 11 
residents, the Harbor Village Golf & Yacht Club Community Service Association is requesting 12 
cost participation from the Town for repairs to the walkover. 13 

14 
This request was recently presented by the Association President Rick Gray at the January 18, 15 
2024, Town Council meeting, with a total cost estimate for repairs in the total amount of $91, 950 16 
(Attachment 2). 17 

18 
The cost participation percentage amount has not been formally expressed by the Association and 19 
is therefore at the discretion of the Town Council. It should be noted that the residents of the 20 
Harbor Village Golf & Yacht Club Community represent approximately 25% of the total 21 

13-A



Harbor Village walkover request  Page 2 
 
 

 
population of the Town. Using this same percentage of the total cost would represent an 22 
approximate cost participation amount of $22,987.50. 23 
 24 
This amount is not currently included in this year’s budget. Should the Council approve the 25 
request, the amount selected will need to be included in the FY 24-25 budget. The request can then 26 
be processed at the beginning of the next fiscal year starting October 1, 2024. This will likely be 27 
in the form of a one-time cost-participation agreement indemnifying the Town for any possible 28 
liability and ensuring there is no additional obligation of any kind from the Town. Unless specified 29 
otherwise by the Council, approval of the agreement itself would follow the Town’s purchasing 30 
procedures and spending thresholds, requiring Council approval only if the amount exceeds 31 
$25,000.  32 
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Location map 
2. Cove Points Marine Construction Inc. cost estimate 
3. Email cost participation request 

 
 
 



 

ATTACHMENT 1 

LOCATION MAP  

  



 

ATTACHMENT 2 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 











 

ATTACHMENT 3 

 



1

Darren Lear

From: Rikgee <rikgee@aol.com>

Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2024 3:53 PM

To: Darren Lear

Cc: Jennifer O'Leary; Karla Baumann; Jeffrey Wilner

Subject: Invoice for beach crossover boardwalk near the HV Beachclub

Attachments: Harbour Village Accepted Cove Points Proposal for Public Boardwalk Reconstruction.pdf

Follow Up Flag: Follow up

Flag Status: Flagged

[EXTERNAL: This email was sent from outside of ponce-inlet.org, confirm this is a trusted sender before 

opening any links or attachments] 

Darren 
 
Thank you for getting back to me. As per our conversation, I have attached our approved proposal 
from Cove Points to rebuild the public part of the beach crossover boardwalk next to our HV Beach 
club. We still need to get the engineering study done for this project and go thru the permitting 
process so it will probably be at least a couple of months before we can actually begin the rebuild. We 
know the town is beginning its budget process for next year so we wanted to at least get the accepted 
proposal to you right away. We will also copy you in with the engineering study and permitting 
process as things progress. 
 
Darren, we appreciate the town looking at our reimbursement request for the rebuilding of this public 
boardwalk and will work with you with whatever information you require. Please let us know of any 
meetings you might want and any deadlines we need to look at. We will make ourselves available at 
any time to discuss with the town. 
 
As always, we look forward to continuing our close working relationship with the town. 
 
Rick Gray 
President Harbour Village Association 
(518) 331-7452 



Report to Town Council 

Topic:    Update on Harbour Village CSA cost-participation request. 

Summary:   This item is a continuation from the May 7, 2024 regular 
Town Council meeting to consider a request from the 
Harbour Village Golf & Yacht Club Community Service 
Association (CSA) to participate in the cost of 
reconstructing its dune walkover.  

Suggested motion:   At Council’s discretion. 

Requested by:   Mr. Lear, Planning & Development Director 
Rick Gray, President, on behalf of Harbour Village Golf 
& Yacht Club Community Service Association Inc., 
owner 

Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 6/20/2024 

Agenda Item:   12-A 

ATTACHMENT 2



 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
TOWN OF PONCE INLET, PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT DEPARTMENT 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 
To:  Town Council 
 

From:  Michael, E. Disher AICP, Town Manager  

Date:  June 12, 2024 
 

Subject: Update on Harbour Village CSA cost-participation request 
 
 
 

MEETING DATE:  June 20, 2024 

 
At its May 7, 2024 meeting, the Town Council considered a request from the Harbour Village Golf 
& Yacht Club Community Service Association (CSA) to share in the cost of reconstructing its 
dune walkover. The dune walkover, which suffered considerable damage during the 2022 
hurricane season, is privately owned but open to the public, pursuant to the Third Amendment to 
the Development Agreement for the Harbour Village Golf and Yacht Club PUD.  
 
After discussion, the item was tabled to allow time to research two questions related to a 
contribution by the Town (paraphrased below). 
 

1. If the dune walkover is damaged in a future hurricane, would the Town’s contribution be 
eligible for FEMA reimbursement? 
 

No, because the Town does not own or lease the property. See excerpt from FEMA’s Public 
Assistance and Policy Guide, Attachment 1. 
  

2. Would the contribution of public funds by the Town require the walkover to be made ADA-
compliant, including construction of a handicapped-accessible ramp? 
 

No, according to the Town Attorney, “…because the Town is not providing any programs, 
activities, or services for the dune walkover, and the Town is not responsible for any 
maintenance or operation of any portion of the dune walkover.” See memo dated June 12, 
2024, Attachment 2. 

 
As noted previously, if the Town Council decides to contribute toward this project, the money 
would need to be included in the FY 24-25 budget. The construction estimate provided by Harbour 
Village CSA earlier this year was $91,950. Although the CSA has not requested a specific 
percentage or amount, Staff had previously suggested 25% (or $22,987.50) based on the rough 
percentage of the Town’s population comprised of Harbour Village residents. The amount is 
ultimately at the discretion of the Town Council.  



Harbour Village Walkover Request  Page 2 
 
 
The request would then be processed at the beginning of the next fiscal year starting October 1, 
2024. The arrangement would be in the form of a one-time cost-participation agreement 
indemnifying the Town for any possible liability and ensuring there is no additional obligation of 
any kind from the Town. Unless specified otherwise by the Council, approval of the agreement 
itself would follow the Town’s purchasing procedures and spending thresholds, requiring Council 
approval only if the amount exceeds $25,000.  
 
 
Attachments: 

1. Excerpt from FEMA’s Public Assistance and Policy Guide 
2. Memo from Town Attorney, June 12, 2024 

 
 

 
 
 



 

V4 2020 Page 52 

• To address damage caused by the declared incident (Permanent Work, temporary repairs, 
and mold remediation).  

The Applicant must demonstrate that the debris causing an immediate threat was generated by 
the declared incident during the declared incident period. 
The Applicant must demonstrate that damage was caused directly by the declared incident. 
FEMA does not provide PA funding for repair of damage caused by: 

• Deterioration; 
• Deferred maintenance;  
• The Applicant’s failure to take measures to protect a facility from further damage; or 
• Negligence.101 

When necessary to validate damage, the Applicant may be required to provide: 
 Pre-incident photographs of the impacted site or facility; and/or 
 Documentation supporting pre-disaster condition of the facility (e.g., facility maintenance 

records, inspection/safety reports). 
If a facility was functioning prior to the disaster and the disaster caused damage that rendered the 
facility non-functional, the facility may be eligible provided the pre-disaster condition was not a 
significant contributing factor in the cause of failure. 
2. Within Designated Area 
To be eligible, the facility must be located, and work must be performed, in the designated area 
defined in the declaration [except for sheltering, evacuation, and EOC activities]. The sheltering, 
evacuation and EOC activities must be used for a declared area.102 Emergency Work or 
Permanent Work performed on a facility located outside of the designated area is ineligible. This 
is true even if an eligible Applicant is legally responsible for the work, including work performed 
outside the designated area to protect a facility within the designated area.  
Tribal governments do not always have geographical boundaries, and some have boundaries that 
cross State lines. Therefore, declarations do not usually define specific designated geographical 
areas for Tribal governments. For Tribal governments, FEMA determines eligibility based on 
legal responsibility and whether the work is directly related to the declared incident. 
3. Legal Responsibility 
To be eligible, work must be the legal responsibility of the Applicant requesting assistance.103 
To determine legal responsibility for Emergency Work, FEMA evaluates whether the Applicant 
requesting the assistance either had jurisdiction over the area or the legal authority to conduct the 
work related to the request at the time of the incident.  
To determine legal responsibility for Permanent Work, FEMA evaluates whether the Applicant 
claiming the costs had legal responsibility for disaster-related restoration of the facility at the 
time of the incident based on ownership and the terms of any written agreements (such as for 
facilities under construction, leased facilities, and facilities owned by a Federal agency). 

 
101 44 C.F.R. § 206.223(e). 
102 44 C.F.R. § 206.223(a)(2). 
103 44 C.F.R. § 206.223(a)(3). 

ATTACHMENT 1



 

V4 2020 Page 53 

 

(a) Documentation to Support Legal Responsibility 
Documents that support legal responsibility include: 
 Deeds; 
 Titles; 
 Lease agreements (required for leased facilities); and 
 Contract (required for facilities under construction at the time of the incident). 

(b) Facility Ownership 
When the Applicant requests PA funding to restore a facility, it is the Applicant’s responsibility 
to provide proof that it owns the facility. To determine ownership, FEMA may review deeds, 
title documents, and local government tax records. 
Ownership of a facility is usually sufficient to establish the Applicant’s legal responsibility to 
restore the facility, provided it is not under construction by a contractor or leased to another 
entity at the time of the incident. 

(c) Facilities under Construction 
If the facility is under construction by a contractor at the time of the incident, FEMA reviews the 
contract to determine whether the Applicant is legally responsible for the repair of damage 
caused by the incident.104 At a minimum, FEMA evaluates the contract to determine if it: 

• Identifies the contractor or owner as being responsible for disaster-related repairs;  
• Requires a builder’s risk policy for losses that occur while the contractor has control of 

the facility;  
• Has a Force Majeure provision, which is a clause that relieves the contractor from 

responsibility for damage beyond its reasonable control, such as natural disasters (often 
referred to “acts of God”) or acts of war; or  

• Has a provision that identifies the point at which the contractor transfers legal 
responsibility for the facility, or portions of the facility, back to the owner.  

(d) Leased Facilities 
The Applicant may own a facility and lease it to a tenant, or the Applicant may lease a facility 
owned by another party. In either case, FEMA reviews the lease agreement to determine legal 
responsibility for repair of damage caused by the incident. If the lease does not specify either 
party as responsible, FEMA considers the owner of the facility legally responsible for the costs 
to restore the facility.  
If the lease is between two eligible Applicants, FEMA provides PA funding to the Applicant 
legally responsible for the restoration. 

(e) Federal Facilities 
Facilities owned and maintained by Federal agencies are ineligible. If a Federal agency 
constructed a facility and formally designated the Applicant as the legally responsible entity for 

 
104 Stafford Act § 406(e)(2), 42 U.S.C. § 5172. 



ATTACHMENT 2





 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Support for future Volusia County coastal armoring project in 

Wilbur-by-the-Sea. 
 
Summary: See attached staff report and supporting documents.  
 
Suggested motion:     As directed by the Town Council. 
 
Requested by:       Mr. Disher, Town Manager 
 
Approved by:        Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   13-A 



Item 13-A





ATTACHMENT 1 

S:UiPM Tw.M16 

FIGURES 

..... - - - fl'IP - .... - -

....... .. 
�-�•Cid"" 

I
---
-- .. 
--
---
--

---

)
__ ..., 

u::...-:::;:.... 
... IM: ..... � 
--- "" 

... l ,..,, 

,..,. • 

Figu<e 1. 

S.-46PM T'lit.M18-

.... - -

Bal lr&t poailxlm !or HumcMW Ian. 23--10 September 2022. Track& cbirV lhe •� 1119.,.. palliMly bued on 
snalyNII Imm 1h11 NOAA Welllher Pnidiction Germ. 

•w:.tlMil.llH 

Humcanetan 

NHC Storm Surge M./llysis (AGL) 

























ATTACHMENT 4















 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
Topic: Renewal of five-year agreement with Waste Pro for refuse 

collection services. 
 
Summary: WastePro has been providing refuse pick-up services for 

the Town since 2019. With the current five-year agreement 
set to expire on October 1, 2024, staff is requesting to 
renew the refuse collection agreement. 

 
Suggested motion:     Staff recommends approval to renew the refuse 

collection agreement between the Town of Ponce 
Inlet and WastePro of Florida, Inc. for an 
additional five-year term. 

 
Requested by:       Chief Scales, Public Safety Director 
 
Approved by:        Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   13-B 



MEMORANDUM 
Office of the Public Safety Director 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

To: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
From: Dan Scales, Public Safety Director 
Date: August 5, 2024 
Subject: Renewal of Refuse Collection Agreement between the Town of Ponce Inlet and 

WastePro of Florida, Inc. 

MEETING DATE:  August 22, 2024 

Purpose: 1 
The purpose of this report is to recommend the renewal of the refuse collection agreement 2 
between the Town of Ponce Inlet and WastePro of Florida, Inc. WastePro has been providing 3 
refuse pick-up services for the Town since 2019, including regular trash collection, recycling, 4 
and bulk waste pick-up.  The current five-year agreement is set to expire on October 1, 2024. 5 

6 
Background: 7 
The Town of Ponce Inlet entered into an agreement with WastePro in 2019 to provide refuse 8 
collection services. The contract is renewable for three additional 5-year terms beyond the 9 
current term which ends September 30, 2024, unless cancelled with one year’s notice by either 10 
party prior to any of the five-year terms. Last year, WastePro submitted a rate increase notice to 11 
the Town, and the Town Council increased the waste collection fees1 charged to residents in 12 
response. The increase was intended to cover rising costs for the current fiscal year through the 13 
end of FY 24/25, so no rate changes are being proposed at this time. During last year’s Council 14 
discussion of the rate increase, questions were raised by Council members and the public about 15 
different service delivery options to help minimize future rate increases. Although no changes 16 
were made then, the agreement does provide the ability for both parties to make modifications at 17 
any time. As the current contract nears its expiration, it is prudent to review the potential benefits 18 
and challenges of renewing this agreement. 19 

20 
Discussion: 21 
Staff reached out Waste Pro representatives to review the questions posed last year. These 22 
questions cover various aspects of refuse collection services, including the frequency of 23 
collection, cost implications, operational efficiency, and seasonal adjustments. 24 

25 

1 Res. 2023-08, August  17, 2023 

Item 13-B



1. Reducing Service to Once-a-Week Trash Pick-Up: WastePro has indicated that the 26 
potential cost savings would be minimal, but could not provide precise figures without a 27 
pro-forma evaluation. It is essential to recognize that municipalities in Florida often opt 28 
for twice-a-week trash collection due to the state's high temperatures. Prolonged exposure 29 
to heat can lead to severe odor issues, attraction of insects and other vermin, and the 30 
spawning of insect larvae (maggots) when trash remains uncollected for an extended 31 
period. 32 

This report does not recommend changing to a once-a-week trash pick-up schedule.  33 

2. Operational Efficiency: If the town were to adopt a once-a-week pick-up schedule, the 34 
time required to collect trash throughout the town on that day would increase. The 35 
volume of trash collected per pick-up would be higher, leading to longer collection times 36 
and increased workload for crews. 37 

3. Seasonal Adjustments: WastePro currently employs a static number of trucks for refuse 38 
pick-up in Ponce Inlet. However, they have the capability to adjust resources seasonally 39 
if required. During peak seasons, such as holidays or tourist influx periods, WastePro can 40 
deploy additional trucks to accommodate the increased volume of trash, ensuring that 41 
service levels remain consistent. 42 

Conclusion and Recommendation: 43 
Over the past five years, WastePro has demonstrated reliability, efficiency, and responsiveness to 44 
the needs of our community. Based on the evaluation of WastePro's cost considerations and 45 
operational factors, it is recommended that the Town of Ponce Inlet renew the refuse collection 46 
agreement with WastePro for an additional five-year term. 47 
 48 
Attachment: 
Agreement between the Town of Ponce Inlet and WastePro, August 22, 2019 
 



SOLID WASTE, RECYCLABLES, AND BULK WASTE 
COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL AGREEMENT 

I I 

Agreement 
Between 

Town of Ponce Inlet 

and 

Waste Pro of Florida, Inc. 

Approved: August 22, 2019 



Town -of Ponce lplet. Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

TABLE OF CONTENTS 

SECTION 1. EFFECTIVE DATE, COMMENCEMENT DATE, ANO TERM ....................................................... 1 

SECTION 2. DEFINITtONS .......................................................................................................................... 1 

SECTION 3. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF COtrfRACTOR'S SERVICES ......................................................... 4 1 

SECTIONS. RESIDENTIAl COlLECTION SERVICE ...................................................................................... 6 

SECTION 6. RESIDENTIAl COLLECTION CONTAINERS ............................................................................... 9 

SECTION 7. RESIDENTIAl NON·COLlECT&ON PROCEDURES ................................................................... 12 

SECTION 8. RESIDENTIAl BULK WASTE PROCESSING ..... ............................. .......................................... 12 

SECTION 9. DESIGNATED FAClllTtES ...................................................................................................... 12 

SECTION 10. ADDITIONAL SERVICES ................................. ............................. .......................................... 13 

SECTION 11. RESIDENTIAl RATES ANO 81LllNG .......................................................... ............................. 13 

SECTION 13. CONTRACTORtS PERSONNEL .................................................................. ..... ........................ 15 

SECTION 14. SPILtAGE AND llTTER ...... .................................................................................................... 16 

SECTION 15. COLLECTION EQUIPMENT ............................ ............................................... ........................ 16 

SECTION 16. OFFICE .......................................... ................ .................. ........... .......................................... 17 

SECTION 17. SERVICE INQUIRIES, COMPLAINTS, AND PROPERTY DAMAGE ........................................... 17 

SECTION 18. RECOROKEEPING AND REPORTING ..................................................................................... 18 

SECTION 19. UQUIOATEO DAMAG ES .......................................................................... .......... ................... 20 

SECTION 20. EMERGENCY SERVICE PROVISIONS ..................................................................................... 22 

SECTION 21. PERFORMANCE BOND ......................................................................................................... 23 

S£CTION 22. INSURANCE ......... ................................................................................................................. 23 

SECTION 23. INDEMNIFICATION OF TOWN ..................................................................................... ........ 24 

SECTION 24. POINT OF CONlACT ................................................... ............................. .. ........................... 2S 

SECTION 26. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT ................................... .......................................................... 26 

SECTION 27. MOOIFICATIONS,TOTHE CONTRACT .................................................................................. 27 

SECTION 28. PERMITS AND LICENSES ................................................................................................ ...... 28 

SECTION 29. INDEPENDENCE OF CONTRACT ..................................................................................... ...... 28 

SECTION 30. FORCE MAJ EU RE ............................... ................................................... ►••••·· .............. ~ . . . ........ . ..... ► ... ..... ► ••• 28 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

SECTION 31. EMPLOYEE STATUS .............................................................................................................. 28 

SECTION 32. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT ................................................................................. 28 

SECTION 33. MEDIATION ......................................................................................................................... 29 

SECTION 34. RIGHT TO REQUIRE PERFORMANCE .................................................................................... 29 
I 

SECTION 35. GOVERNING LAW ................................................................................................................ 29 

SECTION 36. CONSENT TO JUR1SDICTION ................................................................................................ 29 

SECTION 37. LITIGATION .......................................................................................................................... 29 

SECTION 38. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS ................................................................................................... 29 

SECTION 39. SEVERABILITY .......................................................................................... ............................. 29 

SECTION 40. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING ............................................................................... 30 

SECTION 41. MODIFICATIONS .................................................................................................................. 30 

SECTION 42. LEGAL REPRESENTATION ..................................................................................................... 30 

SECTION 43. FUND APPROPRIATION ....................................................................................................... 30 

SECTION 44. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME ......................................................................................................... 31 

SECTION 45. FINANCIAL INTEREST ........................................................................................................... 31 

SECTION 46. ALL PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED ............................................................................... 31 

SECTION 47. HEADINGS ............................................................................................................................ 31 

SECTION 48. EXHIBITS ............................................................................................................... ............... 31 

SECTION 49. MOST FAVORED NATIONS PROVISION AND COOPERATIVE PURCHASING ......................... 31 

SECTION 50. AGREEMENT FOR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AND RECYCLABLES PROCESSING SERVICES .... 32 

EXHIBIT! 

EXHIBIT 2 

EXHIBIT3 

EXHIBIT 4 

RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL SERVICE RATES 

SAMPLE CALCULATION OF ANNUAL RATE ADJUSTMENTS 

TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROLL CARTS 
DISASTER CLEANUP AGREEMENT 

ii 



SOLID WASTE, RECYCLABLES, AND BULK WASTE COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL 
AGREEMENT 

Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 

This Contract is made and entered into this r day of A-~9usf. 2019, between the Town of Ponce Inlet, a municipal 
corporation of the State of Florida, Volusia County, Florida, hereinafter referred to as "TOWN," and Waste Pro of Florida, 
Inc. authorized to do business in the State of Florida, hereinafter referred to as "CONTRACTOR." 

I 

Now, therefore, in consideration of the mutual covenants. agreements and consideration contained herein, the TOWN 
and CONTRACTOR hereby agree as hereinafter set forth: 

SECTION 1. EFFECTIVE DATE, COMMENCEMENT DATE, AND TERM 

A. Effective and Commencement Dates. The Effective Date of this Contract is the date this Contract is executed 
and signed by both the TOWN and CONTRACTOR. The Commencement Date is the date that Collection services 
required pursuant to this Contract commence. or October 1, 2019. 

B. Initial Term. The term of this Contract shall be for a five (S) year period beginning on the Commencement Date, 
October 1, 2019, and terminating September 30, 2024. 

C. Renewal Option. This Contract shall automatically renew for up to three (3) additional five (S) year periods 
unless either party provides the other party with written notice of non-renewal at least one (1) year prior to the 
conclusion of any Contract term. 

SECTION 2. DEFINITIONS 

For the purpose of this Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement, hereinafter referred 
to as "Contract," the definitions contained in this Section shall apply unless otherwise specifically stated or otherwise in 
conflict with Florida law. If a word or phrase is not defined in this Section. the definition of such word or phrase as 
contained in the TOWN Code shall control except where preempted by Florida law, in which case Florida law shall control. 
When not inconsistent with the context, words used in the present tense include the future, words in the plural include 
the singular, and words in the singular include the plural. Use of the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender. 
The word "shall" is always mandatory and not merely discretionary. 

A. Active Utility Billing Account means any property with a water meter paying at least the minimum monthly 
water service charge. 

B. Biohazardous or Biomedical Waste means any waste that may cause disease or reasonably be suspected of 
harboring pathogenic organisms, including waste resulting from the operation of medical clinics, hospitals, and 
other facilities processing waste that may consist of, but are not limited to, human and animal parts, 
contaminated bandages. pathological specimens, hypodermic needles, sharps, contaminated clothing. and 
surgical gloves. 

C. Bulk Trash means those wastes that may require special handling and management and which by reason of 
bulk, shape, or weight cannot be placed in a Container. Bulk Trash includes, but is not limited to. furniture and 
fixtures, mattresses, White Goods, equipment. and any and all household goods that are customary to ordinary 
housekeeping operations of a Residential Service Unit. Bulk Trash must be generated by the customer at the 
Residential Service Unit at which the Bulk Trash is placed for Collection. Bulk Trash does not include 
Construction and Demolition Debris. Contractor-Generated Waste, or Exempt Waste. 

D. Bulk Waste means the combination of Bulk Trash and Yard Trash. Bulk Waste must be generated by the 
customer at the Residential Service Unit at which it is placed for Collection. Bulk Waste does not include 
Construction and Demolition Debris. Contractor-Generated Waste, or Exempt Waste. 

1 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

E. Business(esl means all retail, professional, wholesale, agricultural. industrial facility, or any other commercial 
enterprises offering goods or services to the public or other businesses; any church, synagogue, mosque, or 
other house of worship; and any schools or other institutions. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

I. 

J. 

K. 

L. 

M. 

N. 

0. 

P. 

Q. 

R. 

s. 

T. 

u. 

V. 

Certificate of Occupancy means a document produced by the Town certifying that a newly constructed building 
has been constructed in compliance with Town specifications and Florida Building Code and is suitable for use. 

Collection means the process whereby Solid Waste, RecyclJble Materials, or Bulk Waste is removed and 
transported to the facilities designated in this Contract. 

Commencement Date means the date Collection services pursuant to this Contract commence, or October 1, 
2019. 

Compactor means any container that has a compaction mechanism, whether stationary or mobile. 

Construction and Demolition Debris or C&D Debris means discarded materials generally considered to be not 
water-soluble and nonhazardous in nature, including, but not limited to, steel, glass, brick, concrete, asphalt 
roofing material, pipe, gypsum wallboard, and lumber, from the construction or destruction of a structure as 
part of a construction or demolition project or from the renovation of a structure, and including rocks, soils, 
tree remains, trees, and other vegetative matter that normally results from land clearing or land development 
operations for a construction project. 

Container means any container intended for Collection. 

Contract means this agreement, including all attachments and amendments thereto, between the TOWN and 
the CONTRACTOR, governing the provision of services as provided herein. 

Contract Administrator means the Town Manager or designee. 

Contract Year means the time from the Commencement Date through September 30, 2020 and each year 
thereafter during the term of the Contract. 

CONTRACTOR means that person or entity that has obtained from the TOWN a Contract to provide the services 
set forth herein. 

Contractor-Generated Waste means Bulk Trash and/or Yard Trash generated by builders, building contractors, 
privately employed tree trimmers and tree surgeons, landscape services, lawn or yard maintenance services, 
and nurseries. 

County means Volusia County, Florida. 

Designated Disposal Facility means the disposal facility designated by the TOWN. 

Designated Materials Recovery Facility or Designated MRF means the facility designated by the TOWN for 
delivery of all Residential Recyclable Materials collected pursuant to this Contract. The designated facility for 
collected recycling material will be the Ormond Beach Transfer Station, 600 North Orchard Street, Ormond 
Beach, FL 32174. 

Dumpster means any metal container, with a capacity of two (2) or more cubic yards, designed or intended to 
be mechanically dumped into a loader packer type garbage truck. 

Effective Date means the date this Contract is executed by both the TOWN and CONTRACTOR. 

Exempt Waste means Biohazardous or Biomedical Waste, Hazardous Waste, Sludge, construction and 
demolition waste, tree parts or lumber that is more than four (4) feet in length in its longest dimension, 
automobiles, automobile parts, boats, boat parts, boat trailers, internal combustion engines, lead-acid 

2 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

batteries, used oil and tires, those wastes under the control of the Nuclear Regulatory Council, Contractor
Generated Waste, and those other materials whose size and/or weight are in excess of that allowed for Bulk 
Waste as defined herein. 

W. Hazardous Waste means any solid waste that is defined as a hazardous waste by the Florida Department of 
Environmental Protection in the State of Florida Administrative Code, or by any current or future federal, state, 

or local law. I J 

X. Holiday means a designated holiday on which the CONTRACTOR shall not be required to provide Residential 
Collection Service or to maintain office hours. For the purposes of this Contract, Holiday shall only mean 
Christmas Day, New Year's Day, Thanksgiving Day and any day that the landfill closes unless additional Holidays 
are approved by the Contract Administrator. 

Y. Non-Collection Notice means a durable tag, sign, and/or sticker placed on any Container or waste that has been 
set out for Collection by a customer but is not collectable in accordance with the provisions of this Contract 
and, therefore, has not been collected by the CONTRACTOR. 

Z. Recyclable Materials or Recyclables means those materials that are capable of being recycled and which would 
otherwise be processed or disposed of as Residential Solid Waste. Recyclable Materials include newspapers 
(including inserts), corrugated cardboard, mixed paper (including brown paper bags, magazines, phonebooks, 
junk mail, white and colored paper, and paperboard), aluminum cans, plastic containers and bottles marked 
with SPI codes 1-2, tin and ferrous cans, and other materials added by the TOWN. 

AA. Recycling Bin means a rigid rectangular receptacle made of plastic or other suitable substance of no less than 
eighteen (18) gallons for the Collection of Recyclable Materials. 

BB. Residence means any individual living unit in a single-family structure or building intended for, or capable of 
being utilized for, residential living. For the purposes of this Contract, the term Residence shall include a living 
unit that adjoins or is part of a building from which a duly licensed Business is conducted or operated. 

CC. Residential Collection Service means the Collection of Residential Waste from all Residential Service Units in 
the Service Area and the delivery of such materials to the facilities designated in this Contract. 

DD. Residential Customer means the occupant of the Residential Service Unit that receives Collection services 
pursuant to this Contract. 

EE. Residential Service Unit means any Residence receiving Residential Collection Service pursuant to this Contract. 

FF. Residential Waste means Solid Waste, Bulk Waste, and Recyclable Materials generated by Residential 
Customers and by the Town. 

GG. Roll Cart means a wheeled container designed and intended to be used for automated or semi-automated 
Collection of Solid Waste and/or Recyclable Materials that is a type and size approved by the Town. 

HH. Roll-off Container means any open-top Container of a capacity of ten (10) cubic yards or more. 

II. Service Area means the municipal limits of the TOWN. 

JJ. Sludge means the accumulated solids, residues, and precipitates generated as a result of waste treatment or 
processing, including wastewater treatment, water supply treatment, or operation of an air pollution control 
facility, and mixed liquids and solids pumped from septic tanks, grease traps, privies, or similar disposal 
appurtenances, or any other such waste having similar characteristics or effects. 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

KK. Solid Waste means garbage, rubbish, refuse, trash, or other similar discarded material resulting from domestic, 
industrial, agricultural, or governmental operations. For the purposes of this Contract, the only things Solid 
Waste excludes are Recyclable Materials, Exempt Waste, and Residential Bulk Waste. 

LL. TOWN means the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida. 

MM. Town Council or Council means the
1
governing body of the Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida. 

NN. White Goods means inoperative and discarded refrigerators, ranges, water heaters, freezers, and other similar 
domestic appliances. White Goods must be generated by the customer at the Residential Service Unit at which 
the White Goods are placed for Collection. 

00. Work Day means any day, Monday through Saturday, which is not a Holiday as set forth in this Contract. 

PP. Yard Trash means any vegetative matter resulting from normal yard and landscaping maintenance that is not 
more than four (4) feet in its longest dimension. Yard Trash must be generated by the customer at the 
Residential Service Unit at which the Yard Trash is placed for Collection. Yard Trash includes Christmas trees, 
but does not include Contractor-Generated Waste or Exempt Waste. Yard trash does not include vegetative or 
bulk material that is generated as the result of a hurricane or other declared disaster event. 

SECTION 3. GENERAL DESCRIPTION OF CONTRACTOR'S SERVICES 

A. Exclusive Contract. The CONTRACTOR is herein granted an exclusive Contract to provide Residential Collection 
Service within the TOWN. The CONTRACTOR is not granted the exclusive right to collect C&D Debris. The 
CONTRACTOR may provide C&D Debris collection services at competitive rates that shall not be controlled by 
this Contract. 

B. Services to be Provided. The CONTRACTOR shall provide Residential Collection Service to all Residential Service 
Units and to the Town within the Service Area. The CONTRACTOR shall transport and deliver all Solid Waste, 
Recyclable Materials, and Bulk Waste collected pursuant to this Contract to the facilities designated herein. 
CONTRACTOR agrees and understands that the Residential Bulk Waste is not required to be containerized in 
cans or plastic bags. CONTRACTOR further agrees and understands that CONTRACTOR is responsible for 
collecting any Residential Waste that has spilled or is no longer containerized, unless such spillage is clearly not 
caused by the CONTRACTOR or an employee of the CONTRACTOR. 

C. Exempt Waste. The CONTRACTOR shall not be required to collect or dispose of Exempt Waste, but may offer 
such services. All such collection and disposal of Exempt Waste are not regulated under this Contract, but if 
provided by the CONTRACTOR shall be in strict compliance with all federal, state, and local laws and regulations. 

D. Responsibility for Billing. The TOWN shall be responsible for the billing and collection of payments for 
Residential Collection Service. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the billing and collection of payments 
for providing and servicing extra Residential Roll Carts, special collection services requested and provided to 
Residential Customers as outlined in Section 5.D of this Contract. 

E. Payment for Disposal. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for making payment to the Designated Disposal 
Facility for the disposal of all Solid Waste collected pursuant to this Contract, and shall provide documentation 
of such payment to the TOWN. lf the Designated Disposal Facility requires that a payment bond be posted for 
disposal of Solid Waste collected pursuant to this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for posting 
such payment bond. 

4 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

SECTION 4. TRANSITION IN SERVICE 

A. Transition Prior to Commencement Date of Service. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for providing a smooth 
transition in services to minimize inconvenience to Residential Customers. To accomplish this objective, the 
CONTRACTOR shall submit to the Contract Administrator, prior to the TOWN's execution of this Contract, a 
Transition Plan that provides a detailed description of how the CONTRACTOR will plan and prepare for initiating 
Collection services on, the Commencement Date. The Transition Plan must meet the approval of the Contract 
Administrator. If the Contract Administrator does not approve any part of the Transition Plan, CONTRACTOR 
shall provide a revised proposed Transition Plan within five (5) Work Days of notification. At a minimum, the 
CONTRACTOR must address the specific performance requirements listed below in the Transition Plan and 
accomplish them according to deadlines specified in the TOWN-approved plan. This list is not intended to 
identify all necessary tasks to be performed by the CONTRACTOR, but to provide a springboard for the 
CONTRACTOR to develop a comprehensive Transition Plan. 

B. 

(1) Contact List: List of key transition personnel including, but not limited to, service transition project 
manager, education and outreach coordinator, and operations director (or similarly titled positions). 

(2) Transition Meeting and Call Schedules: Proposed meeting and call schedules including, but not limited to, 
meetings with the Contract Administrator, Town staff, and outgoing contractor leading up to the 
Commencement Date. 

(3) Office: Schedule for setting up an office, installing local telephone number routed to the office, and 
training staff to begin receiving calls. 

(4) Fleet: Schedule for ensuring that all vehicles are street legal (registered, insured, licensed, and tagged) 
and providing a vehicle/equipment list and route summary to the Contract Administrator. For all new 
purchases, CONTRACTOR shall provide a list of vehicles, manufacturer, purchase order, and 
documentation of anticipated delivery date. 

(5) Staffing and Training: Schedule for obtaining necessary labor and training staff on equipment and routes. 

(6) Routing: Schedule for developing Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste routes, identifying obstacles 
such as low trees and overhead wires, and conducting dry•runs of collection routes. 

Transition Prior to Expiration of this Contract. 

(1) Should the TOWN choose not to exercise the renewal option of this Contract or should no renewal options 
remain, the TOWN anticipates awarding a new contract at least six (6) months prior to the expiration of 
this Contract or any subsequent renewals. In the event a new contract has not been awarded within such 
time frame, the CONTRACTOR agrees to provide service to the TOWN for up to an additional one hundred 
and eighty (180) day period beyond the expiration of the Contract, provided the TOWN requests said 
services, in writing, at such time. The service rates for this additional period will be adjusted as they 
normally would on October 1 as specified in Sections 12 and 13 of this Contract. 

(2) At the expiration of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall work with the TOWN and the newly selected 
hauler to ensure a smooth transition period with no interruption of service, including, but not limited to, 
compliance with the following performance requirements: 

(a) Attend coordination meetings with the TOWN and newly selected hauler, as requested. 

(b) Work with the newly selected hauler to develop a mutually agreeable schedule for removal of 
CONTRACTOR-owned Containers and placement of newly selected hauler's containers. The schedule 
shall ensure no interruption in solid waste services. 

5 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

(c) Allow the newly selected hauler to purchase or rent for up to ninety (90) days, CONTRACTOR-owned 
Containers from the CONTRACTOR. The purchase price and/or rental shall be negotiated. 

(3) The TOWN reserves the right to withhold payment to CONTRACTOR for the final month of service until 
CONTRACTOR has complied with all requirements of this Section. 

SECTION 5. RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION SERVICE 

A. Residential Solid Waste Collection. 

(1) The CONTRACTOR shall provide Residential Solid Waste Collection to all Residential Service Units in the 
Service Area two (2) times per week with not less than forty-eight (48) hours or more than seventy-two 
(72) hours between regularly scheduled pickup days, with the exception of Holidays as set forth herein. 
Residential Solid Waste Collection shall occur twice per week on Monday and Thursday, unless a 
modification is approved by the Contract Administrator. 

(2) All Residential Solid Waste shall be properly containerized. All Solid Waste to be hand-lifted is to be placed 
in customer-provided containers or non-dissolvable plastic garbage bags with a capacity of not more than 
thirty-two (32) gallons and weighing not more than fifty (50) pounds. Any trash container larger than 32 
gallons must be able to be lifted with a mechanical trash container lifting device. If the Town decides to 
implement carted Collection of Solid Waste, to the extent possible all Solid Waste is to be placed in 
CONTRACTOR-provided Roll Carts; CONTRACTOR is expected to pick up additional bags, boxes, etc ... that 
may be placed next to Roll Carts. Residential Customers may request the CONTRACTOR to provide and 
service additional Solid Waste Roll Carts as specified in Section 6.8(4) of this Contract. 

(3) Hours: Residential Collection Service shall be provided commencing no earlier than 7:00 a.m. and 
terminating no later than 7:00 p.m. The hours and days of Collection may be extended due to 
extraordinary circumstances or conditions, with the prior written consent of the Contract Administrator. 

B. Residential Bulk Waste Collection. 

(1) The CONTRACTOR shall provide Residential Bulk Waste Collection, consisting of Yard Trash and Bulk Trash, 
to all Residential Service Units in the Service Area. Non-vegetative Residential Bulk Waste Collection shall 
occur on shall occur on the solid waste collection days and vegetative bulk waste shall occur once per 
week on Wednesday, unless otherwise approved in writing by the Contract Administrator; large piles of 
vegetative bulk waste may require multiple days for full collection. Collection is limited to twelve (12) 
cubic yards per set-out. In a few locations where space is limited (such as cul-de-sacs), one or more 
Residential Customers may combine their Bulk Waste into a single large pile. The TOWN will work with 
the residents and CONTRACTOR to identify these locations. 

(2) If Bulk Waste exceeds the twelve (12) cubic yard limit, the CONTRACTOR will treat any amount above the 
twelve (12) cubic yard limit as a special collection service in accordance with Section S.0(2). 

(3) The CONTRACTOR may collect Bulk Trash and Yard Trash in the same vehicle or in separate vehicles but 
shall collect such material in such a way that Yard Trash can be separated for recycling. Residents are 
asked to place non-containerized Yard Trash separate from Bulk Trash into an unobstructed pile to permit 
the CONTRACTOR to collect such Yard Trash with a grapple or clam truck, although at times hand 
collection, or an alternative method of collection, may be required. Collection of Yard Trash using a 
grapple or clam truck may be on the same Collection day as Collection of Bulk Trash. Collection of Bulk 
Trash may use a grapple or clam truck, although at times hand collection, or an alternative method of 
collection, may be required. 

6 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

(4) The CONTRACTOR shall collect White Goods so that they can be recycled. Residents are asked to place 
White Goods adjacent to other Bulk Trash but separate so as not to be obstructed. Even if residents fail 
to separate their White Goods, CONTRACTOR shall still utilize its best efforts to recycle comingled White 
Goods collected. 

C. Residential Recyclables Collection. 

D. 

(1) The CONTRACTOR shall provide Residential RecJclables Collection to all Residential Service Units in the 
Service Area. This service shall be provided once every week on Tuesday. unless a modification is 
approved in writing by the Contract Administrator. 

(2) Residential Recyclables shall be collected in a single stream, meaning that paper and commingled 
containers may be placed in the same 18 gallon recycle bin. All Recyclables are to be placed in 18 gallon 
recycle bins. Residential Customers may request the CONTRACTOR to provide and service additional 
recycle bins as specified in Section 6.C(2) of this Contract. 

(3) Contractor and City shall mutually agree on any additions or deletions of recyclable types to be collected. 
The addition of items shall be at no additional cost to the TOWN unless the CONTRACTOR can document 
that the addition of such items substantially impacts the cost of providing Residential Collection Service. 

Residential Special Collection Service. 

(1) For an additional fee, Residential Customers may request special collection service from the CONTRACTOR 
that exceeds the base-level services outlined herein. CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for invoicing and 
collecting payment from Residential Customers for special collection services outside the scope of this 
contract. The TOWN is not liable for a Residential Customer's failure to remit payment to CONTRACTOR 
for any special collection service provided. 

(2) Bulk Waste in excess of twelve (12) cubic yard limit. If a Residential Customer places more than twelve 
(12) cubic yards of Bulk Waste curbside for Collection, the CONTRACTOR shall collect all Bulk Waste and 
shall invoice the Customer for the amount of Bulk Waste exceeding the twelve (12) cubic yard limit. This 
per cubic yard amount shall be as approved in the contract between the Town and the CONTRACTOR. 

(3) By noon the business day following each Work Day, the CONTRACTOR shall provide the Town with the 
residential address associated with any overage of bulk waste to be charged and shall provide digital 
photographs of the entire pile prior to Collection, to document the size of the Bulk Waste pile. 

(4) No Mixing of Residential Materials. 

(5) The CONTRACTOR shall collect Residential Solid Waste, Bulk Waste, and Recyclable Materials generated 
in the TOWN separate from any Solid Waste, Bulk Waste, or Recyclable Materials generated in another 
jurisdiction. 

(6) The CONTRACTOR shall not commingle Residential Recyclable Materials with other Residential Waste. 

E. Side or Back Door Collection. Notwithstanding any term or definition set forth in this Contract, side or back 
door Collection of Residential Solid Waste and Residential Recyclable Materials from a Residential Service Unit 
shall be required if all adult occupants residing therein are disabled and if a request for side or back door 
Collection has been made to, and approved by, the Contract Administrator in the manner required by TOWN. 
The Contract Administrator shall notify the CONTRACTOR in writing of any customers requiring side or back 
door Collection. No additional monies shall be due to the CONTRACTOR for the provision of side or back door 
Collection to disabled Residential Customers. The CONTRACTOR will not be required to enter any buildings, 
garages or gated areas of the property to service a Residential Customer. 

7 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

F. Dead Animals Collection. CONTRACTOR shall pickup any dead animals from both streets and right of ways 
within the Town upon visually observing such or being notified by the Town of the need for said pickup, within 
four (4) hours of notification, on any day in which they are in Town performing other collections - currently 
scheduled for Monday- Thursday. 

G. Hours. Residential Collection Service shall be provided Monday through Saturday, commencing no earlier than 
7:00 a.m. and terminating no later than 17:00 p.m., with no service on or Sunday. The hours and/or days of 
Collection may be extended due to extraordinary circumstances or conditions, with the prior consent of the 
Contract Administrator. 

H. Holidays. In the event a Residential Customer's normal Collection day falls on a holiday observed by the 
CONTRACTOR and accepted by the TOWN via this CONTRACT, Collection shall occur on the Residential 
Customer's next regularly scheduled Collection day. 

I. Accessibility. All properly prepared Residential Containers, including Roll Carts, shall be placed within three (3) 
feet of the curb, swale, paved surface of the public roadway, closest accessible roadway, or other such location 
agreed to by the CONTRACTOR and customer, that will provide safe and efficient accessibility to the 
CONTRACTOR'S collection crew and vehicle. When possible, CONTRACTOR shall work to ensure that 
Containers, including Roll Carts, are placed in an upright position within three (3) feet of the curb, swale, 
roadway, or other such location agreed to by the CONTRACTOR and customer, that will help to ensure that no 
Container or Roll Cart impedes, alters, or prevents the vehicular traffic. In certain instances, properly prepared 
Residential Waste may be placed in driveway turnout areas to avoid placing it in the traveled roadway. The 
CONTRACTOR shall report monthly to the Contract Administrator all situations that prevent or hinder Collection 
on any premises. 

J. 

K. 

Manner of Collection. 

(1) The CONTRACTOR shall provide Residential Collection Service with as little noise and disturbance as 
possible. 

(2) CONTRACTOR's employees shall completely empty any Container without obstructing alleys, roadways, 
driveways, sidewalks, or mail boxes. Roll Carts shall be placed in an upright position with the lid closed. 
Containers with unattached lids shall be placed either in an upright position with the lid set on top or in 
an inverted position with the lid placed underneath to help prevent the lid from flying away or if that is 
impractical directly behind the Container. 

(3) CONTRACTOR'S employees shall follow the regular walk for pedestrians while on private property. No 
trespassing by CONTRACTOR'S employees will be permitted or crossing property to the adjoining premises 
unless the occupant or owner of both properties has given permission. Care shall be taken to prevent 
damage to property, including flowers, shrubs, and other plantings. CONTRACTOR is responsible for 
repairs to all damaged property. 

(4) CONTRACTOR's Collection vehicles shall remain on the right-hand side of the road when providing 
Residential Collection Service on two-way streets with center stripes. At no time shall collection crews 
cross to the opposite side of a street with center stripes to retrieve Containers, Roll Carts, or materials 
that have been set out for Collection. In situations where it is impossible or difficult to turn around to 
serve a location from the right side of the vehicle, then left-side service is permitted, but only in a manner 
than ensures the safety of residents and collection workers and only when approved by the Contract 
Administrator. At no time shall collection workers use the riding steps when the vehicle is backing up, 
exceeding 10 miles per hour, or traveling more than 0.2 miles. 

Spillage. The CONTRACTOR shall clean up any Residential Solid Waste spilled from a Container by the 
CONTRACTOR or its employees or Residential Bulk Waste spilled or scattered by the CONTRACTOR or its 

8 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

L. 

A. 

B. 

employees prior to proceeding to the next customer, if reasonably possible, but in no event prior to the end of 
that pick-up day. Care shall be taken by CONTRACTOR'S employees to prevent damage to Containers by 
unnecessary rough treatment. 

Routes and Schedules. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the Contract Administrator with schedules for all 
Residential Collection Service routes in accordance with the Transition Plan and shall always keep such 
information current. If any changes in the Collection routes occur, the Contract Administrator shall be 
immediately notified in writing. No permanent change in routes or schedules that 

1
will alter the days of 

Residential Waste Collection may be made without the prior written consent of the Contract Administrator. In 
the event a permanent change in routes or schedules that will alter the days of Residential Waste Collection is 
approved by the Contract Administrator, the CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the affected Residential 
Customers, in writing or other manner as approved by the Contract Administrator, not less than two (2) weeks 
prior to the change. 

SECTION 6. RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION CONTAINERS 

Customer-Provided Containers. Within five (5) Work Days of being notified by a Residential Customer or the 
TOWN that CONTRACTOR or its employees destroyed the customer's non-TOWN supplied Container, 
CONTRACTOR shall provide the Residential Customer with a Container of comparable size and quality. 
CONTRACTOR is not responsible for a replacement Container if it can satisfactorily prove to the Contract 
Administrator that CONTRACTOR or its employees did not damage the customer's Container. Prior to payment 
or replacement of the Container, the Residential Customer shall give CONTRACTOR their damaged Container 
for disposal. 

Purchase and Distribution of Solid Waste Roll Carts. 

If during the term of this Agreement, the TOWN chooses to implement carted Collection of Solid Waste at the 
onset of any five-year renewal of this agreement, and if such carted Collection of Solid Waste is approved by 
the CONTRACTOR, this section shall apply. 

(1) Within one hundred and twenty days of the TOWN'S decision to implement carted Collection of Solid 
Waste, CONTRACTOR shall deliver one (1) Solid Waste Roll Cart to each Residential Customer within the 
Service Area. After the roll-out, CONTRACTOR shall deliver Solid Waste Roll Carts within five (S) Work 
Days of notification of a new Residential Customer. Roll Carts must meet the technical specifications 
provided in Exhibit S and be approved by the Contract Administrator. Roll carts shall be delivered with 
information attached pursuant to Section 11.C. 

(2) The standard Solid Waste Roll Cart shall be ninety-five (95) gallons or similar in size. However, 
CONTRACTOR shall make sixty-five (65) gallon (or similar in size) Solid Waste Roll Carts available upon 
request by a Residential Customer. Prior to assembly and distribution of Solid Waste Roll Carts, 
CONTRACTOR may conduct a survey of Residential Customers to determine which size Solid Waste Roll 
Cart they prefer. If CONTRACTOR plans to conduct such a survey, the details of such survey shall be 
included in the Transition Plan and the survey and method of collection of survey data must be approved 
by the TOWN in advance of its distribut ion. 

(3) Upon request by a Residential Customer, CONTRACTOR shall exchange a Solid Waste Roll Cart with an 
alternatively-sized Roll Cart within five (S) Work Days of request for such exchange by the customer or 
TOWN. CONTRACTOR shall provide one (1) Solid Waste Roll Cart exchange per Residential Customer 
during the initial Contract term at no charge to the customer or the TOWN. Should a Residential Customer 
request additional exchanges, CONTRACTOR may charge the Residential Customer no more than one 
hundred dollars ($100) per Roll Cart that is exchanged. CONTRACTOR shall track and report exchanges in 
the asset management database specified in Subsection E below. 

9 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

C. 

(4) Upon request by a Residential Customer, CONTRACTOR shall provide more than one (1) Solid Waste Roll 
Cart to accommodate extra materials. CONTRACTOR shall charge Residential Customer for each extra 
Solid Waste Roll Cart for an additional unit in accordance with Exhibit 1. CONTRACTOR shall provide 
additional Solid Waste Roll Carts within five (5) Work Days of request by a Residential Customer or the 
TOWN. CONTRACTOR shall record all extra Solid Waste Roll Carts delivered to Residential Customers in 
the asset management database and report them monthly to the Contract Administrator. If a Residential 
Custome1r desires the Collection of the extra Solid Waste Roll Cart(s),I CONTRACTOR shall issue an annual 
invoice for the Collection that shall be paid directly by the Residential Customer to CONTRACTOR in 
accordance with the rate schedule provided in Exhibit 1. Such annual invoice shall be prorated based 
upon the !51 day of the month that Collection commences, and it shall be based upon a calendar year. 
CONTRACTOR shall send all renewal invoices to the Residential Customers in December of each calendar 
year. CONTRACTOR shall not be required to collect any extra Solid Waste Roll Cart(s) unless it has been 
paid to collect same. Residential Customer may cancel its extra Solid Waste Roll Cart(s) Collection at any 
time, but such cancellation shall only go into effect the next calendar year. Residential Customers who 
cancel their extra Collection shall not receive a proration for services, nor shall they be able to seek a 
credit for failure to utilize this service. The TOWN is not liable or responsible for any payment to 
CONTRACTOR for the failure of payment by a Residential Customer, or for CONTRACTOR's collection of 
such extra waste. 

(5) If the Town elects to transition to carted Collection of Solid Waste, and if CONTRACTOR approves such 
transition, within thirty (30) days of such election, CONTRACTOR shall provide a transition plan to the 
Contract Administrator, which is subject to the approval of the Contract Administrator. The transition 
plan shall include the information specified below: 

(a) Cart Procurement: Schedule for purchase and manufacturing of CONTRACTOR-provided Roll Carts for 
Residential Collection Service including artwork approval by TOWN and prototype delivery. The 
TOWN retains the right to require acceptable documentation including, but not limited to, purchase 
orders, delivery schedules, and receipts of payment. 

(b) Cart Assembly and Distribution (A&D): Schedule for Roll Cart A&D including cart shipment dates, days 
and hours of operations, and completion of A&D. All Roll Carts shal1 be delivered to all customers at 
least two (2) weeks prior to the Commencement Date. An A&D plan shall also be included two (2) 
weeks prior to the Commencement date identifying A&D contractor, if applicable, and contact 
information, staging areas, A&D route schedule, number of crews, expected number of carts delivered 
per crew per day, method of assigning carts to addresses, data points to be collected at time of A&D, 
and upload frequency of data into central A&D database. CONTRACTOR shall provide a list matching 
the serial number of each Roll Cart to the specific address to which each Roll Cart has been assigned. 
After delivery, residents may affix their names and property address onto their assigned Roll Cart. 

(c) Cart Swaps: Schedule for Roll Cart swaps, including plan for receiving swap requests, initiating 
exchanges, and maintaining asset management database. 

Purchase and Distribution of Recycling Bins. 

(1) Residential Customers shall retain Recycling Bins utilized during the previous collection contract. Prior to 
the Commencement Date, the CONTRACTOR shall ensure that all Residential Customers desiring Recycling 
Bins are provided such. Recycling Bins shall be of a similar size and quality as those currently in use, meet 
the technical specifications provided in Exhibit 5, and be approved by the Contract Administrator. The 
CONTRACTOR shall purchase and provide Recycling Bins to all new Residential Customers within five (5) 
Work Days of notification of a new Residential Customer. 

(2) Upon request by a Residential Customer, CONTRACTOR shall provide more than one (1) Recycling Bin to 
accommodate extra recyclable materials. CONTRACTOR shall provide additional Recycling Roll Bins within 

10 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

D. 

E. 

five (S) Work Days of request by a Residential Customer or the TOWN. CONTRACTOR shall record all extra 
Recycling Bins delivered to Residential Customers on the asset management list and report them monthly 
to the Contract Administrator. Additional Recycling Bins shall be collected at no additional cost to the 
Residential Customer or the TOWN. 

Repair and Replacement of Solid Waste and Recycling Bins. 

(~) CONTRACTOR shall maintain a sufficient inventory of solid Waste Roll Carts (if this option is ever selected) 
and Recycling Bins to be able to deliver new or replacement Roll Carts/Bins of the requested size within 
five (5) Work Days of receiving request. 

(2) CONTRACTOR shall repair or replace a Roll Cart/Bin within five (S) Work Days of receiving notice from the 
TOWN or customer of the need for repair, or if identified unserviceable by CONTRACTOR. 

(3) Any Roll Carts/Bins damaged by the CONTRACTOR, including extra Roll Carts/Bins, shall be replaced by 
the CONTRACTOR, at the CONTRACTOR's expense, at no cost or inconvenience to the Residential 
Customer. 

(4) The cost of replacing Roll Carts/Bins due to loss, theft (without documented police report), or destruction 
through no fault of the CONTRACTOR shall be charged by the CONTRACTOR to the Residential Customer 
for an amount not to exceed the rate schedule set forth in Exhibit 1. This rate may be adjusted by the 
TOWN if the CONTRACTOR provides sufficient documentation to demonstrate that such adjustment is 
warranted. This fee may be collected from the Residential Customer by the CONTRACTOR at the time of 
delivery of the Roll Cart/Bin. 

Asset Management List. 

(1) The TOWN will provide the CONTRACTOR with a list of Residential Customers that includes the parcel folio 
number, address, and number of Residential Service Units on each parcel. CONTRACTOR shall use this list 
to develop and maintain an asset management database through which CONTRACTOR shall be 
responsible for reporting and tracking the movement of all Roll Carts used for Residential Collection 
Service, including deliveries, removals, exchanges, repairs, warranty recovery, and any other information 
necessary to manage cart assets, subject to TOWN approval. The database shall also specify the route for 
each Residential Service Unit and shall be in a format that is searchable by the Contract Administrator. 
The initial database must be populated and transmitted to the Contract Administrator in accordance with 
the approved Transition Plan. All database adjustments must be made within forty-eight (48) hours of 
physical inventory exchange and completion of work order. If a cart is swapped out, data for the cart 
removed and the cart replaced is to be provided. Data fields shall include, but not be limited to the 
following: 

(a) Work order number, date, and status 

(b) Residential Service Unit name/ID and address 

(c) Parcel folio number (as provided by the TOWN) 

(d) For each Roll Cart at each Residential Service Unit, the type (Solid Waste or Recycling), size, and serial 
number 

(e) Routes on which the Residential Service Unit is serviced 

(2) CONTRACTOR shall provide the Contract Administrator with an updated copy of the asset management 
database monthly, as well as access upon request. 

11 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

F. Ownership of Roll Carts/Bins. Ownership of Roll Carts/Bins provided by CONTRACTOR shall rest with the 
CONTRACTOR until expiration or termination of this Contract, at which point ownership and warranty transfer 
shall rest with the TOWN. Should the Contract be terminated early for convenience, the TOWN shall pay the 
CONTRACTOR a prorated amount for the purchase price of the Solid Waste Roll Carts based on a five (5) year 
amortization schedule. 

SECTION 7. RESIDENTIAL NON-COLLECTION PROCEDURES 

A. In the event Solid Waste contains Exempt Waste, Recyclable Materials are contaminated through commingling 
with Solid Waste, or other occurrence that would warrant legitimate non-collection by the CONTRACTOR, the 
CONTRACTOR shall affix a Non-Collection Notice to the Container or waste itself explaining why Collection was 
not made and explaining proper procedures for setting out Solid Waste, Bulk Waste, and Recyclable Materials. 
CONTRACTOR shall take digital photographs of the waste or pile to document the reason for non-collection. If 
the uncollected waste consists of Bulk Waste, CONTRACTOR shall take photographs from at least one (1) side 
of the pile, at a minimum. 

B. The design and content of all Non-Collection Notices must be approved by the Contract Administrator and the 
cost of printing and delivery of said notices shall be paid for by the CONTRACTOR. 

C. By the end of each Work Day or in no event later than noon the next Work Day, the CONTRACTOR shall 
electronically transmit to the Contract Administrator a list of all Residential Service Units at which Collection 
was not made that Work Day. This list shall include the reasons for the non-collection and the addresses of such 
non-collection. The CONTRACTOR shall also electronically transmit all digital photographs of the non-collection 
to the Contract Administrator. 

SECTION 8. RESIDENTIAL BULK WASTE PROCESSING 

A. The CONTRACTOR is responsible for the transport, processing, marketing, and final disposal of all Residential 
Bulk Waste collected by the CONTRACTOR. Bulk Waste must be processed or disposed at a legally permitted 
and licensed facility(ies) to process such materials, as agreed upon by the TOWN and CONTRACTOR. The Bulk 
Waste processing facility shall be (name of facility specified by selected vendor to be inserted) or such other 
facility(ies) approved in writing by the Contract Administrator. 

B. To the extent practical, the CONTRACTOR shall recycle any recyclable items collected in the Residential Bulk 
Trash, including White Goods, and shall mulch, compost, or otherwise recycle Yard Trash. The CONTRACTOR 
shall record the quantities of Bulk Trash and Yard Trash recycled and the quantities disposed and shall report 
such quantities to the Contract Administrator for each month and the report shall be given to the Contract 
Administrator within the month following the report date. 

SECTION 9. DESIGNATED FACILITIES 

A. Except as set forth below, all Residential Solid Waste collected by the CONTRACTOR shall be transported to, 
and disposed of, at any facility selected by the Contractor and approved by the TOWN. The designated facility 
for collected solid waste and bulk waste will be the Volusia County Landfill, 1990 Tomeka Farms Road, Port 
Orange, Florida 32128-3752. 

B. All Residential Recyclable Materials collected by the CONTRACTOR shall be delivered any facility selected by the 
Contractor and approved by the TOWN. The designated facility for collected recycling material will be the 
Ormond Beach Transfer Station, 600 North Orchard Street, Ormond Beach, FL 32174. 

C. Failure to comply with this provision shall result in the levy of liquidated damages as specified in Section 21 of 
this Contract and may result in the CONTRACTOR being in default under this Contract. 

12 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

A. 

B. 

A. 

B. 

SECTION 10. ADDITIONAL SERVICES 

TOWN Services. The CONTRACTOR shall provide, at no cost to the TOWN, Solid Waste and Recyclables 
Collection services to all Town facilities, including the provision and servicing of Containers. Provided below is 
a list of services provided at the time of Contract execution. Services to be provided may be adjusted during 
the term of the Contract based on need. 

I 

Address 
Service # Garbage # Recycle Dumpster 

locations 
Frequency Carts Carts Size 

Once ' 1 dumpster 6yards & 
Ponce Inlet Police Dept 4301 S. Peninsula Dr. 

weekly 
1 dumpster 

2 toters 4yards 

Ponce Inlet Fire Dept 4680 S. Peninsula Dr. 
Once 

1 dumpster 
1 dumpster 8 yards & 

weekly 2 taters 6 yards 

Ponce Inlet Public 
4875 s. Peninsula Dr. 

Twice 
4 2 toters 95gal 

Works Facility weekly 

Ponce Inlet Community 
4670 S. Peninsula Dr. 

Once 
1 dumpster 6 yards -Center weekly 

Ponce Inlet Boat Ramp 4985 S. Peninsula Dr. 
Once 

2dumpsters Syards -Weekly 

Ponce Preserve 4401 S. Peninsula Dr. 
Once 

Bulk waste 
weekly 

Public Awareness Program. The CONTRACTOR agrees to participate in public outreach events, at no charge to 
the Town, by providing up to twelve (12) hours per year of an outreach person's time at such public outreach 
events, provided that notice of at least two weeks is given. If the TOWN'S notice for CONTRACTOR'S cooperation 
under this Section is less than two weeks, CONTRACTOR, at its sole discretion, may agree to provide the 
requested outreach person. 

SECTION 11. RESIDENTIAL RATES AND BILLING 

Customer Billing. Except as specifically provided herein, the TOWN shall be responsible for the billing and 
collection of payments for all Residential Collection Service. The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for directly 
billing Residential Customers for providing and servicing extra Roll Carts and for providing special collection 
service as specified in Section 5.0 of this Contract. 

CONTRACTOR Invoicing. The CONTRACTOR shall invoice the TOWN for Residential Collection Services rendered 
under this Contract no later than the tenth (10th

) calendar day of the month following the month such services 
were rendered. The TOWN shall review the invoice and pay all undisputed portions of the invoice within twenty 
(20) days of receipt of the invoice. The TOWN may utilize a check, or ACH for making payments. The monthly 
invoice from and payment to the CONTRACTOR shall be the Residential Service Unit count times the monthly 
residential rate as shown in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and included herein. 

Residential Service Unit Count. No later than September 15', 2019, the TOWN will provide the CONTRACTOR 
with an initial list of Residential Service Units within the Service Area. In the event the CONTRACTOR does not 
agree with the Residential Service Unit count provided by the TOWN, the CONTRACTOR may request that the 
TOWN and the CONTRACTOR perform a joint physical count of the Residential Service Units in the Service Area. 
The Residential Service Unit count may be increased or decreased monthly by the Town based upon those units 
with an active utility billing account, as defined in this contract. No temporary suspension of collection service 
may be authorized for any customer with an active utility billing account. The CONTRACTOR may request and 
the TOWN will subsequently provide a list of active utility billing accounts at any t ime during the contract, at no 
cost to the CONTRACTOR. If the CONTRACTOR does not dispute the number of Residential Service Units 

13 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

C. 

D. 

E. 

F. 

provided by the TOWN for a given month within 30 days of receipt of said month's payment, the number of 
Residential Service Unity shall be deemed to be accepted by the CONTRACTOR and CONTRACTOR waives all 
rights to recourse for its failure to contest the Residential Service Unit count provided by the TOWN. 

Service Rates. The TOWN shall initially pay the CONTRACTOR for Residential Collection Service in accordance 
with the rates and generation factors established in Exhibit 1, attached hereto and included herein. The 
collection elements ~nd Bulk Waste disposal element of the initial service rate ~hall not be adjusted through 
September 30, 2021. 

Service Rate Adjustments. The rates for Residential Collection Service shall be adjusted October 1, 2021, and 
annually thereafter each Contract Year, as described herein. Any requested adjustments must be submitted to 
the Town by July 1st of each year for the following fiscal year, beginning with July is1

, 2021. An example of the 
calculation of such adjustment is provided in Exhibit 2. All rate adjustments shall be reduced to writing and 
signed by the CONTRACTOR representative identified in Section 27 and the Town Administrator. 

Indexes for Adjusting Rates. The following indexes shall be used for calculating rate adjustments pursuant to 
this Contract. If either of these indexes is discontinued or substantially altered, the TOWN shall select another 
relevant index published by the United States Government or by a reputable publisher of financial and economic 
indexes. 

(1) The Consumer Price Index (CPI) used for adjusting rates shall be the Consumer Price Index for Series Id: 
CUUROOOOSEHG02, Garbage and trash collection in U.S. city average, all urban consumers, not seasonally 
adjusted as determined and recorded by the United States Department of Labor, Bureau of Labor 
Statistics. 

(2) The Fuel Index used for adjusting rates shall be the Lower Atlantic (PADD lC) Ultra Low Sulfur (15 ppm 
and under) Retail Diesel Prices (Dollars per Gallon) as published by the Energy Information Administration 
of the United States Department of Energy. 

Collection Element Adjustment. The collection elements of the Residential Collection Service rates shall be 
adjusted based on the Consumer Price Index and Fuel Index, as defined in this Section and illustrated in Exhibit 
2. 

(1) Ninety-five percent (95%) of the collection elements of the Residential service rates shall be adjusted 
based on one hundred percent (100%) of the percentage change in the CPI for February of the previous 
year and February of the current year, rounded to the nearest hundredth of a percent. 

(2) Five percent (5%) of the collection elements of the Residential service rates shall be adjusted based on 
the percentage change in the average monthly Fuel Index for the twelve (12) month period ending 
February of the previous year and the average monthly Fuel Index for the twelve (12) month period ending 
February of the current year, rounded to the nearest hundredth of a percent. 

(3) In no event shall the annual collection element adjustment exceed five percent (5%) of the collection 
element of the service rate paid by the Town in the previous Contract Year. 

G. Solid Waste Disposal Element Adjustment. The Solid Waste disposal element of the Residential service rate shall 
be adjusted on the effective date of the new rate based on the new tipping fee at the Designated Disposal 
Facility. The new annual Residential Solid Waste disposal element shall be calculated as follows: 

New tipping 
fee ($/ton) 

x 0.764 tons/Residential 
Service Unit (Solid Waste 
generation factor) 

= New Residential Solid Waste 
disposal element 
($/Residential Service Unit) 

Such changes in rate shall be effective October 1st of the next fiscal year. In no event shall the CONTRACTOR 
utilize any tipping fee, other than the current approved tipping fee, in the preparation of its monthly invoices to 

14 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

the TOWN; except that in the event the CONTRACTOR is charged a tipping fee that is less than the current 
approved tipping fee for the disposal of Residential Solid Waste, such lower tipping fee shall be used in the 
preparation of the monthly invoice to the TOWN. The TOWN may request from the CONTRACTOR such further 
information as may be reasonably necessary in making its determination. 

H. Bulk Waste Disposal Element Adjustment. The Bulk Waste disposal element of the Residential service rate shall 
be adjusted based on the new disposal rate at the Designated Disposal. The new annual Residential Bulk and 

' I 
Yard Waste disposal element shall be calculated as follows: 

New tipping 
fee ($/ton) 

x 0.623 tons/Residential 
Service Unit (Bulk Waste 
generation factor) 

• New Residential Bulk Waste 
disposal element 
($/Residential Service Unit) 

I. Generation Factor Adiustments. The generation factors specified in Exhibit 1 that are used to calculate the rates 
for Solid Waste disposal and Bulk Waste disposal shall be set by July 15, 2021, and shall be adjusted October 1, 
2021, and shall then remain constant for the remainder of the Contract term. The generation factors will be 
adjusted based on the average quantities of Residential Solid Waste and Residential Bulk Waste (not including 
Bulk Waste that exceeded the 12 cubic yard limit per pickup) collected per Residential Service Unit during the 
first Contract Year. Regardless of final determination of the average quantities of Residential Solid Waste and 
Residential Bulk Waste collected per Residential Service Unit during the first Contract Year, the adjusted 
generation factor for Residential Bulk Waste shall not exceed the FY 2016 level of 4.67 tons per Residential 
Service Unit per year and the generation factor for Residential Solid Waste shall not exceed the generation 
factor provided in Exhibit 1 of 1.28 tons per Residential Service Unit per year. The Contractor shall provide 
monthly documentation demonstrating the accuracy of the tonnage of Residential Solid Waste and Bulk Waste 
collected in the Town during the first Contract Year. The Solid Waste disposal element and Bulk Waste disposal 
element shall be calculated based on these adjusted generation factors, as well as the adjustments specified in 
Sections 12.H and 12.1 above. Notwithstanding the CONTRACTOR provided monthly reporting, the TOWN may 
elect to conduct its own waste management study. The generation factors determined by that study will be 
the factors used in the CONTRACT. 

J. Contract Preparation and Administration Expenses. The TOWN shall assume all expenses regarding contract 
preparation and general administration of the contract by TOWN employees. 

K. Recycling Revenues. The TOWN shall retain any revenue generated from the processing and sale of Residential 
Recyclable Materials after processing and transportations fees are paid. 

SECTION 12. CHANGE IN LAW AND UNUSUAL CHANGES IN THE COST OF DOING BUSINESS 

The CONTRACTOR may petition the TOWN for an additional rate adjustment resulting from a change in law or unusual 
cost of doing business. The CONTRACTOR'S request shall contain substantial proof and justification to support the need 
for the rate adjustment. The TOWN may request from the CONTRACTOR such further information as may be reasonably 
necessary in making its determination. Within sixty (60) calendar days of receipt of the request and all other additional 
information required by the TOWN, the Town Administrator shall make a determination regarding the fairness of the 
request and shall make a recommendation to the Town Council at a regular meeting. Adjusted Rates shall become 
effective upon approval by the Town Council. 

SECTION 13. CONTRACTOR'S PERSONNEL 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall assign a qualified supervisor to oversee the operations within the Service Area and shall 
provide the name of that person in writing to the Contract Administrator annually and any other time the person 
in that position changes. The supervisor shall always be available to the TOWN by telecommunications 
equipment that the CONTRACTOR is providing Residential Collection Service. The supervisor or their 

15 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

representative shall be available onsite within four (4) hours or before the end of the Work Day if requested by 
the Contract Administrator. 

B. The CONTRACTOR shall employ and assign qualified personnel to perform all services set forth herein. The 
CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for ensuring that its employees comply with all applicable laws and 
regulations and meet all federal, state and local requirements related to their employment and position. 

1c. The TOWN may request the transfer of any employee bf the CONTRACTOR who materially violates any provision 
hereof, or who is wanton, negligent, or discourteous in the performance of his duties. 

D. CONTRACTOR'S employees shall be required to wear a clean uniform shirt bearing the CONTRACTOR'S name. 
CONTRACTOR'S employees, who normally come into direct contact with the public, including drivers, shall bear 
some means of individual identification such as a name tag or identification card. 

E. Each driver of a Collection vehicle shall at all times carry a valid Florida driver's license and all other required 
licenses for the type of vehicle that is being operated. 

F. CONTRACTOR'S employees, officers, and agents shall at no time be allowed to identify themselves or in any 
way represent themselves as being employees of the TOWN. The CONTRACTOR'S name and office telephone 
number shall be properly displayed on all Collection vehicles. 

SECTION 14. SPILLAGE AND LITTER 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall not litter any premises in the process of providing Residential Collection Service. The 
CONTRACTOR shall exercise all reasonable care and diligence in providing Collection services so as to prevent 
spilling or dropping of Solid Waste, Bulk Waste, or Recyclable Materials during Collection activity and shall 
immediately, prior to proceeding to the next customer, if reasonably possible, but in no event prior to the end 
of that pick up day, clean up such spilled or dropped Solid Waste, Bulk Waste, or Recyclable Materials. The 
CONTRACTOR shall transport all Solid Waste, Bulk Waste, and Recyclable Materials in such a manner as to 
prevent the spilling or blowing from the CONTRACTOR'S vehicle. 

B. Equipment oil, hydraulic fluids, spilled paint, or any other liquid or debris resulting from the CONTRACTOR'S 
operations or equipment repair shall be covered immediately with an absorptive material and removed from 
the street or other surface. When necessary, CONTRACTOR shall apply a suitable cleaning agent to the street 
surface to provide adequate cleaning or remove contaminated surface soil or material and promptly replace 
with clean soil or surface material. CONTRACTOR shall provide the TOWN with a daily report of any such 
leakage, the location of such leakage, the vehicle at issue, and the remediation measures used to correct same. 

SECTION 15. COLLECTION EQUIPMENT 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall always have on hand, in good working order, such collection equipment as shall permit 
the CONTRACTOR to adequately and efficiently perform the duties specified in this Contract. Any proposed 
change in the collection system being used by the CONTRACTOR during the Contract period shall be submitted 
in writing by the CONTRACTOR to the Contract Administrator. 

B. Residential collection vehicles shall be of a type sufficient to efficiently collect all Solid Waste, Bulk Waste, and 
Recyclable Materials covered by this Contract, and transport such materials to the designated facilities in a 
manner such that no collected materials can be blown or fall from the vehicle during transport. The 
CONTRACTOR may utilize open-bed vehicles in the provision of Bulk Waste Collection; however, the vehicles 
must contain the Bulk Waste so that no material is spilled, leaked, or blown from the vehicle, and the vehicle 
must be covered with a securely fastened tarp during transport. 

16 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

C. Each collection vehicle shall always be equipped with: (a) all safety supplies, equipment, and first aid supplies 
required by applicable laws; (b) a fire extinguisher; (c) a heavy-duty broom, a rake, and a large dustpan or 
shovel; {d) a spill response kit; (e) an audible back-up warning device; and (f) back-up cameras. The spill 
response kit shall be suitable and adequate for cleaning up any leaks or spills of oil, hydraulic fluid, or other 
liquids from CONTRACTOR's collection vehicles. 

D. All equipment shall be kept well painted, shall clearly display and shall only display CONTRACTOR's name and 
telephone number, and shall be maintained in good repair, appearance, and sanitary, clean condition in order 
to meet community standards of appearance at all times. All collection equipment shall be leak-proof to prevent 
any liquid from draining onto the ground. The TOWN reserves the right, at its discretion, to require a vehicle be 
taken out of service for habitual leakage of oil, hydraulic fluid, or other liquids or other maintenance issues. 
Such vehicle shall not be placed back into service until and unless the TOWN is able to verify that the necessary 
repairs have been made. 

E. The CONTRACTOR shall have available to it, at all times, reserve equipment which can be put into service and 
operation within two (2) hours of any breakdown. Such reserve equipment shall correspond in size and capacity 
to the equipment used by the CONTRACTOR to perform the contractual duties. 

SECTION 16. OFFICE 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall maintain an office where complaints can be received and which provides toll-free 
telephone access for customers living in the TOWN. Such office shall be equipped with sufficient telephones, 
shall have responsible persons in charge, and shall be open 8:00 a.m. to 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday on 
those days that the CONTRACTOR provides Residential Collection Service. The CONTRACTOR shall provide either 
a telephone answering service or mechanical device to receive customer inquiries during those times when the 
office is closed. Messages left on the answering service or mechanical device shall be responded to on the next 
Work Day. 

B. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the Contract Administrator with an emergency phone number where the 
CONTRACTOR can be reached outside of the required office hours. 

SECTION 17. SERVICE INQUIRIES, COMPLAINTS, AND PROPERTY DAMAGE 

A. All service inquiries and complaints shall be directed to the CONTRACTOR. A representative of the CONTRACTOR 
shall be available to receive the complaints during normal business hours. All service complaints shall be 
handled by the CONTRACTOR in a prompt and efficient manner. In the case of a dispute between a 
CONTRACTOR and a customer, the matter will be reviewed and a decision made by the Contract Administrator. 

B. The CONTRACTOR will maintain a written record of all calls it receives regarding services provided pursuant to 
this Contract, including but not limited to inquiries, missed Collections, and complaints (Call Log). CONTRACTOR 
shall use a standard form for the Call Log, as approved by the Contract Administrator, to record the pertinent 
facts of each call, including but not limited to date and time of call; name, address, and telephone number of 
person calling; reason for the call; action taken by CONTRACTOR; and date and time any issue was resolved . 
CONTRACTOR shall keep this Call Log up to date. By the end of each Work Day, the CONTRACTOR shall e-mail 
to the Contract Administrator the Call Log for all calls received during that Work Day or since the previous Call 
Log was submitted. 

C. For those complaints related to missed Collections, CONTRACTOR shall make every effort to return to the 
service address and collect the missed materials that same day. For missed Collection complaints that are 
received by noon on a Work Day, the CONTRACTOR must return to the service address and collect the missed 
materials that same day. For missed Collection complaints that are received after noon on a Work Day, the 

17 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

D. 

E. 

F. 

G. 

H. 

CONTRACTOR must return to the service address and collect the missed materials by noon of the following 
Work Day. 

For those complaints related to repair or replacement of Roll Carts, the appropriate subsections of Section 6 of 
this Contract shall apply. 

By noon on the first Wor~ Day of each week, the CONTRACTOR shall e-mail to the Contract Administrator a 
report of those complaints, related to Collection, that were not resolved in the manne~ set forth in Subsection 
C above. This weekly report shall include all information specified in Subsection B above, as well as the status 
of the disposition of the complaint. 

The CONTRACTOR shall be responsible for the prompt repair or replacement, if repair is not adequate, of any 
damage to public or private property during the provision of Residential Collection Service, and caused by the 
CONTRACTOR or the CONTRACTOR'S representative. Within twenty-four (24) hours of occurrence, the 
CONTRACTOR shall provide the Contract Administrator with a full explanation of the disposition of any 
complaint involving a claim of damage to public or private property as a result of actions of the CONTRACTOR. 
The CONTRACTOR shall promptly repair any such legitimate damage claim at its sole expense and within an 
agreed upon time frame, not to exceed one (1) week, as approved by the Contract Administrator. Upon the 
request of the CONTRACTOR, the Contract Administrator may grant a time extension. Proof of the need for an 
extension shall be submitted by the CONTRACTOR. 

By the end of the first Work Day of each month, the CONTRACTOR shall e-mail to the Contract Administrator a 
report on any unresolved complaint involving a claim of damage to public or private property as a result of 
actions of the CONTRACTOR'S employees, agents or subcontractors. This monthly report shall include the name, 
address and phone number of the complainant, date of occurrence, nature of occurrence and the status of the 
disposition of the complaint. 

CONTRACTOR agrees that it is in the best interest of the TOWN that all Residential Collection Service be 
provided on the scheduled Collection day. Accordingly, missed Collections will normally be collected in 
accordance with Subsection C above regardless of the reason that the Collection was missed. However, in the 
event the CONTRACTOR does not address a missed Collection complaint in accordance with Subsection C 
because it believes such complaint to be without merit, CONTRACTOR shall immediately notify the Contract 
Administrator in writing. The Contract Administrator will investigate all disputed complaints and render a final 
and binding decision. 

SECTION 18. RECORDKEEPING AND REPORTING 

A. The Town is subject to Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, "Public Records Law." CONTRACTOR acknowledges the 
public shall have access at all reasonable times to all documents and information pertaining to TOWN'S 
contracts, subject to the provisions of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, and agrees to allow access by the TOWN 
and the public to all documents subject to disclosures under applicable law. 

B. To the extent that CONTRACTOR has been provided access to or has received security sensitive information, as 
defined by Florida Statutes, Section 119.071 and/or has executed a Confidential Information Acknowledgement 
and Agreement as part of this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall keep and maintain the security sensitive information 
as confidential and exempt from public disclosures as required by Florida Statutes. 

C. CONTRACTOR agrees to keep and maintain public records required by the TOWN to perform the service in 
CONTRACTOR's possession or control in connection with CONTRACTOR's performance under this Contract and, 
upon the request from the TOWN's custodian of public records, to provide the TOWN with a copy of the 
requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable amount of time at a cost 
that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119 or as otherwise provided by law. CONTRACTOR shall 
ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure 

18 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the Contract term and following 
completion of the Contract if the CONTRACTOR does not transfer the records to the TOWN. 

D. Upon completion of the Contract, CONTRACTOR agrees, at no cost to TOWN, to transfer to the TOWN all public 
records in possession of the CONTRACTOR or keep and maintain public records required by the TOWN to 
perform the service. If the CONTRACTOR transfers all public records to the TOWN upon completion of the 
Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and 

I I 

exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the CONTRACTOR keeps and maintains public records 
upon completion of the Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public 
records. All records stored electronically must be provided to the TOWN, upon request from the TOWN's 
custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible with the information technology system of the 
TOWN. 

E. CONTRACTOR's failure or refusal to comply with the provisions of this section shall result in the immediate 
termination for cause of the Contract by TOWN. 

F. The CONTRACTOR shall keep records of the amounts of Residential Solid Waste, Bulk Trash, and Yard Trash 
disposed; Residential Bulk Trash, Yard Trash, and Recyclable Materials recycled. Such records shall be kept 
separate and apart from all other records maintained by the CONTRACTOR. 

G. The CONTRACTOR shall file and keep current with the TOWN all documents and reports required by this 
Contract. All documents and reports submitted to the TOWN by the CONTRACTOR shall be fully transparent 
CONTRACTOR shall provide additional information as requested by the Contract Administrator to comply with 
such requirement for transparency. 

H. By the date specified in the TOWN-approved Transition Plan, CONTRACTOR shall electronically transmit to the 
Contract Administrator the completed and current Residential Customer list that has been revised to 
incorporate the Roll Cart asset management database meeting the requirements of Section 6.E. At a minimum, 
the database shall include all information initially provided by the TOWN, (parcel folio number, address, and 
number of Residential Service Units on the parcel) and all information specified in Section 6.E (routes on which 
customer is serviced; size and serial number of Solid Waste (if applicable) and Recycling Roll Carts; size and 
serial number of all extra Solid Waste and Recycling Roll Carts; work order number, date, status, and any extra 
service fees billed by the CONTRACTOR for any deliveries, removals, exchanges, repairs, warranty recovery, and 
any other information necessary to manage cart assets). 

I. At the end of each Work Day or in no event later than noon the next Work Day, the CONTRACTOR shall 
electronically submit the following to the Contract Administrator, in a format approved by the Contract 
Administrator: 

(1) Call Log for all calls received since the previous report, including how such calls were resolved . 

(2) Record of Residential Customers that placed more than the twelve (12) cubic yard limit of Bulk Waste 
curbside for Collection during that Work Day. 

(3) Record of any other non-collection occurrences during that Work Day, the reasons for the non-collection, 
and the addresses of such non-collection. 

(4) Full explanation of any complaint involving a claim of damage to public or private property as a result of 
actions of the CONTRACTOR that occurred within the last twenty-four (24) hours. 

(5) Full explanation of any occurrences of leakage of fluids from a collection vehicle within the last twenty
four (24) hours, including the location of such leakage, the vehicle at issue, and the remediation measures 
used to correct same. 

19 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

J. By noon on the first Work Day of each week, the CONTRACTOR shall e-mail to the Contract Administrator a 
report of Collection complaints that were not resolved as required by Section 19.E. 

K. Prior to the fifteenth (15th) calendar day of each month during the term of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall 
submit a report electronically to the Contract Administrator, in a format approved by the Contract 
Administrator. The report shall contain the following information: 

1(1) 
I 

Tonnage of Residential Solid Waste, Residential Bulk Trash and Residential Yard Trash disposed during the 
previous month. At the Contract Administrator's request, CONTRACTOR shall provide documentation, in 
the form of scale house tickets, of the tonnage of Residential Solid Waste and Residential Bulk Waste that 
is disposed each month. 

(2) Tonnage of Residential Bulk Trash, Residential Yard Trash, and Residential Recyclable Materials recycled 
during the previous month. 

(3) List of all Residential Customers charged for special waste collection, including Bulk Waste in excess of 
twelve (12) cubic yards per set-out, during the previous month. The list shall include the customer's name 
and address, date service was provided, service that was provided, and fee that was charged. 

(4) Updated Roll Cart asset management database, as well as the number of new, replacement, or additional 
Solid Waste Roll Carts and Recycling Roll Carts distributed during the previous month, the date each was 
requested, and the date each Roll Cart was delivered. 

(5) Documentation of payment to the Designated Disposal Facility for disposal of Solid Waste during the 
previous month. 

L. Prior to September 15th of each year during the term of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall ensure and certify 
to the TOWN that all required documents are current and on file with the TOWN. Such documents include, but 
are not limited to, certificates of insurance, performance bond, route schedules and maps. 

M. In addition to any other requirements of this Contract, the CONTRACTOR shall be required to provide statistical 
and other pertinent information pertaining to Residential Collection Service as may be requested by the TOWN 
to monitor compliance with this Contract or to comply with the provisions of Section 403, F.S., as amended, 
other pertinent laws and regulations, or any interlocal agreements the TOWN has or may enter into during the 
term of this Contract. 

N. The CONTRACTOR shall mark any information it considers confidential, proprietary, or privileged as such and 
the TOWN will treat such information accordingly as provided for in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes. If the 
CONTRACTOR has questions regarding the application of Chapter 119, Florida Statutes, to the CONTRACTOR's 
duty to provide public records relating to this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall contact the TOWN's custodian of 
public records, Russell Muniz, at (954) 434-0008. 

SECTION 19. LIQUIDATED DAMAGES 

A. It is the intent of the TOWN to ensure that the CONTRACTOR provides a quality level of Residential Collection 
Service. The TOWN and CONTRACTOR acknowledge and agree that it is impossible to precisely determine the 
amount of damages that would be incurred by the TOWN due to service failures or circumstances described in 
this Section for which the CONTRACTOR would otherwise be liable. Accordingly, the TOWN has determined 
terms and amounts of liquidated damages set forth herein, and the parties agree that the liquidated damages 
are reasonable under the circumstances. Therefore, the following shall constitute liquidated damages, not 
penalties, that the TOWN may assess against the CONTRACTOR for failing to comply with requirements of this 
Contract, time being of the essence. It is hereby agreed that the TOWN may deduct from any monies due, or 
which may become due to the CONTRACTOR, such assessed liquidated damages in the following amounts: 

20 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

(1) Failure to submit a Transition Plan within thirty (30) days $100.00 per day past the due 
of Contract execution or to revise the Transition Plan date 
within five (S) Work Days of notification by the Contract 
Administrator without prior approval of the Contract 
Administrator for such delay in submittal (§4.A) 

(2) Failure to meet the schedule outlined in the TOWN• $100.00 per incident per day 
approved Transition Plan without prior approval of the past the due date 
Contract Administrator for such delay (§4.A) 

(3) Failure or neglect to resolve each valid complaint, $100.00 per each unresolved 
including missed Collection, in the timeframe specified 
(§19) 

(4) Failure to repair damage to public or private property $100.00 per incident after the 
determined caused by the CONTRACTOR or its timeframe approved in writing 
personnel within the timeframe approved by the by Contract Administrator 
Contract Administrator (§19.F) 

(5) Mixing of materials in violation of §5.E $100.00 per occurrence 

(6) Failure to comply with hours and days of operation $250.00 per occurrence per 
(§5.G and §9.D) vehicle 

(7) Changing Collection routes without proper notification $1,000.00 per incident per day 
(§5.L) 

(8) Failure to distribute Solid Waste Roll Carts by date $100.00 per Roll Cart per day 
specified in Transition Plan unless otherwise approved past due date 
by the Contract Administrator (§6B(l)) 

(9) Failure to repair, replace, exchange, or deliver a Roll Cart $100.00 per Roll Cart 
within the required timeframe (§6) 

(10) Failure to provide a completed Roll Cart asset $100.00 
management database and to keep such database up to 
date as specified (§6.E) 

(11) Failure to leave a Non-Collection Notice explaining why $100.00 per occurrence 
all material was not collection (§7) 

(12) Failure to collect and process Bulk Waste in a manner $100.00 per Residential Service 
that enables, at a minimum, recycling of Yard Trash and Unit 
White Goods (§5.B and §8) 

(13) Failure to deliver all Residential Solid Waste to the $100.00 per incident 
Designated Disposal Facility (§10.A) 

(14) Failure to deliver all Residential Recyclable Materials to $100.00 per incident 
the Designated MRF (§10.B) 

(15) Failure to prepare and distribute TOWN-approved $100.00 per incident 
public education materials in the timeframe specified 
(§11.C) 

21 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

(16) Failure to have a vehicle operator properly licensed $100.00 per vehicle per day 
(§15.E) 

(17) 

(18) 

(19) 

(20) 

Failure to clean up spillage, leakage, or excessive $100.00 per incident per day 
blowing debris with the timeframe specified after 
notification by Town (§ 16.B) 

Failure to assign scheduled vehicles and equipment on a $100.00 per vehicle per day I 
route day (§17) 

Failure to submit to the TOWN all plans, reports, $250.00 per month 
records, or other documents in the time required under 
the provisions of this Contract, including §20, unless 
otherwise approved by the Contract Administrator 

Failure or neglect to complete more than 95 percent of $250.00 per incident 
a route (number of missed pickups must be less than 5 
percent of total customers on that daily route to be 
considered more than 95 percent complete) on the 
regularly scheduled Collection day without justifiable 
cause (cause that is beyond the control of the 
CONTRACTOR) or prior approval by the Contract 
Administrator 

B. The Contract Administrator may assess liquidated damages pursuant to this Section at any time during the term 
of this Contract. The Contractor Administrator shall notify the CONTRACTOR in writing of the liquidated 
damages assessed and the basis for each assessment. In the event the CONTRACTOR wishes to contest such 
assessment, within ten (10) Work Days of receipt of written notice, CONTRACTOR shall request in writing a 
meeting with the Contract Administrator to resolve the issue. The TOWN shall notify the CONTRACTOR in 
writing of any action taken with respect to CONTRACTOR'S claims within five (10) Work Days of such meeting. 
The Town Administrator's decision shall be final and conclusive unless determined by a court of competent 
jurisdiction to be fraudulent, capricious, arbitrary, so grossly erroneous as to necessarily imply bad faith, or not 
supported by competent evidence. Any liquidated damages assessed by the Town Administrator shall be 
deducted from the TOWN's next monthly payment to the CONTRACTOR. 

SECTION 20. EMERGENCY SERVICE PROVISIONS 

A. In the event of a hurricane, tornado, major storm, natural disaster, or other such event, the Contract 
Administrator may grant the CONTRACTOR a variance from regular routes and schedules. Such variance from 
regular routes and schedule to ensure the safety of the CONTRACTOR's employees and members of the 
community shall not be unreasonably denied by the TOWN. However, CONTRACTOR shall make its best effort 
to resume regular Collection service as soon as possible. As soon as practicable after such event, the 
CONTRACTOR shall advise the Contract Administrator when it is anticipated that normal routes and schedules 
can be resumed. The Contract Administrator shall make an effort through the local news media to inform the 
public when regular Collection services may be resumed. 

B. The clean-up from some events may require that the CONTRACTOR hire additional equipment, employ 
additional personnel, dispose of additional solid waste and bulk waste or work existing personnel on overtime 
hours to clean debris resulting from the event. The CONTRACTOR shall receive additional compensation, above 
the normal compensation contained in this Contract, to cover documented costs provided the CONTRACTOR 
has first secured written authorization and approval from the TOWN through the Contract Administrator. The 

22 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

CONTRACTOR shall substantiate such additional costs for labor, equipment, transportation, and/or disposal in 
writing. The TOWN shall have the right to audit such costs. The CONTRACTOR shall provide the TOWN with a 
separate disaster cleanup agreement with specified rates at the commencement of each Contract Vear. 

C. In the event of a declared disaster, the rate paid to the CONTRACTOR shall be the rate in the Disaster Cleanup 
Agreement, attached hereto as Exhibit 4. The TOWN reserves the right to hire additional hauling contractors 
for debris removal pperations after it is determined by the Contract Administr~tor that additional services are 
needed and after notice to the CONTRACTOR. 

SECTION 21. PERFORMANCE BOND 

Prior to commencing services, the CONTRACTOR shall furnish to the TOWN, and keep current for the full duration of the 
Contract and any renewal, a Performance Bond for the faithful performance of this Contract and all obligations arising 
hereunder in the amount of three hundred thousand dollars ($300,000.00). It shall be executed by a surety company 
licensed to do business in the State of Florida; having an "A-" or better rating by A. M . Best or Standard and Poors; included 
on the list of surety companies approved by the Treasurer of the United States; and in a form acceptable to the TOWN. 

SECTION 22. INSURANCE 

A. The CONTRACTOR shall provide, pay for, and always maintain in force during the term of this Contract, such 
insurance, including Worker's Compensation Insurance and comprehensive general liability insurance as stated 
below. The CONTRACTOR shall also name the TOWN as an additional insured to CONTRACTOR'S comprehensive 
general liability insurance policy, and shall provide the TOWN with annual Accords documenting both insurance 
coverages and that the TOWN has been named as an additional insured on the comprehensive general liability 
insurance policy and as a certificate holder for all other forms of insurance and setting forth the minimum 
insurance standards set forth below: 

(1) Worker's Compensation Insurance to apply for all employees in compliance with the "Workers' 
Compensation Law" of the State of Florida and all applicable federal laws, for the benefit of the 
CONTRACTOR'S employees. 

(2) Comprehensive General Liability Insurance, including contractual, with minimum limits of Two Million 
Dollars ($2,000,000.00) per occurrence, combined single limit for bodily injury liability and property 
damage liability. The TOWN is to be included and named as an "additional insured" with respect to any 
claims arising out of this Contract. 

(3) Business Automobile Liability Insurance with minimum limits of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per 
occurrence, combined single limits bodily injury liability and property damage. The policy must be no 
more restrictive than the latest edition of the business automobile liability policy without restrictive 
endorsements, as filed by the Insurance Services Office, and must include alt owned vehicles and all hired 
or non-owned vehicles. 

B. UPON EXECUTION OF THIS CONTRACT, CONTRACTOR SHALL SUBMIT TO TOWN COPIES OF ITS CERTIFICATE(S) 
OF INSURANCE EVIDENCING THE REQUIRED COVERAGES REQUIRED HEREIN AND SPECIFICALLY PROVIDING THE 
ENDORSEMENT TO THE POLICIES THAT SHOWS THE TOWN OF PONCE INLET IS AN ADDITIONAL NAMED 
INSURED CERTIFICATE HOLDER, AS APPLICABLE, WITH RESPECT TO THE REQUIRED COVERAGES AND 
CONTRACTOR'S WORK UNDER THIS CONTRACT. 

C. The CONTRACTOR shall not commence operations, and/or labor to complete any of the work pursuant to this 
Contract until certification or proof of insurance issued directly by the insurance company underwriting 
department or insurance agent, detailing terms and provisions of coverage has been received and approved by 
the Town. 

23 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

D. Insurance policies and coverages shall not be affected by any other policy of insurance which the TOWN may 
carry in its own name. 

E. CONTRACTOR's insurance policies shall be endorsed to provide the TOWN with at least thirty (30) calendar 
days' prior written notice of cancellation, non-renewal, restrictions, or reduction in coverages or limits. Notice 
shall be sent to: 

JeanJen Witt, Town Manager 
Town of Ponce Inlet 
4300 South Peninsula Drive 
Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127 

F. All required insurance policies shall preclude any insurer's or underwriter's rights of recovery or subrogation 
against TOWN with the express intention of the parties being that the required insurance coverages protect 
both parties as the primary coverages for any and all losses covered by the above-described insurance. 

G. CONTRACTOR shall ensure that any companies issuing insurance to cover the requirements contained in this 
Contract agree that they shall have no recourse against TOWN for payment or assessments in any form on any 
policy of insurance. 

H. The clauses 'Other Insurance Provisions' and 'Insured Duties in the Event of an Occurrence, Claim or Suit' as it 
appears in any policy of insurance in which TOWN is named as an additional insured shall not apply to TOWN. 
TOWN shall use its best efforts to provide written notice of occurrence within thirty (30) working days after 
TOWN's actual notice of such event. 

I. If any of CONTRACTOR's initial insurance expires prior to the completion of the term of this Contract, renewal 
copies of policies shall be furnished to TOWN at least thirty (30) days prior to the date of their expiration, and 
TOWN shall be an additional named insured by endorsement on all of CONTRACTOR's renewal policies. 

J. The official title of the owner is Town of Ponce Inlet. This official title shall be used in all insurance policies and 
documentation. 

K. Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Contract, CONTRACTOR's obligation to maintain all required 
insurance as specified in this Section of the Contract shall survive the expiration or earlier termination of this 
Contract. 

SECTION 23. INDEMNIFICATION OF TOWN 

A. CONTRACTOR shall indemnify, defend, and hold harmless TOWN, TOWN'S contractors, and the public officials, 
officers, directors, employees, agents and other contractors of each of them, from and against any and all 
claims, costs, losses and damages (including but not limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, 
attorneys and other professionals as well as all Court or other dispute resolution costs), liabilities, expenditures 
or causes of action of any kind (including negligent, reckless, willful or intentional acts or omissions of the 
CONTRACTOR, any subcontractor, any supplier, any person or organization directly or indirectly employed by 
any of them to perform or furnish any services or anyone for whose acts any of them may be liable), caused by 
the breach of this Contract, violation of applicable law, and the negligent acts or omissions of the CONTRACTOR 
in the performance of this Contract. This indemnity includes but is not limited to claims attributable to bodily 
injury, sickness, disease or death and to injury or destruction of tangible property. 

B. CONTRACTOR further agrees to indemnify, defend, save and hold harmless the TOWN, its officers, agents and 
employees, from all damages, liabilities, losses, claims, fines and fees, and from any and all suits and actions of 
every name and description that may be brought against TOWN, its officers, agents and employees, on account 

24 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

of any claims, fees, royalties, or costs for any invention or patent rights or for the infringement of any and all 
copyrights or patent claimed by any person, firm or corporation. 

C. CONTRACTOR agrees, at CONTRACTOR'S expense, after written notice from the TOWN, to defend any action 
against the TOWN that falls within the scope of this indemnity as set forth above in Subsections A and B, or the 
TOWN, at the TOWN'S option, may elect not to tender such defense and may elect instead to secure its own 
attorneys to defend any such action and the reasonable costs and expenses of such attorneys incurred in 

I 

defending such action shall be payable by CONTRACTOR. Additionally, if CONTRACTOR, after receipt of written 
notice from the TOWN, fails to make any payment due under this Contract to the TOWN or fails to perform any 
obligation required by this Contract, CONTRACTOR shall pay any reasonable attorneys' fees and costs incurred 
by the TOWN in securing any such payment from CONTRACTOR, or any reasonable attorneys' fees and costs 
incurred in the enforcement of this indemnity, or both. Payment of any amount due pursuant to the foregoing 
indemnity shall, after receipt of written notice by CONTRACTOR from the TOWN that such amount is due, be 
made by CONTRACTOR prior to the TOWN being required to pay same, or in the alternative, the TOWN, at the 
TOWN'S option, may make payment of an amount so due and CONTRACTOR shall promptly reimburse the 
TOWN for same, together with interest thereon at the rate of twelve percent (12%) per annum simple interest 
from the date of receipt by CONTRACTOR of written notice from the TOWN that such payment is past due at 
least twenty (20) days. 

D. It is specifically understood and agreed that the consideration inuring to the CONTRACTOR for the execution of 
this Contract consists of the promises, payments, covenants, rights and responsibilities contained in this 
Contract. 

E. The execution of this Contract by the CONTRACTOR shall obligate the CONTRACTOR to comply with the 
foregoing indemnification provision; however, the collateral obligation of providing insurance must be also 
complied with as set forth in Section 24. 

F. The CONTRACTOR shall require all subcontractors to enter into a contract containing the provisions set forth in 
the preceding subsections in which contract the subcontractor fully indemnifies the TOWN in accordance with 
this Contract. 

SECTION 24. POINT OF CONTACT 

The day-to-day dealings between the CONTRACTOR and the TOWN shall be between the CONTRACTOR and the Town 
Administrator or designee. 

SECTION 25. NOTICE 

Except as provided herein, whenever either party desires to give notice to the other, it must be given by written notice, 
sent by certified U.S. mail, with return receipt requested, addressed to the party for whom it is intended, at the place last 
specified and to the place for giving of notice in compliance with the provisions of this paragraph. For the present, the 
parties designate the following as the respective persons and places for giving of notice: 

As to the TOWN: 

Jeaneen Witt, Town Manager and Kim McColl, Finance Manager 
Town of Ponce Inlet Town of Ponce Inlet 
4300 South Peninsula Drive 4300 South Peninsula Drive 
Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127 Ponce Inlet, Florida 32127 

25 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

As to the CONTRACTOR: 

Waste Pro of Florida, Inc. and Waste Pro of Florida, Inc. 
Ken DeForest, Division Manager Tim Dolan, Region Vice-President 
925 South Clyde Morris Blvd. 3750 St Johns Parkway 
Daytona Beach, Florida 32114 Sanfo~d, Florida 32771 

Notices shall be effective when received at the address as specified above. Changes in the respective addresses to which 
such notice is to be directed may be made from time-to-time by written notice. Electronic transmission is acceptable 
notice, effective when received; however, electronic transmissions received (i.e. printed) after 4:30 p.m. or on weekends 
or holidays, will be deemed received on the next business day. The original of items that are transmitted electronically 
must also be mailed as required herein. 

SECTION 26. TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 

A. Termination for Cause. The TOWN may cancel this Contract, except as otherwise provided below in this Section, 
by giving the CONTRACTOR thirty (30) days' advance written notice, to be served as provided in Section 25, 
upon the happening of any one of the following events: 

(1) The CONTRACTOR shall take the benefit of any present or future insolvency statute, or shall make a 
general assignment for the benefit of creditors or file a voluntary petition in bankruptcy (court) or a 
petition or answer seeking an arrangement for its reorganization or the readjustment of its indebtedness 
under the Federal bankruptcy laws or under any other law or statute of the United States or any state 
thereof or consent to the appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator of all or substantially all of its 
property; or 

(2) By order or decree of a Court, the CONTRACTOR shall be adjudged bankrupt or an order shall be made 
approving a petition filed by any of its creditors or by any of the stockholders of the CONTRACTOR, seeking 
its reorganization or the readjustment of its indebtedness under the Federal bankruptcy laws or under 
any law or statute of the United States or of any state thereof, provided that if any such judgment or order 
is stayed or vacated within sixty (60) days after the entry thereof, any notice of default shall be and 
become null, void and of no effect; unless such stayed judgment or order is reinstated, in which case, said 
default shall be deemed immediate; or 

(3) By, or pursuant to or under the authority of any legislative act, resolution or rule or any order or decree 
of any Court or governmental board, agency or officer having jurisdiction, a receiver trustee or liquidator 
shall take possession or control of all or substantially all of the property of the CONTRACTOR, and such 
possession or control shall continue in effect for a period of sixty (60) days; or 

(4) The CONTRACTOR has defaulted by failing or refusing to pay in a timely manner the administrative charges 
or other monies due the TOWN and said default is not cured within thirty (30) days of receipt of written 
notice by TOWN to do so; or 

(5) The CONTRACTOR has defaulted by allowing any final judgment for the payment of money to stand 
against it unsatisfied and said default is not cured within thirty (30) days of receipt of written notice by 
TOWN to do so; or 

(6) In the event that the monies due the TOWN under subsection (4) above or an unsatisfied final judgment 
under subsection (5) above is the subject of a judicial proceeding, the CONTRACTOR shall not be in default 
if the sum of money is bonded. All bonds shall be in the form acceptable to the Town Attorney; or 

26 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

(7) The CONTRACTOR has defaulted, by failing or refusing to perform or observe the terms, conditions or 
covenants in this Contract or any of the rules and regulations promulgated by the TOWN pursuant thereto 
or has wrongfully failed or refused to comply with the instructions of the Contract Administrator relative 
thereto and said default is not cured within thirty (30) days of receipt of written notice by the TOWN to 
do so, or if by reason of the nature of such default, the same cannot be remedied within thirty (30) days 
following receipt by the CONTRACTOR of written demand from the TOWN to do so, the CONTRACTOR fails 
to commence the remedy of such default within said thirty (30) days following such written notice or 
having so commenced shall fail thereafter to continue with diligence the curing thereof (with the 
CONTRACTOR having the burden of proof to demonstrate (a) that the default cannot be cured within 
thirty (30) days, and (b) that it is proceeding with diligence to cure said default, and such default will be 
cured within a reasonable period of time). However, notwithstanding anything contained herein to the 
contrary, for the failure of the CONTRACTOR to provide Collection for a period of three (3) consecutive 
Work Days, the TOWN may secure the CONTRACTOR'S billing records on the fourth (4th) Work Day in 
order to provide interim Contract Collection until such time as the matter is resolved and the 
CONTRACTOR is again able to perform pursuant to this Contract; provided, however, if the CONTRACTOR 
is unable for any reason or cause to resume performance at the end of thirty (30) Work Days all liability 
of the TOWN under this Contract to the CONTRACTOR shall cease and this Contract may be deemed 
terminated by the TOWN, except to the extent the failure to provide Collection services is the result of 
the occurrence of an event of force majeure. 

B. Habitual Violations. Notwithstanding the foregoing and as supplemental and additional means of termination 
of this Contract under this Section, in the event that the CONTRACTOR'S record of performance shows that the 
CONTRACTOR has frequently, regularly or repetitively defaulted in the performance of any of the covenants 
and conditions required herein to be kept and performed by the CONTRACTOR, in the opinion of the TOWN, 
and regardless of whether the CONTRACTOR has corrected each individual condition of default, the 
CONTRACTOR shall be deemed a "habitual violator," shall be deemed to have waived the right to any further 
notice or grace period to correct, and all of said defaults shall be considered cumulative and collectively and 
shall constitute a condition of irredeemable default. The TOWN shall thereupon issue the CONTRACTOR a final 
warning citing the circumstances therefore, and any single default by the CONTRACTOR of whatever nature, 
subsequent to the occurrence of the last of said cumulative defaults, shall be grounds for immediate 
termination of the Contract. In the event of any such subsequent default, the TOWN may terminate this 
Contract upon giving of written final notice to the CONTRACTOR, such cancellation to be effective upon the 
date specified in the TOWN'S written notice to the CONTRACTOR, and all contractual fees due hereunder plus 
any and all charges and interest shall be payable to said date, and the CONTRACTOR shall have no further rights 
hereunder. Immediately upon the specified date in such final notice the CONTRACTOR shall cease any further 
performance under this Contract. 

C. Effective Date of Termination. tn the event of the aforesaid events specified in subsections A and B above and 
except as otherwise provided in said subsections, termination shall be effective upon the date specified in the 
TOWN'S written notice to the CONTRACTOR and upon said date this Contract shall be deemed immediately 
terminated and upon such termination all liability of the TOWN under this Contract to the CONTRACTOR shall 
cease, and the TOWN shall have the right to call the performance bond and shall be free to negotiate with other 
contractors for the operation of the herein specified services. The CONTRACTOR, for failure to perform, shall 
reimburse the TOWN all direct and indirect costs of providing interim Residential Solid Waste, Recyclables, and 
Bulk Waste Collection. 

SECTION 27. MODIFICATIONS TO THE CONTRACT 

The TOWN and the CONTRACTOR understand and agree that the Florida Legislature has the authority to make changes in 
Solid Waste Management legislation and that changes in law may mandate certain changes to this Contract. Should such 
changes materially alter the obligations of the CONTRACTOR, then the Collection charges established in the Exhibits to 
this Contract shall be adjusted accordingly. When such modifications are made to this Contract, the TOWN and the 

27 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

CONTRACTOR shall negotiate in good faith a reasonable and appropriate compensation adjustment for any increase or 
decrease in the services or other obligations required. In addition, TOWN and the CONTRACTOR may approve other 
changes upon mutual agreement to address any other amendments to this contract. If an agreement cannot be reached, 
this Contract shall terminate upon one hundred and eighty (180) days of a declared impasse by either party. 

SECTION 28. PERMITS AND LICENSES 
I 

The CONTRACTOR shall obtain, at its own expense, all permits and licenses required by law or ordinance and maintain 
same in full force and effect, and shall, prior to execution of the Contract, provide copies of those permits and licenses to 
the TOWN, and within fifteen (15) days of receipt, all renewals thereof. 

SECTION 29. INDEPENDENCE OF CONTRACT 

It is understood and agreed that nothing herein contained is intended or should be construed as in any way establishing 
the relationship of co-partners or a joint venture between the parties hereto or as constituting the CONTRACTOR as an 
agent, representative or employee of the TOWN for any purpose whatsoever. The CONTRACTOR is to be, and shall remain, 
an independent contractor with respect to all services performed under this Contract. 

SECTION 30. FORCE MAJEURE 

If either party is prevented from or delayed in performing its duties under this Contract by circumstances beyond its 
control, whether or not foreseeable, including, without limitation, fires, hurricanes, severe weather, floods, pandemics, 
quarantines, war, civil disturbances, acts of terrorism, labor disputes, acts of God, or significant threats of such 
circumstances, or any future laws, rules, regulations, orders, or acts of any local, state, or federal government ("Force 
Majeure"), then the affected party shall be excused from performance hereunder during the period of such disability. The 
party claiming Force Majeure shall promptly notify the other party in writing when it learns of the existence of a Force 
Majeure condition and when the Force Majeure condition has terminated. Notwithstanding anything in this Contract to 
the contrary, the term "Force Majeure" does not include, and a party shall not be excused from performance under this 
Contract for, events relating to increased costs, including, without limitation, increased costs of fuel, labor, insurance, or 
other expenses of performing the services hereunder. 

SECTION 31. EMPLOYEE STATUS 

Persons employed by the CONTRACTOR in the performance of services and functions pursuant to this Contract shall have 
no claim to pension, workers' compensation, unemployment compensation, civil service or other employee rights or 
privileges granted to the TOWN'S officers and employees either by operation of law or by the TOWN. 

SECTION 32. EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYMENT 

CONTRACTOR shall not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of race, religion, age, 
color, sex or national origin, or physical or mental handicap, or marital status. CONTRACTOR shall take affirmative action 
to ensure that applicants are employed, and that employees are treated during their employment without regard to their 
race, religion, age, color, sex or national origin, or physical or mental handicap, or marital status. Such actions shall include, 
but not be limited to the following: employment, upgrading, demotion, or transfer, recruitment or recruitment 
advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation; and selection for training, including 
apprenticeship. 

CONTRACTOR agrees to post in conspicuous places available to employees and applicants for employment, notices setting 
forth the provisions of this nondiscrimination clause. CONTRACTOR further agrees that he/she will ensure that 
subcontractors, if any, will be made aware of and will comply with this nondiscrimination clause. 

28 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

CONTRACTOR shall comply with all federal, state and TOWN laws applicable to the CONTRACTOR services and specifically 
those covering Equal Opportunity Employment, the Americans with Disabilities Act ("ADA") and the South Florida Building 
Code, The CONTRACTOR is expected to fully comply with all provisions of all laws and the TOWN reserves the right to 
verify the CONTRACTOR'S compliance with them. Failure to comply with any laws will be grounds for termination of the 
Contract for cause. 

SECTION 33. MEDIATION 

In addition to any other remedy provided by law, the TOWN may agree to use arbitration or mediation to resolve any 
controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this Contract. Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this 
Contract, or breach thereof, may be settled by arbitration in accordance with the rules of the American Arbitration 
Association and judgment upon the award rendered by the arbitrators may be entered in any court having jurisd iction 
thereof. In the event arbitration is agreed to by both parties in writing, such controversy or claim shall be submitted to 
arbitrators selected from the National Panel ofThe American Arbitration Association. 

SECTION 34. RIGHT TO REQUIRE PERFORMANCE 

The failure of the TOWN at any time to require performance by the CONTRACTOR of any provision hereof shall in no way 
affect the right of the TOWN thereafter to enforce same, nor shall waiver by the TOWN of any breach of any provision 
hereof be taken or held to be a waiver of any succeeding breach of such provision or as a waiver of any provision itself. 

SECTION 35. GOVERNING LAW 

The parties agree that this Contract shall be construed in accordance with and governed by the laws of the State of Florida. 

SECTION 36. CONSENT TO JURISDICTION 

The parties agree that the jurisdiction for any legal action arising out of or pertaining to this Contract shall be with the 
State Courts of Florida, and specifically, the County or Circuit Court for the Seventh Judicial Circuit in and for Volusia 
County, depending upon the respective jurisdictional limit. Each party further agrees that venue for any action to enforce 
this Contract shall be in Volusia County, Florida. 

SECTION 37. LITIGATION 

In the event of any litigation which arises out of, pertains to, or relates to this Contract, or the breach of it, including, but 
not limited to, the standard of performance required in it, the prevailing party shall be entitled to recover its reasonable 
attorneys' fees from the non-prevailing party, at both trial and appellate levels. 

SECTION 38. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 

The CONTRACTOR shall conduct its operations under this Contract in compliance with atl applicable Federal, State, and 
local laws and regulations. 

SECTION 39. SEVERABILITY 

If any provision of this Contract or the application of it to any person or situation shall to any extent be held invalid or 
unenforceable, the remainder of this Contract and the application of such provisions to persons or situations other than 
those as to which it shall have been held invalid or unenforceable, shall not be affected, shall continue in full force and 
effect, and shall be enforced to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

29 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

SECTION 40. ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTING 

A. Assignment. No assignment of this Contract or any right occurring under this Contract shall be made in whole 
or in part by the CONTRACTOR without the express written consent of the Town Council. The TOWN shall have 
full discretion to approve or deny, with or without cause, any proposed or actual assignment by the 
CONTRACTOR. Any assignment of this Contract made by the CONTRACTOR without the express written consent 
of the Town Council shall be null and void andishall be grounds for the TOWN to declare a default of this Contract 
and immediately terminate this Contract by giving written notice to the CONTRACTOR, and upon the date of 
such notice this Contract shall be deemed immediately terminated, and upon such termination all liability of 
the TOWN under this Contract to the CONTRACTOR shall cease, and the TOWN shall have the right to call the 
performance bond and shall be free to negotiate with other contractors, the CONTRACTOR, or any other person 
or company for the service which is the subject of this Contract. In the event of any assignment, the assignee 
shall fully assume all the liabilities of the CONTRACTOR. 

B. Subcontracting. CONTRACTOR shall not employ subcontractors without the advance written permission of the 
TOWN. CONTRACTOR shall be fully responsible for the services and work provided by a subcontractor under 
the terms of this Contract. CONTRACTOR agrees that any employee or agent of the CONTRACTOR and any 
agent/employee of a subcontractor to the CONTRACTOR shall be removed from the TOWN jobsite or TOWN 
premises upon request by the Town Administrator or designee. Such request will only be issued to remove a 
person if the Town Administrator or designee has a reasonable basis (as determined in his or her discretion) 
that the presence of such person on TOWN property or at a TOWN jobsite is not in the best interest of the 
TOWN, or its employees, guests, visitors or citizens. 

C. CONTRACTOR shall not be permitted to alter its contracted name, create a dba, or transfer more than fifty 
percent (50%) interest in its company without the specific written approval of the TOWN. 

SECTION 41. MODIFICATIONS 

This Contract constitutes the entire Contract and understanding between the parties hereto, and it shall not be considered 
modified, altered, changed or amended in any respect unless in writing and signed by the parties hereto. 

SECTION 42. LEGAL REPRESENTATION 

It is acknowledged that each party was, or had the opportunity to be, represented by counsel in the preparation of and 
contributed equally to the terms and conditions of this Contract and, accordingly, the rule that a contract shall be 
interpreted strictly against the party preparing the same shall not apply herein due to the joint contributions of both 
parties. 

SECTION 43. FUND APPROPRIATION 

The CONTRACTOR understands and agrees that the TOWN, during any fiscal year, is not authorized to expend money, 
incur any liability or enter into any contract which, by its terms, involves the expenditure of money in excess of the 
amounts budgeted as available for expenditure during such fiscal year and that any contract, verbal or written, made in 
violation of this subsection is null and void and that consequently, no money may be paid on such contract beyond such 
limits. Nothing contained in this Contract shall prevent the making of contracts for periods exceeding one (1) year, but any 
contract so made shall be executory only for the value of the services to be rendered or agreed to be paid for in succeeding 
fiscal years. CONTRACTOR shall not proceed with services under this Contract without TOWN'S written verification that 
the funds necessary for CONTRACTOR'S compensation and other necessary expenditures are budgeted as available within 
the appropriate fiscal year budget. The TOWN does not represent that said budget item will be adopted, said 
determination being the determination of the Town Council at the time of the adoption of the budget. 

30 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

SECTION 44. PUBLIC ENTITY CRIME 

CONTRACTOR understands that a person or affiliate as defined in Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, who has been placed 
on the convicted vendor list maintained by the Florida Department of Management Services following a conviction for a 
public entity crime may not submit a bid on a contract to provide any goods or services to the TOWN and may not transact 
business with the TOWN in an amount set forth in Section 287 .017, Florida Statutes, for Category Two for a period of 
thirty-six (36) months from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. CONTRACTOR herein certifies that it is 

' qualified under Section 287.133, Florida Statutes, to provide the services set forth in this Contract for Residential Collection 
Service. 

SECTION 45. FINANCIAL INTEREST 

CONTRACTOR warrants and represents that no elected official, officer, agent, or employee of the TOWN has a financial 
interest, directly or indirectly, in this Contract or the compensation to be paid under it and, further, that no person who 
acts in the TOWN as a "purchasing agent" as defined in Chapter 112, Florida Statutes, nor any elected or appointed officer 
of the TOWN, nor any spouse or child of such purchasing agent, employee or elected or appointed officer, is a partner, 
officer, director, or proprietor of the CONTRACTOR and, further, that no such person, purchasing agent, TOWN elected or 
appointed officer, or the spouse or child of any of them, alone or in combination, has a material interest in the 
CONTRACTOR. Material interest means direct or indirect ownership of more than five percent (5%) of the total assets or 
capital stock of the CONTRACTOR. 

SECTION 46. All PRIOR AGREEMENTS SUPERSEDED 

This document incorporates and includes all prior negotiations, correspondence, conversations, agreements and 
understandings applicable to the matters contained in this Contract and the parties agree that there are no commitments, 
agreements or understandings concerning the subject matter of this Contract that are not contained in this document. 
Accordingly, it is agreed that no deviation from the terms of this Contract shall be predicated upon any prior 
representations or agreements, whether oral or written. 

SECTION 47. HEADINGS 

Headings in this document are for convenience of reference only and are not to be considered in any interpretation of this 
Contract. 

SECTION 48. EXHIBITS 

Each exhibit referred to in this Contract forms an essential part of this Contract. Each such exhibit is a part of this Contract 
and each is incorporated by this reference. 

SECTION 49. MOST FAVORED NATIONS PROVISION AND COOPERATIVE PURCHASING 

Upon Contractor's execution of a new contract with a neighboring municipality for the provisions of the same terms and 
conditions provided in this Agreement and the Agreement provides more favorable fees or rates than those provided 
herein, Contractor will reduce the fees and rates charged to the City herein so as to be equal to or lower than the rates 
charged the neighboring municipality's Agreement. 

Other Towns and Cities if similar size and scope of services may contract for the services provided to the Town of Ponce 
Inlet under the terms of this Agreement, if the other Town or City determines that the Agreement's use is cost-effective 
and in the best interest of that Municipality. Upon such request, the Contractor may, at its discretion, provide such 
services, upon the terms and conditions contained herein. 

31 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

SECTION SO. AGREEMENT FOR SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL AND RECYCLABLES PROCESSING SERVICES 

The parties recognize and agree the tremendous economies of scale and cost savings that could be achieved by having 
one vendor provide both collection and disposal services. As a direct result of the fact that the TOWN's current waste 
disposal and recyclables processing services agreement is about to expire, the TOWN has elected to enter into a backup 
agreement with CONTRACTOR to provide such services. In the event that the TOWN elects to terminate its agreement 
with its current waste disposal and recyclables processing services provider for cause, or in the event the TOWN or its 
current waste disposal and r~cyclables processing services provider elects not to extend itk term, CONTRACTOR has agreed 
to provide such services in accordance with Exhibit "6", which will be executed herewith and which will commence upon 
thirty (30) days written notice from the TOWN. The TOWN specifically finds CONTRACTOR to be a sole source provider, 
and it waives any and all procurement code requirements to the contrary. 

SECTION S1. MODIFICATION OF TERMS 

At any time after the first year of the term of this Agreement, upon the application of the Contractor, or on the initiative 
of the Town, the Town and the Contractor may negotiate changes in the type, level and method of delivery of services 
provided by the Contractor under this Agreement, whether in connection with rate adjustments or otherwise. Such 
negotiations and modifications may include, but shall not be limited to, innovative proposals to improve the quality of 
service, decrease the rates for service or both; take advantage of new equipment and procedures available in the industry; 
make reasonable modifications in the terms and provisions of the Agreement to assist in cost containment to the 
customers; or otherwise modify the terms and provisions of this Agreement in such manner as Contractor and Town may 
agree, City does not hereby commit itself to agree to any requested or proposed modification in terms and specifications, 
but reserves the right to make such modifications and amendments to this Agreement as the City may determine from 
time to time to be in the best interest of the Town, its residents and customers of the Contractor. Contractor specifically 
acknowledges the reserved right of the City to negotiate modifications to this Agreement once executed. All modifications 
of this Agreement shall be in writing. No modifications shall be binding upon the Town until such modification shall have 
been authorized by resolution of the Town Council. Moreover, no modification of this Agreement shall be binding and 
valid as to surety without the consent of the surety. 

32 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

IN WITNESS WHERE tha.--FR\ALJ\I the CONTRACTOR have executed this Contract on the respective date(s) below 
each signature. 

Date: 

ATTORNEY 

Date: ?- Z,,7-J2 

WITNESSES: 

Print Name: Bea.~ t':: /ca.,-..u-

U-d ~YOO~ 
Print Name~s. Bt1-e\ >.),\I •~ wA 

TOWN OF PONCE INLET, FLORIDA 
A municipal corporation 

By: 

Gary . Smitti, Mayor 

Date: '3 /;;i (v I I 9 

WASTE PRO OF FLORIDA, INC. 

By: 

Print Name & Title: Tf4tt z:»..._A-,J 

Date: 'tpo/11 

33 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florfda 
Solid Waste, Recycl_ables, and Bulk Wa_ste Collection and Disposal Agreeme11t 

EXHIBIT 1 
RESIDENTIAL COLLECTION AND DISPOSAL SERVICE RATES 

These rates shall be in effect from October 1, 2019, through September 30, 2021. Rates shall be adjusted starting October 1st of each Contract 
Year thereafter in accordance with Section 12 herein. An example rate adjustment calculation is provided in Exhibit 3. 

Table 1-Residential Collection Service Rate for Manual Solid Waste Collection 

Generation '.Monttily 
lif}Q..WN R_l;f,~~S,' l!'~liiJA~ )Factor 1Fie1pJir 
SOLIDJWASTE ,COLLECTION (t?n~/unlt:£ ~ 01st,osa:1 : Servlte 

-M' --. -~ -- - •~-;.;f,""l. - ~ • ~,~. _year) __ ..,,,_ !f:ee ($/tonL __ Unit " 

Solid Waste Collection NA NA 16.08 
(2x/week, manual, unlimited) $ 

Recycling Collection NA NA 5.09 
(1x/week in bins) $ 

Bulk Waste Collection NA NA 5.74 (1x/week, 12 cy limit) $ 
•-~-,-•-~-~-•-•-•-•-••T-~-•-T-•-•-•-•-•-•- -•-•-•-•-■-•-•-•-•-• •-•-•-•-■-•-•-■ • --•-· -· - -■-•-

Monthly Total per Residential Service Unit $ 26.91 

Bulk Waste Collection in excess of the 12 cubic yard limit shall be invoiced directly to the Customer by the Contractor at $25 per cubic yard. 

34 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

Table 2 - Residential Collection Service Rate if TOWN Ever Elects to Transition to Carted Solid Waste Collection 

t 1Gen~eration ' l~onthly 
1

: i 

ltlF½TOWN[SEl!ECiliSICARiliEDI I .,.Factor1 , ·~ee1per 
iSOIQID1WASiliE(COl!l!lEClilONI ,(tons/unit/ Disposal • Service ' 

t. 
I ~ - "o year) •,fee ($/tonr ~ . 

1UnlL ~ 

Solid Waste Collection NA NA 17.98 
(2x/week in Contractor-provided Roll Cart) $ 

Recycling Collection NA NA 5.09 (1x/week in Bin) $ 

Bulk Waste Collection NA NA 5.74 
(1x/week, 12 cy limit) $ 
---·--------------------------------------- -------------------- --------------- ----------------
Monthly Total per Residential Service Unit $ 28.81 I 

Bulk Waste Collection in excess of the 12 cubic yard limit shall be invoiced directly to the Customer by the Contractor at $25 per cubic yard. 

35 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

EXHIBIT 2 
SAMPLE CALCULATION OF ANNUAL RATE ADJUSTMENTS 

Service rates are adjusted as defined and described in Sections 12 and 13 of this Contract and as illustrated in this Exhibit. All assumptions are for 
demonstration purposes only. 

Assumptions {for demonstration purposes only): 

• CPI February 2020 = 243.283 
CPI February 2021 = 247.126 
100% of percentage change in CPI= 100% x ((247.126-243.283)/243.283) = 0.01264 = 1.26% 

• Average of monthly Fuel Index prices for March 2016-February 2017 = 2.56375 
Average of monthly Fuel Index prices for March 2017-February 2018 = 2.65231 
Percentage change in Fuel Index= (2.65231-2.56375)/2.56375 = 0.034543 = 3.45% 

a b C d e 

Rates for 
95o/oof CPI (80% 5%of Fuel Index Residential Service Rate Demonslralion 

Purposes Only Collection of% Collection (% 

(S/uniVmonlhl Element Change) Element Change) 

COLLECTION ELEMENTS $funiVmonlh 

Solid Waste Collection $12.94 $12.29 1.26% $0.65 3.45% 

Bulk Waste Cotleclion $1t83 $11.24 1.26% $0.59 3.45% 

Recycling Colteclion $3.32 $3.15 1.26¾ $0.17 3.45% 

$28.09 

DISPSOA~ ELE!fENTS See Calculations Below 
($/uniVmonth) 

Bulk Waste Disposal $12.12 na 1.26% na na 

Solid Waste Disposal $4.77 Adjusted only when actual tip fee changes 

TOTAL $44.98 

a b C d 

Tip Fees for 
Generation 

Rates Resldentlal Disposal Rates Factor 
Demonstration (tonsfunit/ 

($/uniV Formula 
Purposes Only ($/ton) 

vearl 
month) 

Bulk Waste Disposal $39.00 3.73 $12.12 c = (a•b)/12 months 

Solid Waste Disposal $44.69 1.28 $4.77 c ; (a*b)/12 months 

36 

f 

New Rate 
(S/uniVmonth) 

$/uniVmonlh 

$13.12 

$11 .99 

$3.37 

$28.47 

$/uniVmonth 

$12.27 

$4.77 

$45.51 

g h i 

Exceeds 5% 
Formula Cap 5% 

Cap? 

f = a+ (b*c) + (d*e) $13.59 No 

f = a+ (b*c) + (d*e) $12.42 No 

f :: a+ (b"c) + (d•e) $3.49 No 

f = a +(b•c) $12.73 No 

na na 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Agreement for Solid Waste Disposal and Recyclables Processing Services 

EXHIBIT 3 
TECHNICAL SPECIFICATIONS FOR ROLL CARTS 

Following are minimum requirements for Solid Waste and Recyclables Roll Carts as required within the 
scope of this Contract. CONTRACTOR must provide a prototype of each of the TOWN's program-sized Roll 
Carts (Solid Waste and Recycling) that meet the following technical specifications for TOWN approval prior 
to ordering the TOWN's Roll Carts. The TOWN reserves the right to waive the requirement of a prototype. 

Construction and 
Design 

Size (Capacity) 

Materials 

Body 

Lid 

• Must meet ANSI Standards 2245.30 and AZ245.60 "Type B/G" containers, all 
rules, regulations, and laws pertaining to this product. 

• Roll Carts must be produced by a major manufacturer. 
• The upper lift point shall be permanently molded into the Roll Cart and the 

lower must be a 1" diameter galvanized free floating metal bar or composite 
equivalent, securely attached to prevent failure or loss. Molded bars are 
unacceptable. 

• The Roll Cart must be manufactured with a narrow width design to fit through 
a 30" door opening. 

• Two different sized Roll Carts are required with the following capacities: 
o Large = 94-96 gallon 
o Medium = 64-66 gallon 

• Must be rotationally or injection molded using medium to high density 100% 
recyclable polyethylene. 

• Minimum resin weight of unassembled Roll Cart, including cart body and lid, 
must be: 

o 30 pounds or greater for large Roll Cart 
o 22 pounds or greater for medium Roll Cart 

• Resin used in the manufacturing process must contain a minimum of 25% 
post-consumer recycled material. 

• All plastic parts must be stabilized against ultraviolet light deterioration with 
a UV stabilizer additive. 

• The body of the Roll Cart must be one piece. 
• The Roll Cart wall and bottom thickness must be a minimum of .150 inches. 

• The body of the Roll Cart must be designed with a drag rail on the container 
bottom and reinforced in the area that contacts the ground with a molded-in 
bottom wear strip. 

• The top of the body must be molded with a reinforced rim to add structural 
strength and stability to the container and to provide a flat surface for lid 
closure. This reinforced rim must have a raised inner perimeter. The rim of 
the Roll Cart must not be designed to have an inward radius to obstruct free 
flow emptying the material out of the container. 

• Lids must be of a configuration that the lid will not warp, bend, slump, or 
distort to such an extent that it no longer fits the body property or becomes 
otherwise unserviceable. 

37 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

Handle 

Wheels/ Axle 

Stability 

Color 

Markings 

• The lid must be one-piece construction and securely attached to the rear of 
the wheeled section of the Roll Cart using a rustproof, weather-resistant 
fastener system. 

• The lid must be hinged to open to a position of 270 degrees from the closed 
position and hang open without stressing the lid, body, or tipping over the Roll 
Cart. I 

• Lids must be designed to be easily removed in the event of damage or failure. 
Lid latches are not acceptable. 

• Each Roll Cart must have a horizontal handle(s) to provide comfortable 
gripping areas for pushing or pulling the Roll Cart. 

• The handle shall be integrally molded into the body or lid, and only plastic 
surfaces shall be exposed to the hands of the user. 

• Roll Carts must be equipped with two (2) plastic molded or rubber wheels 
making the cart capable of being easily moved and maneuvered. 

• Wheels shall be snap-on or attached in a way that prevents unintended 
detachment. 

• Wheels must be a minimum of 10 inches in diameter for large and medium 
Roll Carts. 

• Each Roll Cart shall be furnished with a minimum 5/8 inch diameter axle with 
a corrosion-resistant coating that must be securely attached to the body by 
molded axle retainers. 

• The wheels and axle must be rated to meet the maximum load requirements 
of 3.5 pounds per gallon. 

• Roll Carts must be able to remain stable and upright in winds up to 30 miles 
per hour when empty. 

• Color must not be streaked in the finished product and must be colorfast so 
that the color does not alter significantly with normal use. Painted Roll Carts 
are unacceptable. 

• Colors will be specified by the Town. 
• The final color selection must be approved by the TOWN prior to 

manufacturing. 

• The TOWN must approve all markings. 
• Sequential serial numbers must be molded, branded, or hot stamped into the 

front of the body with white color. Such number shall be assigned to a specific 
property within the TOWN. 

• An eight to ten (8-10) alpha/numeric serial number shall be used as 
determined by the TOWN. 

• A Southwest Ranches logo must be clearly molded, inscribed, or hot-stamped 
into both sides of the body with the following wording in 1 inch lettering on 
the lid: 

o Property of the Town of Ponce Inlet. 
o Instructions for which side of the Roll Cart must face the street for 

collection. 
o ANSI and regulatory labeling required. 

38 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

• Recycling Roll Carts must also have the following markings: 
0 Recycling logo on both sides of the Roll Cart. 
0 In-mold label on the cart lid with program instructions as determined by 

the TOWN. 

Warranty • Roll Carts must be (ully (100%) warranted against defects in materials and 
workmanship for a minimum period of ten (10) years from the date of delivery 
and be transferrable to the TOWN at the expiration of this Contract. 

• The warranty must be unconditional and non-prorated providing the TOWN 
with assurance of full Roll Cart replacement. The warranty must survive the 
termination of any contract for the manufacture and/or A&D of Roll Carts. 

• Warranty is understood to include the following coverage: 
0 Failure of the lid to prevent rainwater from entering the Roll Cart when 

the lid is closed on the body. 
0 Damage to the body, the lid, or any component parts through opening 

or closing the lid. 
0 Failure of the lid hinge to remain fully functional and continually hold lid 

in the originally-designed and intended positions when either opened or 
closed. 

0 Failure of the body and lid to maintain its original shape. 
0 Wear through of Roll Cart bottom so that it leaks liquid. 
0 Failure of the wheels to provide continuous, easy mobility, as originally 

designed. 
0 Failure of any part to conform to minimum standards as specified. 

Asset Management • A manufacturing database must be maintained that includes each Roll Cart's 
serial number, date of manufacture, location of manufacturer, Roll Cart type, 
color, and size. 

• At the time and point of delivery, the date, time, and latitude/longitude of the 
Roll Cart's delivery must be captured and associated with the manufacturing 
database and the residential physical address to which the Roll Cart is 
assigned. 

• The asset management database, including manufacturing information and 
A&D information, shall be completed and submitted to the Contract 
Administrator prior to the Commencement Date and maintained throughout 
the term of this Contract. 

• At the termination of this Contract, the asset management database shall be 
. transmitted to the TOWN in an acceptable format . 

39 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

Exhibit 4 

Disaster Cleanup Agreement 

Storm Operations 

Pre-Storm 

• On an annual basis Waste Pro will be available to meet with the City, prior to the traditional 

hurricane season to discuss readiness plans. 

• Waste Pro subscribes to the Volusia County Emergency Management notification system. The 
VCEM provides information on all potentially hazardous/severe weather events. If the City, 

Volusia County, the State of Florida or the United States Federal government declare an 
impending or actual emergency, Waste Pro will contact the City to coordinate any needed 
services. 

During Storm - Normal collection operations will be suspended upon direction of governmental officials 

or when sustained winds have forced the closure of any bridges to the Town. During the actual storm, 
operations will cease and will only resume when it is safe to operate. 

Post Storm - Operational hours during the first 72 hours after a storm or disaster event will be up to 12 
hours per day and work will commence as soon as it is safe to deploy work crews and at the Town's 
direction. The scope of service available in the first 72 hours will be dependent on personnel and 

equipment availability. 

Additional work - Any work over and above normal activity is likely to affect collection services. The 
Contractor will be compensated for any additional labor and disposal expenses incurred as a result of 

performing the additional work. Hours to be paid will be any additional hours worked over normal route 
time. Normal route time is defined as the average number of hours the Contractor runs over the same 
calendar month, over a 3-year period, not to include any period affected by a storm event. In the event 
there is not 3 years of operational data available the Town and Contractor will develop an estimate of 

operations time to be used to determine any extra work. The Town recognizes that operations may be 
performed on the normal solid waste and yard waste collection days or throughout the normal work week 

if equipment and personnel are available. 

Pricing 

Post Storm Operations - Waste Pro Fleet 

• Charges will be: 

o Rear load truck and (1) man crew 

• Additional laborers 

o Grapple truck and (1) driver 

$225.00 per hour 

$ 45.00 per hour 

$180.00 per hour 

o Roll off truck/container with (1) driver $180.00 per hour 

40 



Town of Ponce Inlet, Florida 
Solid Waste, Recyclables, and Bulk Waste Collection and Disposal Agreement 

• Waste Pro will cooperate with the City's monitoring contractor to provide documentation of all 

work activities. 

• Billing for storm debris removal service will be on a weekly basis with payment within 30 days of 

invoice date. 

• Disposal chargf s will be billed to the City . 

Post Storm Operations - Extraordinary Services 

• In the event the City needs additional storm debris removal assistance, Waste Pro will cooperate 

with the City to locate and provide sub-contracted storm debris removal services. 

• Pricing will be obtained at the time of the event and Waste Pro will cooperate with the City to 

secure the lowest available pricing possible. 

• Billing for Extraordinary Services will be on a weekly basis with payment within 30 days of 

invoice date. 

• Disposal charges will be billed to the City. 

41 



 
 

 

 
Report to Town Council 

 
 
Topic:   From the Town Manager 
 
Summary:   Please see attached report. 
 
Requested by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 
 
Approved by:   Mr. Disher, Town Manager 

Meeting Date: 8/22/2024 

Agenda Item:   15 



 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
OFFICE OF THE TOWN MANAGER 

The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while 
ensuring Ponce Inlet citizens obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar. 

 
To: Town Council   
From: Michael E. Disher, AICP, Town Manager 
Date: August 15, 2024 
Subject: Town Manager’s Report 
             
 

MEETING DATE: August 22, 2024 
 

 
1. At its August 6, 2024 meeting, the County Council approved the following: 

• Item W – Task Assignment: with Dowst and Associates, Inc., to Public Works / 
Engineering for Surveying and Mapping Services for the S. Peninsula Drive Sidewalk 
Improvements. The County will notify us of when the work will begin so that we can 
notify our residents in advance. 

• Item 10 – Renewal of Ponce Inlet Fire Rescue certificate of public convenience and 
necessity, advanced life support, non-transport. The certificate is renewed every two 
years. The County renewed certificates with all participating jurisdictions at this meeting. 

• Item 27 – Ord. 2024-20 - Vehicular Beach Access Fees – adjusted fees for on-beach 
parking: $30 daily pass, $150 annual pass for out-of-county residents, and $0 (free) 
annual pass for county residents who register with the County. The $0 annual pass 
expires on January 31, 2026 unless reauthorized by the County Council.  

• Item 28 – Award of agreement for vehicular beach access payment collection services to 
PCI Municipal Services, LLC and contract task assignment amendment to Mead & Hunt 
Inc. for implementation and support. This is the bid award to update and automate beach 
access tolls. The contract is for 5 years. Mead & Hunt will continue to provide technical 
support for the system’s implementation and oversight. Staff attended this meeting and 
spoke in support of joining as part of a coordinated beach traffic management program. 

2. Public Works updates: 

• Ponce Preserve pilings – Staff has obtained quotes for the repair as an emergency 
purchase to address danger to public health, safety, and welfare, and is now finalizing the 
contract. It will take an additional 3-4 weeks for the contractor to secure the materials and 
mobilize. Once started, repairs should take around 30 days (weather permitting) to 
complete. 

https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240806/agenda.htm
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240806/Item-W-Agenda-Item-to-Follow.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240806/Item-10-12022.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240806/Item-27-11952.pdf
https://vcservices.vcgov.org/agenda/agendas/20240806/Item-28-11943.pdf


2 

• Staff also had the pilings examined at the boat ramp and at Timucuan Oaks. At the boat 
ramp, 14 of the 32 pilings are in poor condition, while the remaining 6 are in serious or 
critical condition and must be replaced. At Timucuan Oaks, the condition of the pilings is 
overall much better. However, the inspection indicated that at least 11 of the pilings are 
in poor to critical condition and should be replaced or encased.     

• New trail signs have been installed at Ponce Preserve, including directional signs 
pointing toward places of interest, along with “Keep Off” signs discouraging use of 
informal “social trails.” 

3. On July 30, 2024, Staff attended Volusia County’s sand placement easement event at the 
Ponce Inlet Community Center. The County is attempting to receive easements from all 
beachfront property owners. Owners who have wish to have their dunes restored by the 
County and have not already signed an easement agreement must do so by September 30th.  

4. The Volusia County Costal Division has announced that it will be removing Brazilian pepper 
trees throughout Lighthouse Point Park in September and October. This will precede the 
planned improvements to the park’s boardwalk system in 2025. 

5. Building permit activity: The number of permits and applications for July has returned to the 
100-per-month average, after having exceeded that average every month since February.  

  Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Total Avg 
Permit 
applications 94 112 112 111 142 124 102 

     

797 114 

Permits 
issued 85 118 113 96 147 119 121 

     

799 114 

Plan 
reviews 85 118 113 118 137 115 120 

     
811 116 

Inspections 243 242 274 292 254 238 255 
     

1,798 257 
 
6. The Cultural Services Department is coordinating a tribute to former employee Jeff Miller at 

Timucuan Oaks park for the week of September 3rd. Details will be shared with the 
community once finalized. 

7. After winning last year’s World Championship, Caroline Marks has won the women’s 
surfing gold medal at the 2024 Olympic Games. Last year the Town recognized her 
achievement with a Caroline Marks Day proclamation. Her family has been contacted about 
recognizing her latest achievement here in Ponce Inlet in the near future.  

 

 

https://www.nbcolympics.com/news/caroline-marks-strikes-gold-womens-surfing-final
https://www.nbcolympics.com/news/caroline-marks-strikes-gold-womens-surfing-final

	REGULAR MEETING
	item 7.pdf
	7-A - TC- Town Property Use Request_Daytona 100 2024.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community

	7-C - 7-18-2024 Reg mtg minutes.pdf
	#1
	#2
	#3
	#4
	#5
	#6
	#7
	#8
	#9
	#10
	#11
	#12
	#13
	#14
	#15
	#16
	#17
	#18
	#19

	7-C - 7-18-2024 Reg mtg minutes.pdf
	#1
	#2
	#3
	#4
	#5
	#6
	#7
	#8
	#9
	#10
	#11
	#12
	#13
	#14
	#15
	#16
	#17
	#18
	#19


	item 8-A.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community

	item 8-C.pdf
	Discussion - Athletic Court Reservation System.pdf
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence
	while ensuring Ponce Inlet residents obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.


	item 12-A.pdf
	ADPFAB3.tmp
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.

	ADP876C.tmp
	The Town of Ponce Inlet staff shall be professional, caring and fair in delivering community excellence while ensuring Ponce Inlet obtain the greatest value for their tax dollar.





